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PART |

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as tBerhpany”, (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersagthe “Operating
Partnership”, (3) the Company’s common stock agti@on Stock” and (4) the Operating Partnership’sroom partnership interests as
“Common Units.”

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

The Company is a self-administered and self-manageidy REIT that began operations through a prestar in 1978. Since the
Companys initial public offering in 1994, we have evolviedo one of the largest owners and operators ofihen office, industrial and ret
properties in the southeastern and midwestern didtates. At December 31, 2002, we:

. owned 493 in-service office, industrial and refabperties, encompassing approximately 37.1 miltemtable square feet and
213 apartment units;

. owned an interest (50.0% or less) in 78 in-servifiee and industrial properties, encompassing axprately 7.8 million
rentable square feet and 418 apartment units;

. owned 1,308 acres of undeveloped land suitabléufare development; and

. were developing an additional five properties, whigll encompass approximately 616,000 rentableasgfeet (including one
property encompassing 285,000 rentable squardhfaetve are developing with a 50.0% joint ventuaetiper).

The following summarizes our capital recycling mang during the past three years ending Decembe2(BIR:

2002 2001 2000
Office, Industrial and Retail Properties:
(rentable square feet in thousan

Dispositions (2,270 (26¢) (4,747
Contributions to Joint Venture — (118 (2,199
Developments Placed-Service 2,21¢ 1,351 3,48(
Redevelopmer (52 — —
Acquisitions — 72 66¢

Net Change (10¢) 1,037 (2,797

Apartment Properties:
(in units)
Dispositions — (1,672) —

In addition to the above capital recycling actiyiye repurchased $4.8 million, $148.8 million arid$.8 million of Common Stock
and Common Units during 2002, 2001 and 2000, reésméy, and $18.5 million of Preferred Stock durig@01. This represents aggregate
repurchases of $273.9 million of Common Stock, Camrdnits and Preferred Stock since January 1, 2000.

The Company conducts substantially all of its atiéis through, and substantially all of its intesci® the properties are held directly or
indirectly by, the Operating Partnership. The Comypia the sole general partner of the Operatingneship. At December 31, 2002, the
Company owned 88.4% of the Common Units in the @yreg Partnership. Limited partners (including agrtofficers and directors of the
Company) own the remaining Common Units. Holder€ofmon Units may redeem them for the cash valumefshare of the Company’s
Common Stock or, at the Company’s option, one sbBé@ommon Stock.

The Company was incorporated in Maryland in 199 Dperating Partnership was formed in North Caaolh 1994. Our executive
offices are located at 3100 Smoketree Court, Blie Raleigh, North Carolina 27604, and our teleghoumber is (919) 872-4924. We
maintain offices in each of our primary markets.
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In addition to this Annual Report, we file quarieaind special reports, proxy statements and ottiermation with the SEC. All
documents that we file with the SEC are availat#e bf charge on our corporate website, whichtjsMvww.highwoods.com. You may also
read and copy any document that we file at theipueference facilities of the SEC at 450 Fifthe®t; N.W., Washington, D.C. 25049. Ple
call the SEC at (800) SEQ330 for further information about the public reflece facilities. These documents also may be aedeksough th
SEC'’s electronic data gathering, analysis andereditisystem (“EDGAR?”) via electronic means, inchglthe SEC’s home page on the
Internet (http://www.sec.gov). In addition, sin@ere of our securities are listed on the New YocBtEXchange, you can read our SEC
filings at the offices of the New York Stock Exclgan 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

Operating Strategy

Geographic Diversification. Since the Compang’initial public offering in 1994, we have sign#iatly reduced our dependence on
particular market. We initially owned only a limit@umber of office properties in North Carolina,shof which were in the Research
Triangle. Today, including our various joint verdsy our portfolio includes primarily office propiesd throughout the Southeast and retail and
office properties in Kansas City, Missouri includiane significant mixed retail and office property.

Capital Recycling Program. Our strategy has been to focus our real estaitétas in markets where we believe our extensogal
knowledge gives us a competitive advantage ovargthal estate developers and operators. Througbapital recycling program, we
generally seek to:

. engage in the development of office and indusfriajects in our existing geographic markets, prilpan suburban business
parks;
. acquire selective suburban office and industriapprties in our existing geographic markets atgsriselow replacement cost tl

offer attractive returns; and

. selectively dispose of non-core properties or offteperties the sale of which can generate atiacéturns.

Our capital recycling activities benefit from oochl market presence and knowledge. Our divisifineyt have significant real estate
experience in their respective markets. Based igrettperience, we are in a better position to eataleapital recycling opportunities than
many of our competitors. In addition, our relatibips with our tenants and those tenants at pragssior which we conduct third-party fee-
based services may lead to development projects titese tenants seek new space.

Efficient, Customer Service-Oriented Organization. We provide a complete line of real estate sesvioeour tenants and third
parties. We believe that our in-house developraaguisition, construction management, leasing aadagement services allow us to
respond to the many demands of our existing anengpiat tenant base. We provide our tenants cost¥e services such as build-to-suit
construction and space modification, including térnienprovements and expansions. In addition, tleadith of our capabilities and resources
provides us with market information not generaligitable. We believe that the operating efficiesaehieved through our fully integrated
organization also provide a competitive advantageeiting our lease rates and pricing other sesvice

Flexible Capital Structure . We are committed to maintaining a flexible capstaucture that: (1) allows growth through devetemt
and acquisition opportunities; (2) promotes futeaenings growth; and (3) provides access to thafmiand public equity and debt market
favorable terms. Accordingly, we expect to meetlong-term liquidity requirements through a combioa of any one or more of:

. borrowings under our unsecured and secured rewpbnedit facilities;
. the issuance of unsecured debt;

. the issuance of secured debt;
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. the issuance of equity securities by both the Compead the Operating Partnership;

. the selective disposition of non-core propertiestber properties which can be sold at attracttarns; and

. the sale or contribution of our wholly-owned prapes, development projects and development larstrédegic joint ventures
formed with unrelated investors.

Competition

Our properties compete for tenants with similarpemties located in our markets primarily on theida$location, rent, services
provided and the design and condition of the fae#li We also compete with other REITs, finanaiatitutions, pension funds, partnerships,
individual investors and others when attemptingdquire and develop properties.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, the Company employed ®68€ops.

Risk Factors

An investment in our securities involves variowsksi. All investors should carefully consider thidwing risk factors in conjunction
with the other information contained in this Ann&dport before purchasing our securities. If anthese risks actually occur, our business,
operating results, prospects and financial conglitiould be harmed.

Adverse conditions in the real estate market may ipair our ability to make distributions to you . Events or conditions, which are
beyond our control, may adversely affect our aptiit generate revenues in excess of operating sggemcluding debt service and capital
expenditures. Such events or conditions could delu

. general and regional economic conditions, partityla the southeastern region of the United States

. changes in interest rate levels and the availghfifinancing;

. difficulty in leasing or re-leasing space quicklyan favorable terms;

. increases in operating costs, including real eséates and insurance premiums, due to inflationathdr factors, which may not

necessarily be offset by increased rents; and
. inability of a significant number of tenants ortaén key tenants to pay rent.

Future acquisitions and development activities mafail to perform in accordance with our expectationsand may require
development and renovation costs exceeding our esites. In the normal course of business, we typicallgleste potential acquisitions,
enter into non-binding letters of intent, and matyany time, enter into contracts to acquire addél properties. However, changing market
conditions, including competition from others, ndigninish our opportunities for making attractivegatsitions. Once made, our investments
may fail to perform in accordance with our expéaota. In addition, the renovation and improvemaesstts we incur in bringing an acquired
property up to market standards may exceed ounatds. Although we anticipate financing future asijons and renovations through a
combination of advances under our revolving loars @her forms of secured or unsecured financinggagsurance can be given that we will
have the financial resources to make suitable atttpris or renovations. If new developments ararited through construction loans, there is
a risk that, upon completion of construction, pemerd financing for newly developed properties may/ie available or may be available
only on disadvantageous terms.

In addition to acquisitions, we periodically coraidieveloping and constructing properties. Riskseiated with development and
construction activities include:

. the unavailability of favorable financing;
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. construction costs exceeding original estimates;
. construction and lease-up delays resulting in exed debt service expense and construction costs; a
. insufficient occupancy rates and rents at a newippleted property causing a property to be ungblie.

Development activities are also subject to riskatireg to our inability to obtain, or delays in abting, all necessary zoning, land-use,
building, occupancy and other required governmeantdl utility company authorizations.

Because holders of our Common Units, including sorma our officers and directors, may suffer adverseéax consequences upon
the sale of some of our properties, it is possibteat the Company may sometimes make decisions thate not in your best interest.
Holders of Common Units may suffer adverse tax equasnces upon the Company’s sale of certain piepeftherefore, holders of Common
Units, including certain of our officers and direxd, may have different objectives regarding therepriate pricing and timing of a property’s
sale. Although we are the sole general partnenefiperating Partnership and have the exclusivesty to sell all of our individual wholly-
owned properties, officers and directors who hoban@on Units may influence us not to sell certaioperties even if such sale might be
financially advantageous to stockholders or toreinte tax deferred exchanges with the proceedsiol sales when such a reinvestment
might not otherwise be in the best interests ofGbenpany.

The success of our joint venture activity dependspon our ability to work effectively with financially sound partners. Instead of
owning properties directly, we have invested, a@y iontinue to invest, as a partner or a co-ventluheder certain circumstances, this type
of investment may involve risks not otherwise presicluding the possibility that a partner orwenturer might become bankrupt or that a
partner or co-venturer might have business intemsgoals inconsistent with ours. Also, such dngaror co-venturer may take action
contrary to our instructions or requests or cogttamprovisions in our joint venture agreements timauld harm us, including jeopardize our
qualification as a REIT.

Our insurance coverage on our properties may be irdequate. We carry comprehensive insurance on all of oaperties, including
insurance for liability, fire and flood. Insurancempanies currently, however, limit coverage agaiegtain types of losses, such as losses
to terrorist acts, named wind storms and toxic mdlts we may not have insurance coverage agansic types of losses and/or there may
be decreases in the limits of insurance availgieuld an uninsured loss or a loss in excess oiingured limits occur, we could lose all or a
portion of the capital we have invested in a proper properties, as well as the anticipated futereenue from the property or properties. If
any of our properties were to experience a catalsicdoss, it could disrupt our operations, delayenue and result in large expenses to repai
or rebuild the property. Such events could adveragéct our ability to make distributions to odoekholders. Our existing insurance policies
expire on June 30, 2003. We anticipate renewingetlexisting policies at that time.

Our use of debt to finance our operations could hava material adverse effect on our cash flow and dity to make
distributions . We are subject to risks normally associated déht financing, such as the insufficiency of cdsiwfto meet required
payment obligations, difficulty in complying witlinfincial ratios and other covenants and the irtghidi refinance existing indebtedness.
Approximately $316.0 million of principal paymerga our existing long-term debt is due in 2003 (dmisount is adjusted for the refinancing
of the MOPPRS in February 2003. For a detailed mgitsichedule regarding our long-term debt, seeridgement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Results of Operations — Liquidity and CapitakBerces — Capitalization.”). If we fail to complytlvthe financial ratios and other
covenants under our existing debt instrumentsudinh our revolving loans, we would likely not b@le&to borrow any further amounts under
these instruments, which could adversely affectadnility to fund our operations, and our lendersldaccelerate any debt outstanding
thereunder. If our debt cannot be paid, refinararegktended at maturity, in addition to our failtoerepay our debt, we may not be able to
make distributions to stockholders at expectedideweat all. Furthermore, if any refinancing i@t higher interest rates, the increased
interest expense could adversely affect our cast &ind ability to make distributions to stockhoklekny such refinancing could also impose
tighter financial ratios and other covenants tloatld restrict our ability to take actions that abotherwise be in our stockholders’ best
interest, such as funding new development actiwitgking opportunistic acquisitions, repurchasingsmcurities or paying distributions. If»
do not meet our mortgage financing obligations, properties securing such indebtedness could leelfised on, which would have a
material adverse effect on our cash flow and gttititmake distributions.
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We may be subject to taxation as a regular corpor&n if we fail to maintain our REIT status . Our failure to qualify as a REIT
would have serious adverse consequences to olthsiders. Many of the requirements for taxatiomd&EIT, however, are highly technical
and complex. The determination that we are a REtjliires an analysis of various factual matterscaodmstances that may not be totally
within our control. For example, to qualify as alREat least 95.0% of our gross income must coramfcertain sources that are itemized in
the REIT tax laws. We are also required to distalio stockholders at least 90.0% of our REIT téx@icome, excluding capital gains. The
fact that we hold our assets through the Operd&srgnership and its subsidiaries further compl#te application of the REIT requireme
Even a technical or inadvertent mistake could jediga our REIT status. Furthermore, Congress aadRI$ might change the tax laws and
regulations, and the courts might issue new rulthgs make it more difficult, or impossible, for tssremain qualified as a REIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would be sulijéz federal income tax at regular corporate radso, unless the IRS granted us
relief under certain statutory provisions, we wordchain disqualified as a REIT for four years fallog the year we first failed to qualify. If
we failed to qualify as a REIT, we would have ty gagnificant income taxes and would therefore hHags cash available for investments or
for distributions to stockholders. This would likdlave a significant adverse effect of the valuewfsecurities. In addition, we would no
longer be required to make any distributions teldtolders.

Because provisions contained in Maryland law, ourlarter and our bylaws may have an anti-takeover eéct, investors may be
prevented from receiving a “control premium” for th eir shares. Provisions contained in our charter and bylawsyell as Maryland
general corporation law, may have anti-takeoveraéfthat delay, defer or prevent a takeover atteamgl thereby prevent stockholders from
receiving a “control premium” for their shares. Bample, these provisions may defer or prevemteeaffers for our common stock or
purchases of large blocks of our common stock, imiting the opportunities for our stockholdersrzeive a premium for their common
stock over then-prevailing market prices. Theseigions include the following:

. Ownership limit . Our charter prohibits direct or constructive ovaép by any person of more than 9.8% of our ontiitey
capital stock. Any attempt to own or transfer skarkeour capital stock in excess of the ownersiniit lithout the consent of o
board of directors will be void.

. Preferred stock. Our charter authorizes our board of directoriséoe preferred stock in one or more classes aastédblish the
preferences and rights of any class of preferrecksssued. These actions can be taken withoutisog stockholder approval.
The issuance of preferred stock could have theeffiedelaying or preventing someone from takingtoa of us, even if a
change in control were in our stockholders’ betdrists.

. Staggered board. Our board of directors is divided into three sks As a result each director generally servea fbree-year
term. This staggering of our board may discourdfg®for us or make an acquisition of us moreiclifit, even when an
acquisition is in the best interest of our stocklleos.

. Maryland control share acquisition statute. Maryland law limits the voting rights of “contrehares” of a corporation in the
event of a “control share acquisition.”

. Maryland unsolicited takeover statute. Under Maryland law, our board of directors coattbpt various anti-takeover
provisions without the consent of stockholders. @tleption of such measures could discourage dibenss or make an
acquisition of us more difficult, even when an asdion is in the best interest of our stockholders

. Anti-Takeover Protections of Operating PartnershipAgreement. Upon a change in control of the Company, thetéchi
partnership agreement of the Operating Partnergtifains provisions that require certain acquitonsiaintain an UPREIT
structure with terms at least as favorable to ithééd partners as are currently in place. Forainsg, the acquiror would be
required to preserve the limited partner’s rightomtinue to hold tax-deferred partnership interéisat are redeemable for capital
stock of the acquiror. These provisions may magbamnge of control transaction involving the Compargre complicated and
therefore might limit the possibility of such areaction occurring, even if such a transaction @dnd in the best interest of the
Company’s stockholders.



Table of Contents

. Dilutive Effect of Shareholders’ Rights Plan. On October 4, 1997, our board of directors adbpt&hareholders’ Rights Plan
and declared a distribution of one preferred sparehase right for each outstanding share of Com&took. The rights were
issued on October 16, 1997 to each stockholdexanfrd on such date. Since the rights would causstantial dilution to a
person or group that attempts to acquire us onstefvhich our board of directors does not apprsueh rights could
discourage offers for us or make an acquisitionsofore difficult, even when an acquisition ishie best interest of our
stockholders. The rights should not interfere waitly merger or other business combination the bofditectors approves since
we may redeem the rights for $.01 per right, ptaothe time that a person or group has acquiredfi@al ownershipf 15.0% o
more of the Common Stock.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

General

As of December 31, 2002, we owned 493 in-servifieafindustrial and retail properties, encompagsipproximately 37.1 million
rentable square feet, and 213 apartment unitsfdllesving table sets forth information about ourellig-owned in-service properties at
December 31, 2002:

Percentage of Annualized Rental Revenue (1)

Rentable

Market Square Feet Occupancy Office Industrial Retail Total
Atlanta 6,728,00! 83.(% 11.2% 3.2% — 14.2%
Research Triangl 4,340,001 81.¢ 13.¢ 0.2 — 14.C
Kansas City 2,512,00i(2) 94.t 4.3 — 8.€% 12.¢
Tampa 4,262,001 67.1(3) 12.2 — — 12.2
Piedmont Triac 8,371,00! 88.¢ 6.€ 4. — 11.5
Nashville 2,733,00! 87.7 10.1 — — 10.1
Richmond 2,764,00! 95.C 8.4 0.t — 8.8
Charlotte 1,729,00! 84.C 4.8 0.3 — 5.1
Memphis 1,215,00! 80.¢ 4.3 — — 4.3
Greenville 1,511,00! 86.¢ 4.2 0.2 — 4.4
Columbia 426,00( 67.4 1.1 — — 1.1
Orlando 340,00( 47.¢€ 0.6 — — 0.6
Other 181,00( 74.7 0.5 — — 0.5
Total 37,112,00 84.(% (3) 82.1% 9.2% 8.€% 100.(%

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2002 reata@inue (base rent plus operating expense passggtigpmultiplied by 12, and
excludes revenue associated with the rejected 8Q&qQuare foot Intermedia (WorldCom) lease on Déxeer@1, 2002.

(2) Excludes basement space in the Country Club Plamzepy of 527,000 square feet.

(3) The occupancy percentages have been reduced sislteofehe rejection of the 816,000 square fotedmedia (WorldCom) lease on
December 31, 2002. The impact on Tampa'’s occupandyT otal occupancy was 19.1% and 2.2%, respegtivel

8
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The following table sets forth information about eholly-owned in-service and development propsréie of December 31, 2002 and

2001:
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Rentable Percent Leased/ Rentable Percent Leased/
Square Feet Pre-Leased Square Feet Pre-Leased
In-Service
Office 25,342,00 82.5% (1) 24,945,00 91.%%
Industrial 10,242,00 86.2 10,640,00 91.¢
Retail (2) 1,528,001 97.C 1,636,00! 96.C
Total 37,112,00 84.(% (1) 37,221,00 91.9%
Development Completec— Not Stabilized
Office 231,00( 61.2% 1,490,00! 58.4%
Industrial 60,00( 50.C 200,00( 39.2
Retail — — 20,00( 90.C
Total 291,00( 59.(% 1,710,00! 56.5%
In-Process
Office 40,00( 0.C% 739,00( 74.%
Total 40,00( 0.C% 739,00( 74.%%
Total
Office 25,613,00 27,174,00
Industrial 10,302,00 10,840,00
Retail (2) 1,528,00! 1,656,001
Total 37,443,00 39,670,00

(1) The occupancy percentages have been reduced sislteofehe rejection of the 816,000 square fotedmedia (WorldCom) lease on
December 31, 2002. The impact on Office occupandyTatal occupancy was 3.2 % and 2.2%, respectively

(2) Excludes basement space in the Country Club Plamzepy of 527,000 square feet.

9
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Customers

The following table sets forth information concewpithe 20 largest customers of our whallyned properties as of December 31, 2
excluding revenue related to the rejection of thé,800 square foot Intermedia (WorldCom) lease endinber 31, 2002:

Avergge
Remaining

Percent of Total Lease

Number Rentable Annualized Annualized Term in

Customers of Leases  Square Feet Rental Revenue (1) Rental Revenue (1) Years

($ in thousands)

Federal Governmel 62 742,37¢ $ 14,89: 3.3t% 4.6
AT&T 8 617,47 11,66¢ 2.6t 4.9
Price Waterhouse Coope 6 297,79! 6,932 1.57 7.3
US Airways 6 414,05¢ 6,91( 1.57 4.9
State of Georgi 10 356,99: 6,78¢ 1.54 6.C
Capital One Service 6 361,96¢ 6,32¢ 1.4% 5.6
Sara Lee 10 1,230,53: 4,60k 1.04 24
IBM 7 216,50! 4,457 1.01 2.€
Bell South 11 212,01: 4,441 1.01 1.3
Northern Telecon 1 246,00( 3,23¢ 0.7z 5.2
WorldCom and Affiliates 15 166,86 3,20¢ 0.72 3.C
Lockton Companie 1 127,48! 3,117 0.71 12.2
Bank of Americe 23 152,01 3,00z 0.6¢ 2.3
Volvo 5 214,78: 2,97¢ 0.6¢ 6.6
Hartford Insuranci 6 134,02: 2,90( 0.6€ 3.3
T-Mobile USA 3 120,56 2,831 0.64 3.5
Business Telecor 4 147,37¢ 2,79% 0.65 2.4
Ford Motor Compan 2 126,04! 2,60¢ 0.5¢ 7.2
Carlton Fields 2 95,77: 2,47% 0.5€ 1.t
BB&T 6 157,29( 2,431 0.5t 7.8
Total 194 6,137,94. $ 98,59¢ 22.3t% 4.8

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2002 reatainue (base rent plus operating expense pasgytiwpmultiplied by 12.

10
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The following tables set forth information abowdeng activities at our wholly-owned in-service pedies (excluding apartment units)
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@. 200

2002 2001 2000
Office Industrial Retail Office Industrial Retail Office Industrial Retail
Net Effective Rents Related to Re-Leased
Space:
Number of lease transactions (signed lea 647 137 56 53¢ 107 44 801 174 71
Rentable square footage leased 3,201,34. 2,208,74. 176,52¢ 2,782,33. 1,524,227 125,99: 4,166,05: 2,373,24. 162,86t
Average per rentable square foot over the
lease term:

Base ren $ 1718 $ 41z % 2122 $ 17.2¢ $ 49¢ $ 21.0¢ $ 17.0t $ 464 $ 21.9¢
Tenant improvements (1.15) (0.3¢) (1.52) (1.10 (0.27) (1.1€) (1.20) (0.29) (1.4))
Leasing commissior (0.6¢) (0.15) (0.74) (0.70) (0.1)) (0.67) (0.50 (0.12) (0.60)
Rent concessions (0.26) (0.09 (0.02) (0.06) — (0.0€) (0.03) — —
Effective rent $ 15.0¢ $ 357 % 189 $ 15.3¢ $ 461 $ 19.2: $ 1532 $ 428 $ 19.9¢
Expense stop (1 (5.25) (0.25) (0.30) (3.84) (0.43) — (4.7€) (0.23) (0.03)
Equivalent effective net rent $ 981 $ 33z % 18.6¢ $ 115 $ 416 $ 19.2: $ 10.5¢ $ 4.0t $ 19.9¢

I I L& ;I | L& §m ___________§;§ |}
Average term in yeal 4.C 4.4 6.4 4.8 2.€ 7.5 4.€ 4.1 7.C
Rental Rate Trends:
Average final rate with expense pabssugh: $ 17.3¢  $ 434 % 158: $ 15.6¢ $ 4.7¢  $ 14.0¢ $ 155¢ $ 4.1€¢ $ 15.71
Average first year cash rental r: $ 16.2C $ 41C % 20.67 $ 16.3¢ $ 47z $ 18.0¢ $ 16.3: $ 44€ $ 19.8¢
Percentage (decrease)/increase (6.89)% (5.59)% 30.6%% 4.34% (0.80% 28.2% 4.9(% 7.2(% 26.6(%

Capital Expenditures Related to Re-leaset
Space:

Tenant Improvement:
Total dollars committed under signed leas $ 17,805,61 $ 4,169,061 $2,288,95. $ 17,234,77 $1,535,05. $ 1,526,55. $ 24,215,68 $2,279,12! $ 2,252,00:
Rentable square feet 3,201,34. 2,208,74. 176,52¢ 2,782,33. 1,524,271 125,99. 4,166,05 2,373,24. 162,86t

Per rentable square fo $ 556 $ 1.8 $ 1297 $ 6.1¢ $ 101 $ 1212 $ 581 $ 0.9¢ $ 13.8:

Leasing Commission:
Total dollars committed under signed leas $ 4,972,801 $ 1,070,93' $ 382,97 $ 7,64856 $ 468,96 $ 424,190 $ 9,398,691 $1,203,58 $ 530,43

Rentable square fe 3,201,34 2,208,74: 176,52¢ 2,782,33 1,524,271 125,99. 4,166,05. 2,373,24. 162,86t
Per rentable square foot $ 155 $ 0.4¢ $ 217 % 278 % 031 $ 337 % 226 $ 051 $ 3.2¢
Total:

Total dollars committed under signed leas $ 22,778,42 $ 5,240,00! $2,671,92! $ 24,883,33 $2,004,01. $1,950,74! $ 33,614,38 $3,482,71! $ 2,782,43!
Rentable square feet 3,201,34 2,208,74: 176,52¢ 2,782,33 1,524,271 125,99. 4,166,05. 2,373,24. 162,86t
Per rentable square foot $ 711 % 2371 % 1512 $ 894 $ 131 % 15.4¢ $ 8.07 $ 147 $ 17.0¢

(1) “Expense stop” represents operating expenses (@énircluding taxes, utilities, routine building@ense and common area
maintenance) for which we will not be reimbursedoby tenants.
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The following tables on pages 12 and 13 set fartieduled lease expirations for executed leasesratioolly-owned properties
(excluding apartment units) as of December 31, 2862uming no tenant exercises renewal optionsfdllesving scheduled lease expiratic
exclude the rejection of the 816,000 square fomtrinedia (WorldCom) lease on December 31, 2002.

Office Properties:

Percent of
Annualized
Average Rental
Rentable Percentage of Annualized Annual Revenue
Square Feet Leased Rental Revenue Rental Rate Represented
Number of Subject to Square Footage Under Per Square By
Lease Leases Expiring Represented By Expiring Foot for Expiring
Expiring Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2003 (2) 761 4,044,93 19.2% $ 70,36 $ 17.3¢ 19.2%
2004 49¢ 2,767,45! 13.c 49,61: 17.9¢ 13.7
2005 53¢ 3,331,79 16.C 59,29 17.8( 16.4
2006 324 2,843,86! 13.€ 51,58: 18.1¢ 14.Z
2007 24¢€ 2,024,25: 9.7 33,86« 16.7: 9.3
2008 10€& 1,998,95. 9.6 30,85! 15.4: 8.5
2009 40 838,81 4.0 14,041 16.7¢ 3.9
2010 38 841,05: 4.0 17,71 21.0¢ 4.9
2011 40 954,98t 4.6 18,57¢ 19.4¢ 5.1
2012 29 685,23 3.3 10,37¢ 15.1¢ 2.9
Thereafte 104 536,62: 2.6 6,18¢ 11.5: 1.7
2,72% 20,867,96 100.% $ 362,46: $ 17.3% 100.0%
Industrial Properties:
Percent of
Annualized
Average Rental
Rentable Percentage of Annualized Annual Revenue
Square Feet Leased Rental Revenue Rental Rate Represented
Number of Subject to Square Footage Under Per Square By
Lease Leases Expiring Represented By Expiring Foot for Expiring
Expiring Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2003 (3) 13t 1,711,92 19.5% $ 8,20« $ 4.7¢ 20.2%
2004 99 2,508,68 28.7 9,86¢ 3.9¢ 24.4
2005 76 1,099,77 12.t 5,34 4.8¢€ 13.2
2006 40 821,55« 94 4,50 5.4¢ 11.1
2007 38 1,630,86! 18.¢ 6,94¢ 4.2¢€ 17.1
2008 11 254,06 2.9 1,49¢ 5.9C 3.7
2009 8 318,81: 3.6 2,36¢ 7.42 5.8
2010 3 46,50¢ 0.5 34¢ 7.5C 0.¢
2011 2 35,47¢ 04 17¢ 5.0z 0.4
2012 2 44,44 0.5 25t 5.74 0.€
Thereafte 15 299,61 34 1,01¢ 3.3¢ 2.5
42¢ 8,771,72! 100.% $ 40,53 $ 4.6z 100.(%

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2002 reeta@inue (base rent plus operating expense passgttgpmultiplied by 12.
(2) Includes 195,000 square feet of leases that aseroantl-to-month basis, or 0.8% of total annualized reve



(3) Includes 469,000 square feet of leases that aeernanth-to-month basis, or 0.4% of total annualizenue.
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Retail Properties:

Percent of
Annualized
Average Rental
Rentable Percentage of Annualized Annual Revenue
Square Feet Leased Rental Revenue Rental Rate Represented
Number of Subject to Square Footage Under Per Square By
Lease Leases Expiring Represented By Expiring Foot for Expiring
Expiring Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2003 (2) 49 136,32¢ 9.2% $ 297 $ 21.8( 7.8%
2004 39 207,10: 14.C 2,77¢ 13.4( 7.3
2005 37 90,82! 6.1 2,681 29.5¢ 7.C
2006 33 101,04: 6.8 2,621 25.9¢ 6.
2007 39 116,91! 7.9 2,72: 23.2¢ 7.1
2008 24 123,45¢ 8.3 4,257 34.4¢ 11.2
2009 23 154,31° 10.4 3,55¢ 23.0¢ 9.3
2010 16 89,89( 6.1 2,57: 28.62 6.7
2011 18 73,39: 5.C 2,40(C 32.7( 6.3
2012 10 53,26: 3.€ 1,90¢ 35.8:2 5.C
Thereatftel 20 335,65’ 22.€ 9,65¢ 28.71 25.4
30¢ 1,482,18. 100.% $ 38,127 % 25.72 % 100.(%
Total:
Percent of
Annualized
Average Rental
Rentable Percentage of Annualized Annual Revenue
Square Feet Leased Rental Revenue Rental Rate Represented
Number of Subject to Square Footage Under Per Square By
Lease Leases Expiring Represented By Expiring Foot for Expiring
Expiring Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2003 (3) 94t 5,893,18: 19.(% $ 81,537 $ 13.8¢ 18.5%
2004 63€ 5,483,24! 17.7 62,25 11.3¢ 14.1
2005 64¢ 4,522,39I 14.5 67,327 14.8¢ 15.2
2006 397 3,766,45! 12.1 58,70¢ 15.5¢ 13.2
2007 32¢ 3,772,022 12.1 43,53¢ 11.5¢ 9.9
2008 1452 2,376,47! 7.€ 36,60¢ 15.4( 8.3
2009 71 1,311,94. 4.2 19,96¢ 15.22 4.t
2010 57 977,45( 3.1 20,63t 21.11 4.7
2011 60 1,063,85! 34 21,154 19.8¢ 4.8
2012 41 782,94 2.t 12,54 16.02 2.8
Thereatftel 13¢ 1,171,89! 3.8 16,85¢ 14.3¢ 3.8
3,46( 31,121,87 100.% $ 441,12 % 14.1% 100.0%

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2002 reat@inue (base rent plus operating expense pasgytigpmultiplied by 12.
(2) Includes 47,000 square feet of leases that arenoorgh-to-month basis, or 0.1% of total annualiedenue.
(3) Includes 711,000 square feet of leases that aeernanth-to-month basis, or 1.3% of total annualizsenue.
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Capital Recycling Program

The following table summarizes our capital recyglprogram during 2002 ($ in thousands):

Disposition Activity

Building Rentable Sales
Property Market Type (1) Date Sold Sqaure Feet Price
Romac Tampa (0] 01/10/0: 128,00 $ 20,20(
Parkway Plaza Building Nin Charlotte I 04/04/0: 110,00( 5,922
Alston & Bird Charlotte (@) 05/13/0: 45,00( 8,50(
7327 & 7339 West Friendly Avent Piedmont Triac I 05/21/0: 23,00( 1,272
International Place Il Memphis (0] 05/23/0: 214,00( 38,27(
Reo Building Tampa (0] 05/30/0: 76,00( 5,15¢
Amica and Arrowwoo( Research Triang| (0] 05/31/0: 78,00( 7,20C
4900 Main Building Kansas City (0] 05/31/0: 182,00( 29,00(
Twin Lakes Distribution Cente Charlotte I 10/10/0: 347,00( 10,35(
Brymar Building Kansas City (0] 10/18/0: 56,00( 2,53t
Eastshore I, Il, 1ll & Cat Financit Richmond/Nashvill (0] 11/26/0: 538,00( 90,03¢
Oakridge Office Parl Orlando (0] 12/18/0: 316,00( 22,17¢
Red Bridge Shop Kansas City R 12/18/0: 141,00( 7,00C
Brookfield YMCA Greenville I 12/31/0: 16,00( 1,05(C
Total 2,270,000 $248,66:

(1) O = Office
| = Industrial
R = Retall

Joint Venture Activity

On June 26, 2002, we acquired our joint venturéngas interest in MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC, whichwoed Harborview Plaza, to
bring our ownership interest in that entity from®® to 100.0%. At that time, we consolidated theetsand liabilities, and recorded income
and expenses of the entity on a consolidated basis.

On September 11, 2002, we contributed Harborvieazdto SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a newly forn@dt venture with a
different partner, in exchange for a 20.0% limipedtnership interest and $12.1 million of cash.
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Development Activity

The following wholly-owned development projects w@taced in service during 2002 ($ in thousands):

Placed In-Service

Month Cost at

Building Placed Rentable December 31,
Name Market Type (1) In-Service Square Feet 2002
Verizon Wireles: Greenville (0] Jar-02 193,000 $ 15,99¢
380 Park Plac Tampa @) Jar-02 82,00( 10,06¢
Innslake Richmond (@) Fek-02 65,00( 7,62¢
Holden Roac Piedmont Triac I Mar-02 64,00( 2,621
Centre Green Tw Research Triang| (@) Apr-02 97,00( 11,29:
Highwoods Tower | Research Triangl O May-02 167,00( 25,57(
Cool Springs II Nashville (@) May-02 205,00( 23,93:
North Shore Commons Richmond O May-02 115,00( 14,70:
Stony Point IlI Richmond (@) May-02 107,00( 11,86¢
ParkWest On Research Triangl O Jur-02 46,00( 4,63
1825 Century Cente Atlanta (@) Jul-02 101,00( 15,89¢
Hickory Trace Nashville @) Ser-02 52,00( 7,47¢
Met Life Building at Brookfield Greenville (@) Ser-02 115,00( 13,48¢
Newpoint IV Atlanta I Oct-02 135,00( 5,061
Centre Green Fol Research Triang| (@) Oct-02 100,00( 9,68:
1501 Highwoods Bouleval Piedmont Triac @) Nov-02 98,00( 10,31
Shadow Creek | Memphis (@) Nov-02 81,00( 7,28¢
GlenLake | Research Triang| @) Nov-02 158,00( 20,32(
Granada Shog Kansas City R Nov-02 19,00( 4,552

2,000,001 222,37

Placed Ir-Service and Solc
International Place |l Memphis @] May-02 214,00( 34,00((2)
Total 2,214,000 $ 256,37:

(1) O = Office
| = Industrial
R = Retail

(2)  Project was sold on May 23, 2002 for $38.3 million.
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In-Process

As of December 31, 2002, we were developing thubeidan office properties and one industrial progpeotaling 331,000 rentable
square feet. The following table summarizes theseldpment projects. In addition to the propentiescribed in this table, we are developing
with a 50.0% joint venture partner (and therefigaiot included in the following table) one addiiéd property totaling 285,000 rentable
square feet. At December 31, 2002, this developmexéect had an aggregate budgeted cost of $69li@mand was 56.5% pre-leased.

Rentable

Building Square Estimated Cost at Pre-Leasing Estimated Estimated

Name Market Type (1) Feet Cost 12/31/02  Percentage Completion  Stabilization
($ in thousands)

Office:
Catawba (2 Research Triang! O 40,00C $ 4,03C $ 2,10¢ 0% 2Q03 2Q04
Seven Springs | (¢ Nashville (@) 131,00 15,55¢ 13,37: 76 1Q02 3Q03
801 Raleigh Corporate Center Research Triang! O 100,00  12,01¢ 9,80z 42 4Q02 2Q04
Tradeport V (3 Atlanta I 60,00( 2,91z 2,851 50 4Q02 4Q03
Total or Weighted Average 331,000 $ 34,51F $28,12¢ 52%
(1) O = Office

| = Industrial
(2) Redevelopment project in process.

(3) Completed but not stabilized properties, which dboted in the aggregate $138,000 in net operatiogme in the fourth quarter of
2002.

Development Land

We estimate that we can develop approximately @8li&n square feet of office, industrial and ré&pace on our wholly-owned
development land. All of this development landased and available for office, industrial or retéglvelopment, substantially all of which t
utility infrastructure already in place. We beliebat our commercially zoned and unencumbered ilaedisting business parks gives us a
development advantage over other commercial réaleedevelopment companies in many of our marketg.future development, however,
is dependent on the demand for industrial or offigace in the area, the availability of favoralmlaricing and other factors, and no assurance
can be given that any construction will take planghe development land. In addition, if constructis undertaken on the development land,
we will be subject to the risks associated withstarction activities, including the risk that ocamgy rates and rents at a newly completed
property may not be sufficient to make the propertfitable, construction costs may exceed origgstimates and construction and lease-up
may not be completed on schedule, resulting iremeed debt service expense and construction expense

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are a party to a variety of legal proceedingsirag in the ordinary course of our business. Welse that we are adequately cove
by insurance and indemnification agreements. Adnghg, none of such proceedings are expected te bawaterial adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We reserved $2.7 million in September 2002 forghabable and estimated losses related to varigas pgoceedings from previously
completed mergers and acquisitions.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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ITEM X. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth information with pest to our executive officers:

Name

Ronald P. Gibson

Edward J. Fritsch

Gene H. Anderson

Michael F. Beale

Michael E. Harris

Carman J. Liuzzo

Mack D. Pridgen I

Age
58

44

57

49

53

42

53

Position and Background

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Gibson is one of our founders and has servaatesident or managing partner of our
predecessor since its formation in 19

Director, Executive Vice President, Chief Operat®ificer and Secretary.
Mr. Fritsch joined us in 1982 and was a partneswfpredecessa

Director and Senior Vice President.

Mr. Anderson manages the operations of our Gegrgiperties and the Piedmont Triad division
of North Carolina. Mr. Anderson was the founder anesident of Anderson Properties, Inc. prior
to its merger with the Compan

Senior Vice President.
Mr. Beale is responsible for our operations in ielar Prior to joining us in 2000, Mr. Beale was
vice president of Koger Equity, In

Senior Vice President.

Mr. Harris is responsible for our operations in fiessee, Missouri, Kansas and Charlotte.

Mr. Harris was executive vice president of CrodRealty Trust prior to its merger with us. Befi
joining Crocker Realty Trust, Mr. Harris servedsasior vice president, general counsel and «
financial officer of Towermarc Corporation, a piiely owned real estate development firm.

Mr. Harris is a member of the Advisory Board of &itors at SouthTrust Bank of Memphis, and
Allen & Hoshall, Inc.

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasur

Prior to joining us in 1994, Mr. Liuzzo was viceepident and chief accounting officer for Boddie-
Noell Enterprises, Inc. and Bod-Noell Restaurant Properties, Inc. Mr. Liuzzo iceatified

public accountan

Vice President and General Counsel.

Prior to joining us in 1997, Mr. Pridgen was a partin the law firm of Smith Helms Mulliss &
Moore, L.L.P. and prior to that a partner with AnttAndersen & Co. Mr. Pridgen is an attorney
and a certified public accounta
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The Common Stock has been traded on the New YatkSExchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “HIW” sinttee Company’s initial
public offering. The following table sets forth thaarterly high and low stock prices per share rtegloon the NYSE for the quarters indica
and the distributions paid per share during sucrtgu

2002 2001
Quarter Ended: High Low Distribution High Low Distribution
March 31 $ 28.30 $ 25.39 $ .585 $ 25.99 $24.00 $ 57
June 3( 29.36 26.00 .585 26.65 24.15 57
September 3 26.65 23.00 .585 26.67 23.45 .585
December 3: 23.30 18.70 .585 26.42 23.52 .585

On February 18, 2003, the last reported stock mridhe Common Stock on the NYSE was $21.00 pereshiad the Company had
1,690 stockholders of record.

The Company intends to continue to pay quartedyriiutions to holders of shares of Common Stoaktasiders of Common Units.
Future distributions by the Company will be at tligcretion of the Board of Directors and will dedean the actual funds from operations of
the Company, its financial condition, capital requients, the annual distribution requirements utiteREIT provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code and such other factors as the Bodbdaitors deems relevant. See “Management’s Ds&ensand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity &apital Resources — Distributions to Stockholders.

During 2002, the Company’s Common Stock distringitotaled $124,378,000, $28,430,000 of which ssared return of capital for
income tax purposes. The minimum distribution gerse of Common Stock required to maintain REITustgexcluding any distribution of
net capital gains) was approximately $0.90 peresiraR002 and $1.52 per share in 2001.

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment and StaothBse Plan under which holders of Common Stogketext to automatically
reinvest their distributions in additional sharé€ommon Stock and may make optional cash paynfentdditional shares of Common
Stock. The Company may issue additional shareafr@on Stock or repurchase Common Stock in the opket for purposes of
satisfying its obligations under the Dividend Re&istment and Stock Purchase Plan.

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Platl fiotive employees. At the end of each threetimoifering period, each
participant’s account balance is applied to acgslir@es of Common Stock at a cost that is calait&5.0% of the lower of the average
closing price on the NYSE on the five consecutiggdpreceding the first day of the quarter or the days preceding the last day of the
quarter. A participant may contribute up to 25.0Btheir pay. During 2002, employees purchased &/ sttares of Common Stock under the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financiadl mperating information for the Company as of tmmdhe years ended December 31,
2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 ($ in thousandspper share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Operating Data:
Rental revenu $ 45422( $ 469,27t $ 509,81' $ 54453( $ 483,33
Other income 21,71% 33,40: 22,89t 17,81¢ 12,18:
Total revenue 475,93 502,67¢ 532,71( 562,34¢ 495,52:
Rental property operating expen: (143,41 (144,685 (150,829 (166,389 (149,94)
Depreciation and amortizatic (126,639 (113,46 (113,189 (108,307 (88,629
Interest expens (110,52) (106,78 (111,10) (117,139 (97,01)
Cost of unsuccessful transactic — — — (1,500 —
General and administrative (includes $3,700 nonrawy
compensation expense in 20! (24,57¢) (21,390 (21,84) (22,339 (20,779
Litigation reserve (2,700 — — — —
Gain on disposition of land and depreciable as 12,24 16,17: 4,65¢ 8,67¢ 1,71€
Minority interest (9,65%) (16,687 (16,900 (19,36() (22,79¢)
Income from continuing operatiol 70,67 115,84. 123,50: 136,00« 118,08
Total discontinued operations, net of minority rets 23,167 16,08: 14,69¢ 9,43( 7,94¢
Extraordinary iten— loss on early extinguishment of de (37¢) (7149 (4,71 (7,34 (387)
Net income 93,46: 131,21: 133,48 138,09: 125,65(
Dividends on preferred shar (30,857) (31,500 (32,58() (32,58() (30,099
Net income available for common stockhold 62,60¢ $ 99,717 $ 100,90° 105,510 $ 95,55¢
Net income per common shar+~ basic:
Income from continuing operatiol 0.7t % 158 $ 1.54 16¢ $ 1.6C
Net income 1.1¢ $ 184 $ 1.7¢C 172 % 1.74
Net income per common shar+ diluted:
Income from continuing operatiol 0.7t % 158 $ 1.54 1.6 $ 1.6C
Net income 1.17 $ 18: $ 1.7¢C 1.71 % 1.74
Distributions declared per common sh 23/ $ 231 $ 2.2¢ 2.1¢ % 2.1C
Balance Sheet Data
Net real estate ass¢ 3,008,881 $ 3,165,27 $ 2,996,57 3,5653,68 $ 3,825,93!
Total asset 3,395,36! 3,648,28! 3,701,60: 4,016,19 4,314,33.
Total mortgages and notes paya 1,528,72 1,719,23 1,587,01! 1,766,17 2,008,71!
Redeemable preferred stc 377,44! 377,44! 397,50( 397,50( 397,50(
Other Data:
Cash flows provided by operating activit 201,48 $ 249,12¢ $ 256,40 23261 $ 263,77
Cash flows provided by/(used in) investing actes 195,58 (139,649 286,21: 160,36: (1,040,42)
Cash flows (used in)/provided by financing actast (386,63) (213,689 (472,329 (389,929 797,94!
Funds from operations (. 201,78t 238,00¢ 251,42: 244.23. 211,38¢



Number of ir-service propertie
37,112,00 37,221,000  36,183,00

492 562 65€

49¢ 49€
38,976,00 44,642,00

Total rentable square fe

(1)

We consider funds from operations (“FFO”) to besaful financial performance measure of the opeggtierformance of an equity
REIT because, together with net income and castsfl&FO provides investors with an additional bésisvaluate the ability of a
REIT to incur and service debt and to fund acqgois#t and other capital expenditures. FFO doeseprtesent net income or cash flows
from operating, investing or financing activities defined by Generally Accepted Accounting Prirespl*“GAAP”). It should not be
considered as an alternative to net income asdicaitor of our operating performance or to castvél@as a measure of liquidity. FFO
does not measure whether cash flow is sufficiefiitd all cash needs, including principal amorimatcapital improvements and

distributions to stockholders. Further, FFO asldsed by other REITs may not be comparable to aloutation of FFO.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and aralysconjunction with the accompanying consoliddieancial statements and
related notes contained elsewhere in this AnnupbRen Form 10-K.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Annual Report onRd.0-K may contain forward-looking statements. ISstatements include, in
particular, statements about our plans, strategidsprospects under this section and under tharge&Business”. You can identify forward-
looking statements by our use of forward-lookingri@ology such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “anticigte”, “estimate”, “continue” or other
similar words. Although we believe that our plaingentions and expectations reflected in or suggkby such forwardboking statements a
reasonable, we cannot assure you that our plaestions or expectations will be achieved. Whersa®ring such forward-looking
statements, you should keep in mind the followmgartant factors that could cause our actual resaltliffer materially from those
contained in any forward-looking statement:

. speculative development activity by our competifargur existing markets could result in an exoessupply of office, industri.
and retail properties relative to tenant demand,

. the financial condition of our tenants could deteate;

. we may not be able to complete development, adguisieinvestment, disposition or joint ventur@jpcts as quickly or on as
favorable terms as anticipated;

. we may not be able to lease or release space yuickin as favorable terms as old leases;

. an unexpected increase in interest rates woulé#aser our debt service costs;

. we may not be able to continue to meet our longrtéguidity requirements on favorable terms;
. we could lose key executive officers; and

. our southeastern and midwestern markets may sadiditional declines in economic growth.

This list of risks and uncertainties, however,a$ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also wetiee other cautionary statements we
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth elsewhe this Annual Report.

Given these uncertainties, we caution you notaeglndue reliance on forward-looking statements.utlertake no obligation to
publicly release the results of any revisions &sthforward-looking statements that may be madefliect any future events or circumstances
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated event

Overview

We are a self-administered and self-managed eREHl that began operations through a predecessi®#78. Since the Company’s
initial public offering in 1994, we have evolvedadrone of the largest owners and operators of &amuoffice, industrial and retail properties
in the southeastern and midwestern United StateBesdember 31, 2002, we:

. owned 493 in-service office, industrial and repaibperties, encompassing approximately 37.1 miltemtable square feet and
213 apartment units;

. owned an interest (50.0% or less) in 78 in-servifiee and industrial properties, encompassing axprately 7.8 million
rentable square feet and 418 apartment units;

. owned 1,308 acres of undeveloped land suitabléufare development; and
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. were developing an additional five properties, vahigll encompass approximately 616,000 rentableasg|feet (including one
property encompassing 285,000 rentable squardhfaetve are developing with a 50.0% joint ventuaetiper).

The following summarizes our capital recycling mang during the past three years ending Decembez(BR:

2002 2001 2000
Office, Industrial and Retail Properties:
(rentable square feet in thousan
Dispositions (2,270) (268) (4,749
Contributions to Joint Venture — (118) (2,199
Developments Placed-Service 2,21¢ 1,351 3,48(
Redevelopmer (52 — —
Acquisitions — 72 66¢
Net Change (10¢) 1,037 (2,799
Apartment Properties:
(in units)
Dispositions — (1,672) —

In addition to the above capital recycling actiyitye repurchased $4.8 million, $148.8 million arid®$.8 million of Common Stock
and Common Units during 2002, 2001 and 2000, reés@dy, and $18.5 million of Preferred Stock durig@01. This represents aggregate
repurchases of $273.9 million of Common Stock, Camrdnits and Preferred Stock since January 1, 2000.

The Company conducts substantially all of its atifig through, and substantially all of its intdseis the properties are held directly or
indirectly by, the Operating Partnership. The Conypia the sole general partner of the Operatingneship. At December 31, 2002, the
Company owned 88.4% of the Common Units in the @jreg Partnership.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of financial condi@mal results of operations is based upon our Cateelil Financial Statements
contained elsewhere in this Annual Report. Our Gbaated Financial Statements include the accooiitise Company and the Operating
Partnership and their majority-controlled affiliaté-or a discussion of our accounting policies wétspect to our investments in
unconsolidated affiliates, see “-Investments imtl¥ientures. The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires us 1
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities and thdabsice of contingent assets and liabilitie
the date of the financial statements and the regamounts of revenues and expenses for the negp@eiriod. Actual results could differ frc
our estimates.

The estimates used in the preparation of our Cateteld Financial Statements are described in Nodeolir Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 200&et4w, certain of our significant accounting paiire considered critical accounting
policies due to the increased level of assumptitsesl or estimates made in determining their impaaiur Consolidated Financial
Statements. Management has reviewed our criticawating policies and estimates with the audit cdtem of the Company’s board of
directors and the Company'’s independent auditors.

We consider our critical accounting policies tothese used in the determination of the reporteduantscand disclosure related to the
following:

. Impairment of long-lived assets;
. Allowance for doubtful accounts;
. Capitalized costs;

. Fair value of derivative instruments;
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. Rental revenue; and

. Investments in joint ventures.

Impairment of long-lived assetsReal estate and leasehold improvements are ckxbsi§i long-lived assets held for sale or as long-
lived assets to be held and used. In accordanteStatement of Financial Accounting Standards Md, 1Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, we record assetd far sale at the lower of the carrying amountair value less cost to sell. The
impairment loss is the amount by which the carrnangpunt exceeds the fair value less cost to séth W¥spect to assets classified as held
used, we periodically review these assets to détermhether our carrying amount will be recovenexhf their undiscounted future operating
cash flows and we recognize an impairment loshaektent we believe the carrying amount is nabverable. Our estimates of the
undiscounted future operating cash flows expeaidibtgenerated are based on a number of assumfitairese subject to economic and
market uncertainties including, among others, dehfanspace, competition for tenants, changes irketaental rates, and costs to operate
each property. As these factors are difficult tedact and are subject to future events that may alir assumptions, the undiscounted future
operating cash flows estimated by us in our impaithanalyses may not be achieved and we may b&edda recognize future impairment
losses on our properties.

Allowance for doubtful accounts.Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowancarfaunts that may become uncollectible in the
future. Our receivable balance is comprised prilpafi rents and operating cost recoveries due fremants as well as accrued rental rate
increases to be received over the life of the mgdeases. We regularly evaluate the adequacyméiowance for doubtful accounts
considering such factors as the credit qualitywftenants, delinquent payments, historical tremmtscurrent economic conditions. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under diffeassumptions or conditions. If our assumptregsrding the collectibility of accounts
receivables prove incorrect, we could experiendeevaffs of accounts receivable or accrued straligiet rents receivable in excess of our
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Capitalized costs. Expenditures directly related to both the deveiept of real estate assets and the leasing of giepare included
in net real estate assets and are stated at cib&t @onsolidated balance sheets. The developmpanditures include pre-construction costs
essential to the development of properties, devetay and construction costs, interest costs, statetaxes, salaries and other costs incurrec
during the period of development. The leasing egfiares include all general and administrative gostcluding salaries incurred in
connection with successfully securing leases omptbperties. Estimated costs related to unsucddssfees are expensed as incurred. If our
assumptions regarding the successful efforts ofld@ment and leasing are incorrect, the resultdjgsdments could impact earnings.

Fair value of derivative instruments.In the normal course of business, we are expos#teteffect of interest rate changes. We limit
our exposure by following established risk manag#rpelicies and procedures including the use ofvdéves. To mitigate our exposure to
unexpected changes in interest rates, derivatreeased primarily to hedge against rate movemantsuo related debt. We are required to
recognize all derivatives as either assets orliiegds in the consolidated balance sheets and tsore those instruments at fair value. Chal
in fair value will affect either stockholders’ etjubr net income depending on whether the derieatigtrument qualifies as a hedge for
accounting purposes.

To determine the fair value of derivative instrurisemve use a variety of methods and assumptionsthdased on market conditions
and risks existing at each balance sheet datehEanajority of financial instruments, including stalerivatives, standard market convent
and techniques such as discounted cash flow asabysiion pricing modes, replacement cost and tetitn cost are used to determine fair
value. All methods of assessing fair value resuli general approximation of value, and such vaiag never actually be realized.

Rental revenue.Rental revenue is comprised of base rent, recavénoen tenants which represent reimbursementsdidain costs as
provided in the lease agreements such as reaédatags, utilities, insurance, common area maimemand other recoverable costs, parking
and other income and termination fees which ralatpecific tenants, each of whom has paid a feertoinate its lease obligation before the
end of the contracted term on the lease.
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In accordance with GAAP, base rental revenue isgeized on a straight-line basis over the termh®fespective leases. This means
that, with respect to a particular lease, actualams billed in accordance with the lease duringgiaen period may be higher or lower than
the amount of rental revenue recognized for theogeAccrued straight-line rents receivable repnes¢he amount by which straight-line
rental revenue exceeds rents currently billed soetance with lease agreements.

Investments in joint ventures.As of December 31, 2002, our investments in undatesied affiliates consist of one corporation, nine
limited liability companies, five limited partneripls and two general partnerships. We account foiruestments in unconsolidated affiliates
under the equity method of accounting as we exesignificant influence, but do not control theséitees. Our unconsolidated corporation is
controlled by an unrelated third party that owngenthan 50.0% of the outstanding voting stock. \&eeha 50.0% or less ownership interest
in the unconsolidated limited liability companigslaunder the terms of the various operating ages¢sndo not have any participating rigl
We have a 50.0% or less ownership interest in tleensolidated limited partnerships and generahgaships. Although we have an interest
in two unconsolidated general partnerships andrergeneral partner in three of the unconsolidkmeited partnerships, under the terms of
the various partnership agreements, we do not t@veeol of the major operating and financial paiiof these unconsolidated partnerships.

These investments are initially recorded at castpaestments in unconsolidated affiliates, andsatisequently adjusted for equity in
earnings and cash contributions and distributidmg. difference between the carrying amount of thasestments on our balance sheet and
the underlying equity in net assets is amortizedraadjustment to equity in earnings of unconstidaffiliates over the life of the property,
which is generally 40 years.

From time to time, we contribute real estate agsed® unconsolidated joint venture in exchangeafoombination of cash and an
equity interest in the venture. We record a pagéh on the contribution of the real estate agsetise extent of the third party investor’s
interest and record a deferred gain to the exteatiocontinuing interest in the unconsolidateahjoienture.
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Results of Operations

On January 1, 2002, we adopted Financial AccourBitagdards Board Statement No. 144, “Accountingtferimpairment and
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, (“SFAS 144"). Assieibed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financiatédhents, we reclassified the
operations and/or gain/(loss) from disposal ofaiarproperties to discontinued operations if thepprties were either sold during 2002 or
were held for sale at December 31, 2002 and m#ineronditions as stipulated by SFAS 144. Accayljinthe operations and gain/(loss)
from those properties disposed of during 2001 d@@D2vere not reclassified to discontinued operation

The following table sets forth information regamgliour results of operations for the years endeceBder 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 ($
in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001
to 2001 to 2000
2002 2001 2000 $ Change $ Change
Rental revenue $454.2 $469.Z. $509.6 $ (15.1) $ (40.5
Operating expenses:
Rental propert 143.¢ 144 150.¢ 2.3 (6.2
Depreciation and amortizatic 126.€ 113t 113.2 13.1 0.3
Interest expenst
Contractua 109.1 104.¢ 108.€ 4.3 (3.9
Amortization of deferred financing cos 14 2.C 235 (0.6) (0.5)
110.8  106.¢ 111.1 3.7 4.3
General and administrative (includes $3.7 nonré@ogrrompensation expense in
2002) 24.¢ 21.4 21.¢ 3.2 (0.9
Litigation reserve 2.7 — — 2.7 —
Total operating expens 407.¢  386.¢ 397.( 21.4 (20.6
Other income:
Interest and other incon 13.€ 24.5 19.C (20.9 h.5
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia 8.1 8.¢ 3.6 (0.8 5.C
21.7 33.2 22.¢ (21.%) 10.5
Income before gain/(loss) on disposition of land depreciable assets, minority
interest, discontinued operations and extraordiitang 68.1 116.: 135.% (48.2) (19.9
Gain on disposition of lan 6.S 4.7 6.4 2.2 2.7
Gain/(loss) on disposition of depreciable as 3 11.F 2.7 (6.2 13.2
12.2 16.2 4.7 (4.0 11.5
Income before minority interest, discontinued ofieres and extraordinary ite 80.: 132.5 140.¢ (52.29) (7.9
Minority interest (9.6) (6.9 (16.9 7.1 0.2
Income from continuing operatiol 70.7  115.¢ 123.t (45.1) (7.7)
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriterest 12.2 16.1 14.7 (3.9 1.4
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest 10.¢ — — 10.¢ —
23.1 16.1 14.7 7.C 14
Net income before extraordinary ite 93.¢ 131.¢ 138.2 (38.]) (6.3
Extraordinary item —loss on early extinguishment of deb (0.9 (0.7 (4.7 0.2 4.C
Net income 93.4 131. 133.t (37.9) (2.9
Dividends on preferred shar (30.&) (31.5) (32.6 0.7 1.1
Net income available for common stockholder $ 62 $ 99.7 $100¢ $ (370 $ (1.2
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Comparison of 2002 to 2001Rental revenue from continuing operations decre&&&dl million, or 3.2%, from $469.3 million forgh
year ended December 31, 2001 to $454.2 millionHeryear ended December 31, 2002. The decreasprivegily due to a decrease
average occupancy rates from 91.6% for the yeazdbBacember 31, 2001 to 86.0% for the year endedmker 31, 2002. The average
occupancy decreased mainly due to tenant rollovérearly lease terminations at various propertiesre/vacant space was not re-leased due
to the lack of demand for office space coupled &ithincreasing supply of competitive space. Dutirggpast twelve months, approximately
2.0 million square feet of development propertieserplaced in-service which have leased-up slolar expected and as a result, have also
adversely affected the occupancy of our overalifplio. Rental revenue also decreased due to tipadtof dispositions during 2002 and
2001 that were not classified as discontinued dgjpermas more fully described in Note 10 of our Salidated Financial Statements.

In addition, as a result of the bankruptcy of Wxdn and its affiliates, we wrote off approximat&B.1 million of accrued straighine
rent receivable against revenue and since Julpd2,2ve have recorded rental revenue relating tdd@om and its affiliates on a cash basis
rather than on a straight-line basis.

Same property rental revenue, recorded in accoedartbh GAAP, generated from the 33.6 million squiaet of 460 wholly-owned in-
service properties on January 1, 2001, decrease@ $dllion for the year ended December 31, 2002mared to the year ended December
31, 2001. This decrease is primarily a result efdpsame store average occupancy, which decresmadB.0% in 2001 to 88.0% in 2002,
and a decrease in straight-line rental income pilynas a result of the bankruptcy of WorldCom atsdaffiliates.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, 840 segeneration leases representing 5.6 million sqfeseof office, industrial and
retail space were executed at an average rat@paresfoot which was 5.5% lower than the averatgepear square foot on the expired leases.

Rental operating expenses from continuing operat{oeal estate taxes, utilities, insurance, re@aismaintenance and other property-
related expenses) decreased $1.3 million, or Ot@%f $144.7 million for the year ended DecemberZI)1 to $143.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Rental operating expassepercentage of rental revenue increased frod8%3fdr the year ended December 31,
2001 to 31.6% for the year ended December 31, ZRincrease in these expenses as a percentegeeafie was a result of increases in
repairs and maintenance and certain fixed operatipgnses that do not vary with net changes iroocupancy average.

Same property rental property expenses, whichnerexpenses of the 460 in-service properties wimllged on January 1, 2001,
decreased $204,830, or 0.2%, for the year endedrbleer 31, 2002, compared to the year ended Dece3itb@001. Same property rental
property expenses as a percentage of related reveoneased 1.4% from 30.4% for the year ended Bbee 31, 2001 to 31.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The increase as a pegeasfteevenue was a result of increases in repatismaintenance and certain fixed
operating expenses that do not vary with net cheiimgeur occupancy average.

Depreciation and amortization from continuing opierss for the years ended December 31, 2002 antl 228 $126.6 million and
$113.5 million, respectively. The increase of $1r8illion, or 11.5%, was due to an increase in aipation related to leasing commissions
and tenant improvement expenditures for propepii@sed in-service during 2001 and 2002 and theevait of $5.8 million of deferred
leasing costs primarily related to the leases tegeby WorldCom at December 31, 2002, see —"Knovend's Affecting Results of
Operations”. These increases were partially ofiged decrease in depreciation for properties dsgha$ during 2002 and 2001 that are not
classified as discontinued operations in accordantteSFAS 144.

Interest expense from continuing operations in@eé&s.7 million, or 3.5%, from $106.8 million fdre year ended December 31, 2001
to $110.5 million for the year ended December 8D2 The increase was primarily attributable todberease in capitalized interest for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, which wasdillion and $16.9 million, respectively. Partifsetting this increase was
decrease in weighted average interest rates fra# i 2001 to 7.0% in 2002. The average outstandéig balance remained relatively
consistent for 2002 and 2001. Interest expensthéoyears ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 incltddmillion and $2.0 million,
respectively, of amortization of deferred financewsts and costs related to our interest rate healgeacts.
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General and administrative expenses as a perceotagel rental revenue (which includes rentalerave for discontinued operations),
interest and other income, and equity in earnirigsmoonsolidated affiliates was 4.8% in 2002 ar@¥&in 2001. Included in general and
administrative expenses in 2002 was a nonrecuadmgpensation of $3.7 million which was relatedhe éxercise of options during 2002.
When an option holder elected to exercise optionigeu of issuing new shares upon exercise offhtéon and then repurchasing shares ol
open market, we settled the option exercise bynggtfie option holder the net difference in cashvben the strike price and the market value
of the underlying shares. Such exercises were dedoss compensation expense under FASB Intermnetsith. 44 (Accounting For Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Options, An Interptieta of APB Opinion No. 25). Had we issued the slsap the option holder, received the
cash for the strike price and then repurchasedhhees in the market, we would not have been regtiir record any compensation expense
During 2002, we discontinued the practice of saitlhption exercises by paying the option holdemiéedifference in cash between the strike
price and the market value of the underlying shdrethe event we decide to repurchase sharesafteption exercise, we will require the
option holder to pay the cash for the strike peaod then separately repurchase a correspondingerwhbhares in the market under our s
repurchase program.

We reserved $2.7 million in the year ended DecerBlieP002 for probable and estimated losses retatedrious legal proceedings
from previously completed mergers and acquisitions.

Interest and other income from continuing operatidecreased $10.9 million, or 44.5%, from $24.3ionilfor the year ended
December 31, 2001 to $13.6 million for the yeareshBecember 31, 2002. The decrease primarily exbélom a decrease in leasing and
development fee income in the year ended Decenthe&2®?2 and a decrease in interest income in thegreded December 31, 2002 due to
the collection of notes receivable during 2001 2062.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates mased $848,662 from $8.9 million for the year eéhdecember 31, 2001 to $8.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Téerelse was primarily a result of lower lease teation fees and lower property
operating expense reimbursements in 2002. The aseia earnings was partly offset by lower inteexgtense incurred during 2002 as a
result of lower weighted average borrowing rates @rnings from certain joint ventures formed witirelated investors during 2002.

Gain on disposition of land and depreciable astetseased $4.0 million, or 24.7%, to $12.2 millfionthe year ended December 31,
2002 from $16.2 million for the year ended Decen8er2001. In 2001, the majority of the gain wampdsed of a gain related to the
disposition of 1,672 apartment units and a gaiateel to the disposition of 180.3 acres of land2002, the majority of the gain was compri
of a gain related to the disposition of 533,263asqueet of office properties, that did not meetaia conditions to be classified as
discontinued operations as described in Note tBeConsolidated Financial Statements, and a gtated to the disposition of 112.7 acre
land. The gain is partly offset by an impairmerstsl@f approximately $9.1 million recorded in 208fated to a property that will be partially
demolished and redeveloped into a class A subwffae property.

In accordance with SFAS 144, we classified netime®f $12.3 million and $16.1 million, net of miitgrinterest, as discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31, 2002@®11, respectively, which pertained to 1.9 millsguare feet of property sold in 2002
and 2.3 million square feet of property held fdess#t December 31, 2002. We also classified a®dtswed operations in 2002 the gain on
the sale of these properties of $11.5 million,afehinority interest, partly offset by an impairntemarge of $749,026, net of minority
interest, related to one property held for saletember 31, 2002n addition, in accordance with SFAS 66, “Accougtior Sales of Real
Estate,” we have deferred the recognition of addél gain of $6.9 million, $6.1 million net of minty interest, relating to the disposition of
225,220 square feet to a third party buyer dutiiregfourth quarter of 2002 for which we have guaradtthe buyer up to $20.5 million of
rental shortfalls or re-tenanting costs. See N8tefithe Consolidated Financial Statements.

We recorded $30.8 million and $31.5 million in mne€d stock dividends for each of the years endsteBber 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease resulted from the Cogipaepurchase of $18.5 million of its preferredcit during 2001.
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Comparison of 2001 to 2000Rental revenue from continuing operations decre&48db million, or 7.9%, from $509.8 million forgh
year ended December 31, 2000 to $469.3 millionHeryear ended December 31, 2001. The decreasprinerily a result of the n¢
reductions in our property portfolio as a resulbaf capital recycling program and a decrease @mage occupancy rates from 91.9% in 2000
to0 91.6% in 2001. The decrease in revenue wasypftlet by an increase in rental rates on neweleasd rollovers.

Same property rental revenue generated from tHerBRlion square feet of the 449 in-service projgsrivholly-owned on January 1,
2000, increased $6.7 million, or 1.7%, for the yeratled December 31, 2001, compared to the yeadddelgember 31, 2000. This increase
was primarily a result of scheduled increases maleates on existing leases, an overall increasental rates on new leases and rollovers
and an increase in recoveries from tenants. Pafifdgtting the increase in rental revenue was acdee in same store average occupancy
which declined from 94.2% in 2000 to 93.2% in 2@0H a decrease in termination fees from $4.0 miiv2000 to $2.5 million in 2001.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, 689 segemneration leases representing 4.4 million sqigsteof office, industrial and
retail space were executed at an average rateparesfoot which was 4.7% higher than the averatgeper square foot on the previous
leases.

Rental operating expenses from continuing operat{oeal estate taxes, utilities, insurance, re@aidsmaintenance and other property-
related expenses) decreased $6.2 million, or 4f@¥ $150.9 million for the year ended DecemberZI00 to $144.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Rental operating expeissepercentage of related revenue increased fadBia2for the year ended December
31, 2000 to 30.8% for the year ended December@11.2The increase as a percentage of revenue weasildof increases in real estate taxes,
utilities and other fixed operating expenses tlwahdt vary with net changes in our occupancy awerag

Same property rental property expenses, whichnerexpenses of the 449 in-service properties wimllged on January 1, 2000,
increased $5.3 million, or 4.4 %, for the year ehBecember 31, 2001, compared to the year endeenilEr 31, 2000. Rental operating
expenses as a percentage of related revenue iedrram 29.8% for the year ended December 31, 28930.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The increase as a percentageasfue was a result of increases in real esteds tatilities and other fixed operating
expenses that do not vary with net changes in ccupancy average.

Depreciation and amortization from continuing opierss for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2@8led $113.5 million and
$113.2 million, respectively. The increase of $879, or 0.3%, was due to an increase in the anabidiz of leasing commissions and tenant
improvements, partly offset by a decrease in that@ation on buildings that were sold as a resfuttur capital recycling program during
2001 and 2000.

Interest expense from continuing operations deerk&d.3 million, or 3.9 %, from $111.1 million fthre year ended December 31,
2000 to $106.8 million for the year ended Decen#ier2001. The decrease was primarily attributadke higher average outstanding debt
balance for 2000 and a decrease in the weightedgeeénterest rates from 7.5% in 2000 to 7.2% id12®artly offsetting this decrease was a
decrease in capitalized interest for the yearsaémiEember 31, 2001 and 2000 which was $16.9 mitliad $23.7 million, respectively.
Interest expense for the years ended Decembei081, &hd 2000 included $2.0 million and $2.5 milliezspectively, of amortization of
deferred financing costs and costs related torarest rate hedge contracts.

General and administrative expenses as a perceotagel rental revenue (which includes rentaleraves from discontinued
operations), interest and other income and equigarnings of unconsolidated affiliates was 4.0%001 and 3.8% in 2000.

Interest and other income increased $5.5 millior2&9%, from $19.0 million for the year ended Dmber 31, 2000 to $24.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The incressiéted from additional interest income earnedates receivable and leasing and
management fees earned from our joint venturend@001, partly offset by an adjustment relatethéoadoption of SFAS 133 (see Note !
the Consolidated Financial Statements) along wiitleioincome generated from our apartments whicleweld during 2001.
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Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliatesrewsed $5.0 million from $3.9 million for the yearded December 31, 2000 to $8.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Tloegase was primarily a result of the inclusiom @il year of earnings in 2001 for two
joint ventures that were formed with unrelated stees during May and December of 20

Gain on dispositions of assets increased $11.5omifftom $4.7 million for the year ended Decembgr 2000 to $16.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. During 2001, thegpyisource of the gain was the disposition of 1 &F&rtment units. During 2000, t
Jacksonville portfolio was sold at a loss, whichswéset by gains recognized on joint venture taatiens along with dispositions of land and
office, industrial, and retail properties.

In accordance with SFAS 144, we classified $16.lianiand $14.7 million, net of minority interests discontinued operations for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respgctivieich pertained to 1.9 million square feet adgerty sold during 2002 and 2.3 milli
square feet of property held for sale at DecembefB802.

We recorded $31.5 million and $32.6 million in mne€d stock dividends for each of the years endsteBber 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease resulted from the Cogip&18.5 million repurchase of its preferred stdcking 2001.

Known Trends Affecting Results of Operations

We expect our net income and funds from operatiore lower in 2003 than in 2002 due to the follogvfactors:

. lower average occupancy;

. lower than average re-leasing;

. lower than average first year cash rents;
. additional asset sales;

. the bankruptcy of two significant customers in 20&2d

. general economic conditions in each of our printagrkets.

In 2003, we expect occupancy to be lower than DR2frimarily due to the leases rejected by WorldGom US Airways. During
2003, the leases on approximately 5.9 million reletaquare feet of space, or 19.0% of our portfalitl expire. This square footage
represented approximately 18.5% of our annualiegdrue in 2002. As of March 1, 2003, approximad@y0% of this space had been re-
leased with existing tenants or leased to new tsnétistorically, we have renewed approximately080-75.0% of expiring leases with
existing tenants. We expect thisleasing percentage to be lower during 2003. Intamdiwe expect the average rental rate for exgiléase:
that have been renewed or released in 2003 tovier livan in 2002.

While employment trends in the majority of our metekhave begun to show signs of positive growt0id3, we do not anticipate that
this employment growth will lead to a correspondimgrease in demand for office space in 2003. Imipigpemployment in our markets will
not necessarily result in positive space absorgiggzause of the significant amount of under-utiligpace and space available for sublease in
our markets. Customers have indicated that theyfaréhe most part, unwilling to commit to spacgansion plans until they have a better
sense of the stability of the economic recoverthanU.S. and abroad.

In 2003, we expect to continue our capital recygrlimogram of selectively disposing of non-core gntips or other properties the sale
of which can generate attractive returns. See ‘idiggpand Capital Resources — Capital RecyclinggPam.” Although we intend to use the
net proceeds from asset dispositions to repay élaid, stockholder distributions and repurchase Com®tock, any net decrease in our
property portfolio generally tends to result in Enwnet income.
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On July 21, 2002, WorldCom filed a voluntary peititiwith the United States Bankruptcy Court seekéligf under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code. As of the filingejate had 17 leases encompassing 986,522 squéaie fifizen locations with WorldCom
and its affiliates. These leases represented $iiflion of annualized revenue and approximately¥?8 &f our total annualized revenue. As of
December 31, 2002, WorldCom has rejected two leasesmpassing 819,653 square feet with annualeezhue of approximately $14.9
million.

We have filed a claim in connection with thesectgd leases in the amount of $20.8 million. Acaalbunts to be received in
satisfaction of this claim will be subject to Wagldm's final plan of reorganization and the avaiipof funds to pay creditors.

In addition, there are 12 leases with WorldCom isdffiliates encompassing 38,624 square feetimMiller Global (“MG-HIW,
LLC") joint venture. WorldCom has not rejected asfithese leases.

On August 11, 2002, US Airways Group Inc. filed@duntary petition with the United States Bankrup@gyurt seeking relief under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy CodeofAke filing date, we had six leases with US Adgs encompassing 414,059 square feet
in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. These leasesasgpted $6.9 million of annualized revenue andagmately 1.47% of our total
annualized revenue. On February 20, 2003, the idtates Bankruptcy Court approved the terms afggaement between us and US
Airways whereby US Airways will continue to leas@32007 square feet of this space. Under this agegrerdS Airways has rejected two
leases encompassing 119,013 square feet with anediaévenue of approximately $3.1 million. Oneskeavas rejected effective February 1,
2003 and the second was rejected effective Ap@0D3. Additionally, we have agreed to a $600,@flction in annual rent on one lease,
encompassing 81,220 square feet and expiring orrleer 31, 2007, for the remaining term of the leBse Airways has neither accepted
rejected a 2,039 square foot lease that expirgd804.

We cannot provide any assurance that WorldCom oAld8ays will not reject any additional leases tloait we will be able to re-lease
rejected space quickly or on as favorable terms.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Statement of Cash FlowsThe following table sets forth the changes in tleenpany’s cash flows from 2001 to 2002 ($ in thoalsan

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activiti $201,48: $ 249,12¢ $ (47,649
Cash Provided By/(Used In) Investing Activiti 195,58 (139,64%) 335,23
Cash Used in Financing Activiti¢ (386,63) (213,68f) (172,949
Total Cash Flow. $ 10,447 $(104,20) $ 114,64!

Cash provided by operating activities was $201 /ianiin 2002 and $249.1 million in 2001. The dexse of $47.6 million primarily a
result of: (1) a decrease in average occupancy fateour wholly-owned portfolio; (2) a net decreds our portfolio as a result of our capital
recycling program; and (3) a decrease in interesirne and development and leasing income. In addlitihe level of net cash provided by
operating activities is affected by the timing e€eipt of revenue and payment of expenses.

Cash provided by investing activities was $195.Bioni in 2002 and cash used in investing activities $139.6 million in 2001. The
increase of $335.2 million was primarily a resdlaa increase in proceeds from dispositions of estdte assets of approximately $140.8
million in 2002 and a decrease in additions to esthte assets of approximately $221.1 milliond@2 primarily as a result of the decrease in
the development activity for that same period.

Cash used in financing activities was $386.6 millio 2002 and $213.7 million in 2001. The increass primarily a result of an
increase of $342.2 million in net repayments onuhsecured revolving loan, mortgages and noteshb@y@ 2002, partly offset by a decrease
of $144.0 million related to the repurchase of CamnrStock and Common Units and a decrease of $1#librmelated to the repurchase of
Preferred Stock during 2001.
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Capitalization. Based on our total market capitalization of $3/ldni at December 31, 2002 (at the December 3122806ck price of
$22.10 and assuming the redemption for shares wfin@mn Stock of the 7.0 million Common Units of miitpinterest in the Operating
Partnership), our debt represented approximate324 of our total market capitalization. Our totadébtedness at December 31, 2002 was
$1.52 billion and was comprised of approximatelt$5 million of secured indebtedness with a weidleteerage interest rate of 8.0% and
approximately $1.0 billion of unsecured indebtedngih a weighted average interest rate of 6.9%d@/eot intend to reserve funds to retire

existing secured or unsecured debt upon maturitlyafmore complete discussion of our long-termidiigy needs, see “Current and Future

Cash Needs.”

The following table sets forth the principal payrsedue on our longerm debt as of December 31, 2002, as adjustetthiéarefinancing
of the MOPPRS on February 3, 2003 ($ in thousands):

Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Fixed Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
MOPPRS (1 $ — 3 — 3 — $ — $ — $ — 3 =
Put Option Notes (Z 100,00( — — — — — 100,00(
Notes 706,50( 246,50( — — 110,00( — 350,00t
Secured:
Mortgages and loans payal 658,22( 11,731 14,91¢ 79,68¢ 17,50¢ 77,43¢ 456,93
Total Fixed Rate Det 1,464,72! 258,23 14,91¢ 79,68¢ 127,50¢ 77,43¢ 906,93
Variable Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
Term Loan 20,00(¢ — — 20,00(¢ — — —
Revolving Loar 57,50( 57,50( — — — — —
Secured:
Revolving Loar — — — — — — —
Mortgage loan payab 4,30¢ 24¢€ 26& 27¢ 292 3,22 —
Total Variable Rate Del 81,80¢ 57,74¢ 26E 20,27¢ 29z 3,221 —
Total Long Term Debt $ 1,546,52! $ 315,98! $ 15,18 $ 99,96¢ $ 127,80( $ 80,66: $ 906,93

(1)  On February 2, 1998, the Operating Partnership $b5.0 million of MandatOry Par Put Remarketedusiées (‘“MOPPRS”) due
February 1, 2013. The MOPPRS bore an interesofede335% from the date of issuance through Jan8ar2003. On January 31,
2003, the interest rate was changed to 8.975% patsa the interest rate reset provisions of theARRAS. On February 3, 2003, the
Operating Partnership repurchased 100.0% of tmeipal amount of the MOPPRS from the sole holderehbf in exchange for a
secured note in the principal amount of $142.8iamll The secured note bears interest at a fixeda®6.03% and has a maturity dat

February 28, 2013.

(2)  OnJune 24, 1997, a trust formed by the OperatartnBrship sold $100.0 million of Exercisable Pgtion Securities due June 15,
2004 (“X-POS"), which represent fractional undividieeneficial interest in the trust. The assethefttust consist of, among other
things, $100.0 million of Exercisable Put Optionté®due June 15, 2011 (the “Put Option Notas8led by the Operating Partners|
The Put Option Notes bear an interest rate of 7.&8®% the date of issuance through June 15, 20@4r Aune 15, 2004, the interest
rate to maturity on such Put Option Notes will b8%846 plus the applicable spread determined asred 16, 2004. In connection with
the initial issuance of the Put Option Notes, anteuparty was granted an option to purchase th®ption Notes from the trust on
June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the principal amourthdfcounter party elects not to exercise thisompthe Operating Partnership would
be required to repurchase the Put Option Notes fhanTrust on June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the grval@mount plus accrued and

unpaid interest.

Secured Indebtedness

The mortgage and loans payable and the securelirmy@an were secured by real estate assetsamithggregate carrying value of
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2002 as adjustedHerefinancing of the MOPPRS on February 3, 2003.
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Unsecured Indebtedness

The Operating Partnership’s unsecured fixed rateshof $806.5 million bear interest rates rangnognf 6.8% to 8.1%, with interest
payable semi-annually in arrears. Any premium asdadint related to the issuance of the unsecurazbsn® being amortized over the life of
the respective notes as an adjustment to intexpsinse. All of the unsecured notes, except foPiimeOption Notes, are redeemable at any
time prior to maturity at our option, subject tateén conditions including the payment of make-vehamounts.

We currently have a $300.0 million unsecured revghtoan (with $57.5 million outstanding at DecemBg&, 2002) that matures in
December 2003. Our unsecured revolving loan alslodies a $150.0 million competitive sub-facilityef@ending upon the corporate credit
ratings assigned to us from time to time by theouer rating agencies, our unsecured revolving lxears variable rate interest at a spread
above LIBOR ranging from 0.70% to 1.55% and ouused revolving loan bears variable rate interest spiread above LIBOR ranging from
0.55% to 1.50%. We currently have a credit ratihBBB- assigned by Standard & Poor’s, a creditngtof BBB-assigned by Fitch Inc. an
credit rating of Baa3 assigned by Moody’s InveService. As a result, interest currently accruebamowings under our unsecured
revolving loan at an average rate of LIBOR plus@Sis points. In addition, we are currently reqiit@ pay an annual facility fee equal
to .20% of the total commitment under the unsecuoegdlving loan.

The terms of each of our revolving loans and tlieiriure that governs our outstanding notes reggite comply with certain
operating and financial covenants and performaates. We are currently in compliance with all suequirements. Although we expect to
remain in compliance with the covenants and raticder our revolving loans for at least the nexesalvquarters, depending upon our future
operating performance, we cannot assure you thatilveontinue to be in compliance. We are currgmiégotiating with our lenders a
replacement of our current unsecured revolvingledrich expires in December 2003, with a new unsstrevolving loan that would
contain less-restrictive covenants. However, wanoaassure you that we will be able to obtain sush financing on acceptable terms, if at
all.

The following table sets forth more detailed infation about the Company’s ratio and covenant caanpé under the Company’s
revolving loan as of December 31, 2002 and 200tta®eof these definitions may differ from simil@rms used in the consolidated financial
statements and may, for example, consider our ptiopate share of investments in unconsolidatedlaéfs. For a more detailed discussion
of the covenants in our revolving loan, includirgfiditions of certain relevant terms, see the d¢ragieement governing our revolving loan
which is incorporated by reference in this AnnuapBrt as Exhibit 10.13.

2002 2001
Total Liabilities Less Than or Equal to 55% of TicAagsets 49.9 % 51.4 %
Unencumbered Assets Greater Than or Equal to Ztismsecured Del 2.25 2.16
Secured Debt Less Than or Equal to 30% of Totakts 19.1 % 18.3 %
Adjusted EBDITA Greater Than 2.25 times Interespé&nse 2.55 2.88
Adjusted EBDITA Greater Than 1.75 times Fixed Clea 1.88 2.10
Adjusted NOI Unencumbered assets Greater Thant@n2s Interest on Unsecured Dt 3.05 3.45
$

Tangible Net Worth Greater Than $1.6 Billi $ 1.7 bilior 1.8 billion
Restricted Payments, including distributions torshalders, Less Than or Equal to 100% of C 92.7 % 83.3 %

The following table sets forth more detailed infation about the Operating Partnership’s ratio anegnant compliance under the
Operating Partnership’s indenture as of DecembgP@02 and 2001. Certain of these definitions mégrdfrom similar terms used in the
consolidated financial statements and may, for gentonsider our proportionate share of investsmantinconsolidated affiliates. For a
more detailed discussion of the covenants in oderiture, including definitions of certain relevéenms, see the indenture governing our
unsecured notes which is incorporated by refereantids Annual Report as Exhibit 4.2.

2002 2001
Overall Debt Less Than or Equal to 60% of Adjustethl Asset: 39.3% 42.5%
Secured Debt Less Than or Equal to 40% of Adjustad| Assets 13.2% 13.2%
Income Available for debt service Greater Than 1iB@s Annual Service Chari 3.1 35

Total Unencumbered Assets Greater Than 200% of duimed Deb 294.2% 262.4%
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Current and Future Cash NeedsHistorically, rental revenue has been the princgeairce of funds to meet our short-term liquidity
requirements, which primarily consist of operatigpenses, debt service, stockholder distributiowscadinary course capital expenditures.
In addition, construction management, maintenaleesjng and management fees have provided sourcestoflow. We presently have no
plans for major capital improvements to the exgtinoperties except for the $1.8 million renovatidmTampa Bay Park and the $9.1 million
non-recurring renovation of Country Club Plazaatidition, we could incur tenant improvements amgéecommissions related to any
releasing of space currently leased by WorldCom@&dAir and the redevelopment of the EnvironmeRtaltection Agency site in Research
Triangle.

In addition to the requirements discussed abovesloort-term (within the next 12 months) liquidigquirements also include the
funding of approximately $15.2 million of our exigy development activity and first generation tdrimprovements and lease commissions
on properties placed in-service that are not fidhsed. See “Business — Development Activity.” \Wpeet to fund our short-term liquidity
requirements through a combination of working apitash flows from operations and the following:

. borrowings under our unsecured revolving loan @$205.9 million of availability as of March 6, 28)0
. the selective disposition of non-core assets cgralsets the sale of which can generate attragivens;

. the sale or contribution of some of our wholly-owrgoperties, development projects and developtaadtto strategic joint
ventures to be formed with unrelated investorscihiill have the net effect of generating additiorgpital through such sale or
contributions; and

. the issuance of secured debt (at March 6, 2003ade$2.5 billion of unencumbered real estate assetsst).

Our long-term liquidity needs generally include thading of existing and future development activitelective asset acquisitions and
the retirement of mortgage debt, amounts outstgnaiider the two revolving loans and long-term unset debt. We remain committed to
maintaining a flexible capital structure. Accordingve expect to meet our lortgrm liquidity needs through a combination of (19 fssuanc
by the Operating Partnership of additional unsetdebt securities, (2) the issuance of additiogaltg securities by the Company and the
Operating Partnership as well as (3) the sourcssrithed above with respect to our shierim liquidity. We expect to use such sources tet
our long-term liquidity requirements either throudjhect payments or repayment of borrowings underunsecured revolving loan. We do
not intend to reserve funds to retire existing sedwr unsecured indebtedness upon maturity. ldstea will seek to refinance such debt at
maturity or retire such debt through the issuarfeegaity or debt securities.

We anticipate that our available cash and cashvalgits and cash flows from operating activitieghwash available from borrowings
and other sources, will be adequate to meet outatamd liquidity needs in both the short and leegn. However, if these sources of funds
are insufficient or unavailable, the Company’siabtio make distributions to stockholders and $atidher cash payments may be adversely
affected.
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Joint Ventures. During the past several years, in order to gene@d&ional capital, we have formed various joiahtures with
unrelated investors. We have retained minority tygaterests ranging from 12.50% to 50.00% in thieg® ventures. As required by GAAP,
we have accounted for our joint venture activitingshe equity method of accounting, as we do ootrol these joint ventures. As a result,
the assets and liabilities of our joint ventures @t included on our balance sheet and the resfutigerations of the ventures are not inclu
on our income statement, other than as equityriniregs of unconsolidated affiliates.

On June 14, 2002, we contributed $1.1 million dasRlaza Colonnade, LLC, a newly formed limitedii&y company to construct a
285,000 square foot development property. The potgjkect costs are estimated at $70.6 million. \Weetretained a 50.0% interest in this j
venture, and have adopted the equity method ofustit for this joint venture. On February 12, 20B8za Colonnade, LLC signed a $61.3
million construction loan to fund the developmehthis property. The loan requires that the joiahture receive at least $9.3 million of
additional equity, $4.6 million of which will be oshare. We and our partners in this joint venhaee each guaranteed 50.0% of the loan.
The loan repayment guarantees are reduced upqnmdjeet reaching certain predetermined criteriaaddition, the guarantees are reduced to
25.0% of the loan balance. In addition to the camsion loan described above, the partners haveiged collectively $12.0 million in letters
of credit, $6.0 million by us and $6.0 million byropartner. During construction the joint ventwseequired to have in place the
aforementioned letters of credit.

On June 26, 2002, we acquired our joint venturéngas interest in MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC, whicwoed Harborview Plaza, a
205,000 rentable square foot office property, indour ownership interest in that entity from 3%.60 100.0%. At that time, we consolida
the assets and liabilities, and recorded incomeeapéenses on a consolidated basis.

On September 11, 2002, we contributed Harborvieazdto SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a newly forn@dt venture with a
different partner, in exchange for a 20.0% limipedtnership interest and $12.1 million in cash. Akkethe sole and exclusive property
manager and leasing agent of this joint venturedperty, for which it received fees of $60,794 602. The assets, liabilities and net income
from the SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP are includedhie table below. In addition, our partner in SBMHarborview, LP has the right to
put its 80.0% equity interest in the partnershipgdor cash at anytime during the one year par@mdmencing on September 11, 2014. The
value of the equity interest will be determineddzhapon the ten fair market value of SF-HIW HarlmmwPlaza, LP’s assets and liabilities.
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The following tables set forth information regamgliour joint venture activity as recorded on thafjaeienture’s books at December 31,
2002 and 2001 ($ in thousands):

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Percent Total Total Total Total
Owned Assets Debt Liabilities Assets Debt Liabilities
Balance Sheet Data
Board of Trade

Investment Compan 490% $ 7,77¢ $ 91¢ $ 1,071 $ 7372 $ 1,07¢ $  1,25¢
Dallas County Partne 50.0(% 44,12¢ 38,90¢ 41,28¢ 44,78¢ 35,49t 40,96"
Dallas County Partners 50.0(% 18,90( 23,58 24,87 19,89: 24,60 25,77¢
Fountain Thret 50.0(% 37,15¢ 30,95¢ 32,581 37,21¢ 26,04¢ 33,20(
RRHWoods, LLC 50.0(% 82,64¢ 68,561 71,767 82,74( 66,03¢ 69,09¢
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( 26.5% (1) 12,92¢ — 88¢ 16,22¢ — 802
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5(% 23,25¢ 17,38¢ 17,89¢ 23,97: 17,95¢ 18,62«
Schwei:-Deutschlan-USA

DreilanderBeteiligung Objekt

DLF 98/2¢-Walker Finl-KG 22.81% 141,14 68,20¢ 70,48: 143,96( 69,11: 70,97¢
Dreilande-Fonds 97/26 and 99/. 42.9%% 119,13« 59,68¢ 62,601 122,82( 60,00( 62,42:
Highwoods-Markel Associates,

LLC 50.0(% 16,02¢ 11,62¢ 12,58: 16,43¢ 11,62¢ 12,56:
MG-HIW, LLC 20.0(% 355,10: 242,24( 249,34( 353,53: 242,24 247 ,95(
MG-HIW Peachtree Corners llI,

LLC 50.0(% 3,80¢ 2,4942) 2,82t 3,50z 2,29¢ 2,44¢
MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC 50.0(% — — — 28,21 17,32 19,69t
MG-HIW Metrowest |, LLC 50.0(% 1,601 — 3 1,60( — —
MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC 50.0(% 9,60( 5,37%(3) 5,54( 8,68: 3,762 4,03¢
Concourse Center Associates,

LLC 50.0(% 14,89¢ 9,85¢ 10,19: 14,55: 10,00( 10,01¢
Plaza Colonnade, LL! 50.00% 3,591 —(4) 3 — — —
SF-HIW Harborview, LP 20.0(% 41,13¢ 22,80( 25,22¢ — — —
Total $ 932,83 $ 602,60 $ 629,15¢ $ 925,50( $ 587,57t $ 619,83:

(1) We decreased our ownership percentage in thig/drdin 30.00% at December 31, 2001 to 26.50% aebéer 31, 2002.

(2) Amount represents total draws at December 31, 2BQ2 construction loan made to this joint ventyreb affiliate of the Company
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis poiite July 2003.

(3)  $2.7 million of this debt has been guaranteed byGbmpany subject to a prorata indemnity from tben@any’s joint venture partner.

(4)  On February 12, 2003, Plaza Colonnade, LLC sign®gla3 million construction loan to fund the deyeteent of this property. The

loan requires that the joint venture invest $9.8iom, $4.6 million of which will be the Company’share. The Company and its part
in this joint venture have guaranteed 50.0% ofitlaa.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Year Ended December 31, 2001
Net Net
Percent Operating Depr/ Income/ Operating Depr/ Income/
Owned Revenue Expense Interest Amort (Loss) Revenue  Expenses Interest Amort (Loss)

Income Statement

Data:
Board of Trad¢

Investment Compan 49.0% $ 2,67($ 1,647 $ 83 $ 363$% 577$ 252¢% 16663 90 $ 311% 457
Dallas County Partne  50.0(% 11,04¢ 5,47( 2,66: 1,99¢ 91t 11,14¢ 490t  2,71¢ 1,88: 1,64f
Dallas County Partner

Il 50.0(% 5,94¢ 2,522 2,452 1,06z (88) 7,61¢ 2,750  2,55( 1,066  1,24¢



Fountain Thre« 50.0(% 6,88¢ 2,85( 2,145 1,51¢ 37¢ 6,741 291z  2,10¢ 1,67¢ 50

RRHWoods, LLC 50.0(% 13,74( 7,14t 3,39i(1) 3,61 (419 14,63: 6,95( 3,45¢ 3,29¢ 93C
%

Kessinger/Hunter, LLC 26.5((2) 6,867 4,92 — 682 1,25¢ 12,897 10,21( — 46¢  2,21¢

4600 Madison

Associates, LI 12.5(% 5,22¢ 1,954 1,25¢ 1,83¢ 17¢€ 4,72¢ 2,08¢ 1,294 1,58¢ (241)

Schweiz-Deutschland-

USA

DreilanderBeteiligun
Objekt DLF 98/29-

Walker Finl-KG 22.81% 20,337 5,54¢ 4,652 3,391 6,74¢ 20,30t 5,47¢ 4,712 3,28¢ 6,831

DreilanderFonds 97/2¢

and 99/3: 42.9% 16,85¢ 4,46¢ 4,63 3,96¢ 3,791 17,69 4,15¢ 4,58¢ 3,23¢  5,70¢
Highwoods-Markel

Associates, LLC 50.0(% 3,191 1,64z 1,032 562 (45) 3,21¢ 1,811 96¢& 66¢ (229)
MG-HIW, LLC 20.0(% 51,177 18,15¢ 10,74: 8,377 13,90: 50,457 17,58 15,41¢ 8,701 8,75/
MG-HIW Peachtree

Corners lll, LLC 50.00% — 55 — 44 (99 1 38 — — (37)
MG-HIW Rocky Point,

LLC 50.0(% 1,81: 55¢& 271 248 73¢ 18 — — — 18
MG-HIW Metrowest I,

LLC 50.0(% — 26 — — (26) — 21 — — (22)
MG-HIW Metrowest I,

LLC 50.0(% 30z 24C 50 24¢ (233 52 67 — 26 (472)
Concourse Center

Associates, LLC 50.0(% 2,11z 53¢ 681 302 591 66 16 41 — 9
Plaza Colonnade, LLt  50.0(% 9 — — 2 7 — — — — —
SF-HIW Harborview,

LLC 20.0(% 1,721 45¢ 432 28¢ 542 — — — — —
Total $149,90° $ 58,20( $ 34,49 $ 28,50¢ $28,71( $152,09: $ 60,647 $37,937 $26,21« $27,29¢

(1) Includes a $617,297 loss on early extinguishmelebt.
(2) We decreased our ownership percentage in thig/drdin 30.00% at December 31, 2001 to 26.50% aebéer 31, 2002.
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As of December 31, 2002, our joint venture had apprately $602.6 million of outstanding debt and fbllowing table sets forth the
principal payments due on that outstanding longitéebt as recorded on the joint venture’s book3egember 31, 2002 ($ in thousands):

Percent

Owned Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter

Board of Trade

Investment Compan 49.0(%$% 91¢ $ 17C $ 184 $ 19¢ $ 214 $ 152 $ —
Dallas County Partne 50.0% 38,90: 901 967 1,03¢ 4,42( 4,73( 26,841
Dallas County Partners 50.00% 23,58 1,12z 1,242 1,37¢ 1,52 1,68¢ 16,64:
Fountain Thret 50.0(% 30,95¢ 1,02¢ 1,104 1,187 1,27¢ 1,36¢ 24,99«
RRHWoods, LLC 50.0(% 68,56: 1,25¢  1,27: 403 431 4,24C 60,96
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( 26.5(% — — — — — — —
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5% 17,38t 664 711 762 81F 872 13,56(
Schwei:-Deutschlan-USA

DreilanderBeteiligung Objekt DLF 98/29-

Walker Finl-KG 22.81% 68,20¢ 967 1,03t 1,107 1,18¢ 1,26¢ 62,64"
Dreilande-Fonds 97/26 and 99/: 42.99% 59,68¢ 661 714 77C 831 897 55,81¢
Highwood«-Markel Associates, LL( 50.00% 11,62¢ 62 10C 111 12C 13C 11,10:
MG-HIW, LLC 20.0(% 242,24( — — —  242,24( — —
MG-HIW Peachtree Corners lll, LL 50.00%  2,4941) 2,49 — — — — —
MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC 50.0(% — — — — — — —
MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC 50.0(%  5,374(2) — — 5,372 — — —
Concourse Center Associates, L 50.0(% 9,85¢ 164 17€ 18¢ 202 217 8,911
Plaza Colonnade, LL! 50.0(% —(@3) — — — — — —
SF-HIW Harborview, LF 20.0% 22,80( — — — — — 22,80(
Total $602,60:(4) $9,48¢ $7,50f $12,51« $253,25! $15,56( $304,27¢

(1) Amount represents total draws at December 31, PBQ2 construction loan made to this joint ventyreb affiliate of the Company
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis poidte July 2003.

(2)  $2.7 million of this debt has been guaranteed byGbmpany subject to a prorata indemnity from tben@any’s joint venture partner.

(3) On February 12, 2003, Plaza Colonnade, LLC sign®@tla3 million construction loan to fund the deyeteent of a property. The loan
requires that the joint venture invest $9.3 millig4.6 million of which will be the Company’s shafidhe Company and its partners in
this joint venture have each guaranteed 50.0%eofdin. As of March 3, 2003, Plaza Colonnade, L€ borrowed $626,000 under
this loan.

(4)  All of this joint venture debt is non-recourse ®axcept in the case of customary exceptions pémntato such matters as misuse of
funds, environmental conditions and material misgepntations and those guarantees and loans debsanithe footnotes above.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities.To meet in part our long-term liquidity requiremgnive borrow funds at a combination of fixed and
variable rates. Borrowings under our two revoMiogns bear interest at variable rates. Our longrebt, which consists of long-term
financings and the unsecured issuance of debtitesutypically bears interest at fixed ratesattdition, we have assumed fixed rate and
variable rate debt in connection with acquiringgandies. Our interest rate risk management objedsivo limit the impact of interest rate
changes on earnings and cash flows and to loweowmmall borrowing costs. To achieve these objestifrom time to time we enter into
interest rate hedge contracts such as collars,sswaps and treasury lock agreements in ordertigaté our interest rate risk with respect to
various debt instruments. We do not hold or isbesé derivative contracts for trading or specutatiurposes.

The interest rate on all of our variable rate delourrently adjusted at one to three month intispaubject to settlements under these
contracts. We also enter into treasury lock agregsnieom time to time in order to limit our exposup an increase in interest rates with
respect to future debt offerings. Net paymentsotmeerparties under interest rate hedge contraets $415,051 during 2002 and were
recorded as additional interest expense.
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Share and Unit Repurchase Program During 2002, we repurchased a total of 194,798rnon partnership units at a weighted
average price of $24.79 per unit. Since commencéeonfesur initial share repurchase program in Decermi®99, we have repurchased 11.6
million shares of common stock and common unit atighted average price of $24.19 per share/ang fotal purchase price of $280.7
million. On April 25, 2001, we announced that then@pany’s Board of Directors authorized the repusehaf up to an additional 5.0 million
shares of Common Stock and Common Units. At Dece®be2002, we had 3.4 million shares/units renmagjninder our currently authoriz
additional 5.0 million share/unit repurchase progra

Capital Recycling Program.In 2003, we expect to continue our capital recyrfimogram of selectively disposing of non-core
properties or other properties the sale of whighgenerate attractive returns. At February 18, 2@@3had 2.3 million square feet of office
properties and 301.0 acres of land under lettémteht or contract for sale in various transactiaith a carrying value of $126.0 million.
These transactions are subject to customary clasingditions, including due diligence and documeotatand are expected to close during
2003. However, we can provide no assurance that glarts of these transactions will be consummated

We expect to use substantially all of the net pedsefrom our disposition activity for one or alltbe following purposes:
. reduce our outstanding debt;
. pay shareholder distributions; or

. repurchase Common Stock subject to the factorsiskenl above under “—Share and Unit Repurchasedmndgr

Distributions to Stockholders.To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdibute to stockholders at least 90.0% of REIT
taxable income. We generally expect to use our flashfrom operating activities for distributions shareholders and for payment of
recurring, non-incremental revenue-generating ediperes. The following factors will affect cashle from operating activities and,
accordingly, influence the decisions of the bodrdirectors regarding distributions:

. debt service requirements after taking into accadebt covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtedness;
. scheduled increases in base rents of existingdease

. changes in rents attributable to the renewal ddtirg leases or replacement leases;

. changes in occupancy rates at existing propertidsegecution of leases for newly acquired or dgwedioproperties; and

. operating expenses and capital replacement needs.

We have paid the following per share annual divideduring the past three years:

Year Per Share Dividend

2002 $ 2.3
2001 $ 2.31
2000 $ 2.2t
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Based on management’s current expectation of futpesating performance, we believe that cash avaifr distribution will
decrease in 2003 as compared to 2002 due to lamdsffrom operations and higher expected capifaeditures per square foot related to
the signing of new leases. Although we declaredpaid a per share dividend of $0.585 (annualizézlo$2.34) during the first quarter of
2003, we cannot provide any assurances as to wdtabdtions will be authorized by the board foe temaining quarters in 2003 and future
periods. If per share cash available for distritnuis less than $0.585 during one or more quaitie2603, the board may decide to use some
of the net proceeds from our anticipated dispasi#ictivity to maintain a per share dividend of 85.5However, all distributions will be ma
at the discretion of the Company’s board of diressend will depend upon the factors discussed above

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Aetimg for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAdsets.” SFAS 144
supercedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impamhof Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assietde disposed of” and the
accounting and reporting provisions for disposéla segment of business as addressed in APB 30ofkieg the Results of Operations-
Reporting the Effects of the Disposal of a Segneémt Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and ¢pfeatly Occurring Events and
Transactions.” SFAS 144 is effective as of Jandai3002 and extends the reporting requirementssebdtinued operations to include those
long-lived assets which:

(1) are classified held for sale at December 31, 2802 result of disposal activities that were ingthsubsequent to January 1, 2002
or

(2) were sold during 2002 as a result of disposal digts/that were initiated subsequent to Januag002.

Per SFAS 144, those long-lived assets which wdrkdiging 2002 and resulted from disposal actisiii@tiated prior to January 1,
2002 should be accounted for in accordance withSSE2AL and APB 30. We adopted SFAS No. 144 in Jgrafé2002. Income from
discontinued operations, net of minority interewd ¢he gain/(loss) on sale of discontinued openatioet of minority interest, for properties
meeting the criteria in accordance with SFAS Nal arke reflected in the consolidated statementsafme as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. See Note 10 to the Consolidréteshcial Statements for further discussion ondiscontinued operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Resimin of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, AmendofdhASB Statement No.
13 and Technical Corrections”, which rescinds St&tet No. 4, which required all gains and lossesifextinguishment of debt to be
aggregated, and if material, classified as an exdiaary item, net of related income tax effecte fnovisions of SFAS No. 145 related to the
rescission of Statement No. 4 are effective foarfitial statements issued for fiscal years beginaftegy May 15, 2002. We will adopt SFAS
No. 145 in the first quarter of 2003. We do noicipate that the adoption of this statement wilda material effect on our results
operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Actiogrfor Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes”, which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs assed with exit or disposal activities. This statetaullifies Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition fore@tain Employee Termination Benefits and Other €&sEXit an Activity (including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring”). Thendard is effective for disposal activities iniédtafter December 31, 2002. We will adopt
SFAS No. 146 in the first quarter of 2003. We dbantticipate that the adoption of this statemeiiitlveive a material effect on our results of
operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation M5 “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Reguients for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness ok@t,” which changes the accounting for, and d&ae of certain guarantees. Beginning
with transactions entered into after December B022certain guarantees are to be recorded atdhie, which is different from prior
practice, under which a liability was recorded ondyen a loss was probable and reasonably estimabdeneral, the change applies to
contracts or indemnification agreements that cgetimly require us to make payments to a guarantéetiparty based on changes in
underlying asset, liability, or an equity secudfyguaranteed party.
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While the accounting provisions only apply for ngansactions entered into after December 31, 20@2interpretation requires us to
include, and we have included, new disclosurelésé financial statements. We are assessing tteetrapthis interpretation on our
accounting for guarantees.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148¢ctlating for Stock-Based Compensation — Transgiot Disclosure”, which
amends FASB No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Basean@ensation”, to provide alternative methods ofdition for a voluntary change to
the fair value based method of accounting for stemked employee compensation. In addition, thersint amends the disclosure
requirements of Statement No. 123 to require prentidisclosures in both annual and interim findrsti@ements about the method of
accounting for stockased employee compensation and the effect of #tkad used on reported results. The standarddstefé for financia
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &fearember 15, 2002. On January 1, 2003, we will attapfair value method of accounting
for stock-based compensation provisions of Staté¢men123. In accordance with SFAS 148, we willlgghe prospective method of
accounting and will expense all future employeelstaptions (and similar awards) over the vestinggakebased on the fair value of the aw
on the date of grant. We do not anticipate thadthaption of this statement will have a materig&fon our results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation4$g.Consolidation of Variable Interest EntitiésI(N 46"),” the primary objective
of which is to provide guidance on the identificatiof entities for which control is achieved thrbugeans other than voting rights. (“variable
interest entities” or “VIEs”) and to determine whamd which business enterprise should consolithat&/tE (the “primary beneficiary”). This
new model applies when either (1) the equity inmes(if any) do not have a controlling financialdrest or (2) the equity investment at risk is
insufficient to finance that entity’s activities thout additional financial support. In additionNF46 requires additional disclosures. We are
assessing the impact of this interpretation ona@gounting for investments in unconsolidated jggrtitures.

Funds From Operations and Cash Available for Distrbutions

We consider funds from operations (“FFO”) to besaful financial performance measure of the opegatigrformance of an equity
REIT because, together with net income and castsfl&FO provides investors with an additional b&sisvaluate the ability of a REIT to
incur and service debt and to fund acquisitionsa@thdr capital expenditures. FFO does not repressrihcome or cash flows from operati
investing or financing activities as defined by GRALt should not be considered as an alternativeetincome as an indicator of our
operating performance or to cash flows as a meaduiguidity. FFO does not measure whether casW ik sufficient to fund all cash needs,
including principal amortization, capital improvente and distributions to stockholders.

Further, FFO as disclosed by other REITs may naidpeparable to our calculation of FFO, as descriidw. FFO and cash availal
for distributions should not be considered as a#tgves to net income as an indication of our penémce or to cash flows as a measure of
liquidity.

Our calculation of FFO, as defined by the Natioksdociation of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NARE as follows:

. Net income (loss) — computed in accordance with BAA
. Less gains (or plus losses) from sales of deprkrigterating properties and items that are clask#is extraordinary items under
GAAP;

. Plus depreciation and amortization of assets uhjcgignificant to the real estate industry; and

. Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peshigs and joint ventures (to reflect funds froneigtions on the same basis).

In addition, our calculation of FFO includes theldick of the transition adjustment of SFAS 133h@ésamount does not impact the
comparative measurement of our operating performanc
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Cash available for distribution (“CAD”) is defined funds from operations reduced by non-revenuaresiig capital expenditures for
building improvements and tenant improvements aadd commissions related to second generation.dpaagdition, CAD includes both
recurring and nonrecurring operating results. Assalt, nonrecurring items that are not defineteagraordinary” under GAAP are reflected

in the calculation of CAD.

FFO and cash available for distribution for thergeended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are stmechan the following table ($
in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Funds from Operations:
Income before gain/(loss) on disposition of land depreciable assets, minority interest, discoeti
operations and extraordinary ite $ 68,07¢ $116,35. $135,74«
Add/(Deduct):
Dividends to preferred sharehold: (30,857 (31,500 (32,580
Transition adjustment upon adoption of SFAS — 55€ —
Gain on disposition of lan 6,89/ 4,702 6,44¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 126,63t  113,46¢ 113,18¢
Unconsolidated affiliates
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ 30¢ — —
Depreciatior 9,61¢ 8,48: 5,581
Discontinued operations (1
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,13¢ 7,59¢ 6,25¢
Income, net of minority intere 12,31 16,08: 14,69¢
Minority interest 1,651 2,26t 2,091
Funds from operatior $201,78{ $238,00¢ $251,42:
Cash Available for Distribution:
Add/(Deduct):
Rental income from straig-line rents $ (3,672 $(11,257) $(14,89)
Nonrecurring compensation expel 3,70( — —
Litigation reserve 2,70C — —
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,39: 2,00t 2,51z
Nor-incremental revenue generating capital expenditi
Building improvements pai (7,94%) (8,34Y)  (10,56¢)
Second generation tenant improvements (20,537) (19,709  (22,28))
Second generation lease commissions (12,327 (15,69) (13,039
(40,799 (43,746  (45,88¢)
Cash available for distributic $165,11( $185,01: $193,15°

Per common share/common unit-diluted:
Funds from operatior $ 332 $ 38: $ 371

Cash available for distributic $ 272 $ 29 $ 2.8t

Dividends paic $ 232 $ 231 $ 2.2¢

Dividend payout ratios:
Funds from operatior 70.2% 60.2% 60.€%

Cash available for distributic 86.(% 77.€% 78.%

Weighted average shares/units outstan— basic (2) 60,37 61,83¢ 67,54«

Weighted average shares/units outstan— diluted (2) 60,63 62,18: 67,71t



(1)  For further discussion related to discontinued afens, see Note 10 of the Consolidated Finantaksents.

(2)  Assumes redemption of Common Units for shares ofilon Stock. Minority interest Common Unit holdensldahe stockholders of
the Company share equally on a per Common Unipandhare basis; therefore, the per share infoomaiunaffected by conversion.
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Inflation

In the last five years, inflation has not had asigant impact on us because of the relatively loflation rate in our geographic areas
of operation. Most of the leases require the tentmpay their share of increases in operating msge® including common area maintenance,
real estate taxes and insurance, thereby reducingxposure to inflation.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest ratesdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludes “forward-looking statements”
and represents an estimate of possible changas welue or future earnings that would occur asegrhypothetical future movements in
interest rates. These disclosures are not preuikesitors of expected future losses, but only iatics of reasonably possible losses. As a
result, actual future results may differ materiditym those presented. See “Management’s Discussidrnalysis of Results of Operations
— Liquidity and Capital Resources” and the notethtoconsolidated financial statements for a desoripf our accounting policies and
other information related to these financial instants.

To meet in part our long-term liquidity requiremgnive borrow funds at a combination of fixed andalde rates. Borrowings under
our two revolving loans bear interest at variablies. Our long-term debt, which consists of secaretlunsecured long-term financings and
the issuance of unsecured debt securities, typibathrs interest at fixed rates. In addition, weehassumed fixed rate and variable rate de
connection with acquiring properties. Our interasé risk management objective is to limit the ietpaf interest rate changes on earnings and
cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing co3is achieve these objectives, from time to timeanter into interest rate hedge contracts
such as collars, swaps, caps and treasury locleagats in order to mitigate our interest rate wgk respect to various debt instruments. We
do not hold or issue these derivative contractdréating or speculative purposes.

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $8&1ilion of variable rate debt outstanding that was protected by interest rate
hedge contracts. If the weighted average integgstan this variable rate debt is 100 basis pdiigfiser or lower during the 12 months ended
December 31, 2003, our interest expense woulddreased or decreased approximately $818,000.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See page F-1 of the financial report included Imerei

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART llI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The section under the heading “Election of Diregtaf the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetingstdckholders to be held May
19, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference fformation on directors of the Company. See ITEM)Part | hereof for information
regarding executive officers of the Company.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The section under the heading “Election of Diregt@ntitled “Compensation of Directorsf the Proxy Statement and the section ti
“Executive Compensation” of the Proxy Statementiacerporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The section under the heading “Voting Securitiess Rrincipal Stockholders” and “Equity Compensat®an Information’of the Prox
Statement are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The section under the heading “Related Party Tadimges” of the Proxy Statement is incorporated imeby reference.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requivgaketdisclosed in our annual and
periodic reports filed with the SEC is recordedygmssed, summarized and reported within the timegm®specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms. These disclosure controls and proceduretudtesr designed to ensure that such informasosccumulated and communicated to our
management, including our chief executive officed ahief financial officer, to allow timely decisis regarding required disclosure. SEC
rules require that we disclose the conclusionsuofGEO and CFO about the effectiveness of our assck controls and procedures.

The CEO/CFO evaluation of our disclosure contrald procedures included a review of the controlgéctives and design, the
controls’ implementation by the company and theefbf the controls on the information generateduie in this Annual Report. In the
course of the evaluation, we sought to identifyadators, controls problems or acts of fraud antbitdfirm that appropriate corrective action,
including process improvements, were being underta®ur disclosure controls and procedures areeaisluated on an ongoing basis by the
following:

. employees in our internal audit department;

. other personnel in our finance organization;

. members of our internal disclosure committee;

. members of the audit committee of our Board of Etwes; and

. our independent auditors in connection with thaitinand review activities.

41



Table of Contents

Among other matters, we sought in our evaluatiodet®rmine whether there were any “significantaeficies” or “material
weaknesses” in our disclosure controls and proesjar whether we had identified any acts of friawdlving personnel who have a
significant role in our disclosure controls andqedures. In the professional auditing literatusggriificant deficiencies” are referred to as
“reportable conditions,” which are control issuleattcould have a significant adverse effect orathikity to record, process, summarize and
report financial data in the financial statemeAtSmaterial weakness” is defined in the auditingidature as a particularly serious reportable
condition where the internal control does not rediaca relatively low level the risk that misstaets caused by error or fraud may occur in
amounts that would be material in relation to iharcial statements and not be detected withimalyi period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions.

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, doesxpsct that our disclosure controls and proceduiéprevent all error and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well coneéiand operated, can provide only reasonable,lrsatigte, assurance that the objective
the control system are met. Further, the desigtismlosure controls and procedures must reflectabithat there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be considereativel to their costs. Because of the inherent &tiahs in all control systems, no evaluation
of controls can provide absolute assurance thabpalirol issues and instances of fraud, if anyhinithe Company have been detected. These
inherent limitations include the realities thatguakents in decision-making can be faulty, and theakdowns can occur because of simple
error or mistake. Additionally, controls can becaimvented by the individual acts of some persopgdtiusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the control. The desigmgfsystem of controls also is based in part upotaceassumptions about the likelihooc
future events, and there can be no assurancerthatesign will succeed in achieving its stated gamlder all potential future conditions.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-aféeccontrol system, misstatements due to errdraard may occur and not be detected.

Based on the most recent evaluation, which was tetetpwithin 90 days prior to the filing of this Anal Report, our CEO and CFO
believe that our disclosure controls and procedaresffective to ensure that material informatielating to us and our consolidated
subsidiaries is made known to management, inclutiagcEO and CFO, particularly during the periocewlour periodic reports are being
prepared, and that our disclosure controls andeghares are effective to provide reasonable assaithat our financial statements are fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP.

Since the date of this most recent evaluationgthare been no significant changes in our interoalirols or in other factors that could
significantly affect the internal controls subsenfu® the date we completed our evaluation.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(@) List of Documents Filed as a Part of this Report

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Report afgaddent Auditors
See Index on Page F-1
2. Exhibits

Ex. FN Description

3.1 (1) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorhef Compan:

3.2 (2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Comg

4.1 (2 Specimen of certificate representing shares of Com8tock

4.2 3) Indenture among the Operating Partnership, the @ompnd First Union National Bank of North Car
dated as of December 1, 1€

4.3 4) Specimen of certificate representing 8 5/8% Seki€&umulative Redeemable Preferred Shi

4.4 (5) Specimen of certificate representing 8% Series Biative Redeemable Preferred Sh:

4.5 (6) Specimen of certificate representing 8% Series Bi@ative Redeemable Preferred Sh

4.6 (6) Specimen of Depositary Receipt evidencing the DitgrysShares each representing 1/10 of an 8% ¢
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred St

4.7 (6) Deposit Agreement, dated April 23, 1998, betweenGbmpany and First Union National Bank, as
preferred share deposite

4.8 @) Rights Agreement, dated as of October 6, 1997, dmtvthe Company and First Union National Bank, as
rights agen

4.9 (8) Agreement to furnish certain instruments defining tights of lon-term debt holder

10.1 2 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partiesdithe Operating Partnerst

10.2 4) Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement ofteihartnership of the Operating Partnershi
respect to Series A Preferred Ur

10.3 (5) Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedRartnership of the Operating Partnershi
respect to Series B Preferred Ut

10.4 (6) Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedRartnership of the Operating Partnershi
respect to Series D Preferred Ut

10.5 9) Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedRartnership of the Operating Partnershi
respect to certain rights of limited partners uparhange of contrc

10.6 (20) Form of Registration Rights and Lockup Agreemenvagithe Company and the Holders named therein
which agreement is signed by all Common Unit hai

10.7 (12) Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option

10.8 (8) 1997 Performance Award Pl

10.9 (12) Form of Executive Supplemental Employment Agreenhbetveen the Company and Named Executive

Officers
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Ex. FN Description
10.10 (13) Form of warrants to purchase Common Stock of the@amy issued to John L. Turner, William T. Wi
Il and John E. Reece
10.11 (14) Form of warrants to purchase Common Stock of the@amy issued to W. Brian Reames, John W. E
and Thomas S. Smi
10.12 (15) 1999 Shareholder Value PI
10.13 (16) Credit Agreement among Highwoods Realty Limitectfenship, Highwoods Properties, Inc., the
Subsidiaries named therein and the Lenders naneeelith dated as of December 13, 2!
21 (12) Schedule of subsidiaries of the Compi
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LL
99.1 Statement of Chief Executive Officer of Highwoodsgperties Inc
99.2 Statement of Chief Financial Officer of Highwood®perties Inc

(1)

()
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)

(16)

Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated September 25, 1997 and amended lnyesr8upplementary filed as
part of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-kedactober 4, 1997 and articles supplementarg fike part of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20, 199&teaf which is incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as part of Registration Statement 33-76938 thie SEC and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as part of the Operating Partnership’s CurRaport on Form 8-K dated December 2, 1996 anorpurated herein by reference.
Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om+8-K dated February 12, 1997 and incorporatedihdayy reference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated September 25, 1997 and incorporategirhby reference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated April 20, 1998 and incorporated heimjrreference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om+8-K dated October 4, 1997 and incorporated hdrgireference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Report omi&0-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 arafjiocated herein by
reference.

Filed as part of the Operating Partnership’s QuigriReport on Form 1@ for the quarter ended June 30, 1997 and incotgmizereir
by reference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Report omi-&0-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 arafjiecated herein by
reference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Quarterly ReporFonm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Report omi&0-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 arafjirocated herein by
reference.

Filed as part of Registration Statement 33-88364 thie SEC and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated April 1, 1996 and incorporated heitsjrreference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Report omi&0-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 arafjiocated herein by
reference.

Filed as part of the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated December 14, 2000 and incorporateeliinéry reference.

The Company will provide copies of any exhibit, operitten request, at a cost of $.05 per page.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

We filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Jan@aR003, reporting under Items 5 and 7(c) cenadtters related to
WorldCom'’s rejection of its lease at Highwoods Bres in Tampa, Florida.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&i{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedly authorized, in the City of Raleigh, StatéNerth Carolina, on March 19, 2003.

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC

By: /sl RoNALD P .G IBSON

Ronald P. Gibson, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing persons in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ O.T EMPLESLOAN, JR. Chairman of the Board of Directors March 19, 2003

O. Temple Sloan, Jr.

/s/ RoNALD P.G IBSON President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 19, 2003

Ronald P. Gibson

/sl EbwaARD J.F RITSCH Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officeecretary and March 19, 2003
Director

Edward J. Fritsch

/s/ JoHNL . T URNER Vice Chairman of the Board and Director March 19, 2003

John L. Turner

/s/ GENEH . A NDERSON Senior Vice President and Director March 19, 2003

Gene H. Anderson

/s| THOMASW . A DLER Director March 19, 2003

Thomas W. Adler

/s Kay N .C ALLISON Director March 19, 2003

Kay N. Callison

/s/ WiLLIAM E .G RAHAM , JR. Director March 19, 2003

William E. Graham, Jr.

/s/ LAWRENCES.K APLAN Director March 19, 2003

Lawrence S. Kaplan

/s/l L.GLENNORR, JR. Director March 19, 2003

L. Glenn Orr, Jr.

/s/ WILLARD H .SMITH , JR. Director March 19, 2003

Willard H. Smith, Jr.

Is/ F. WILLIAM V ANDIVER , JR. Director March 19, 2003

F. William Vandiver, Jr.

/sl CARMAN J.L 1UzZO Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Prirdifinancial Officer March 19, 2003
and Principal Accounting Officer) and Treasurer

Carman J. Liuzzo
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CERTIFICATION

I, Ronald P. Gibson, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kifhwoods Properties Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual report

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this amhveport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods
presented in this Annual Report;

The Registran$ other certifying officers and | are responsilaledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 19det4he Registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduressiare that material information relating to tagistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this
annual report is being prepared;

(b)  evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant'slaksire controls and procedures as of a date waidays prior to the
filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluatibate”); and

(c)  presented in this annual report our conclusionsitathe effectiveness of the disclosure controlsamodedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers and \vealisclosed, based on our most recent evaludatdhe Registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of Registrant’s board odators (or persons performing the equivalent fiongt

(@) all significant deficiencies in the design or opiena of internal controls which could adverselyeaff the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repadrfcial data and have identified for the registsaatiditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal controls; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officers and aandicated in this annual report whether or her¢ were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that cosignificantly affect internal controls subsequenthe date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions wiglgard to significant deficiencies and material wesdses.

Date: March 19, 200

/s/ RoNALD P. G IBSON

Ronald P. Gibson
President and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION

[, Carman J. Liuzzo, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kifhwoods Properties Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual report

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this amhveport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tessaf operations and cash flows of the Registeantf, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

The Registran$ other certifying officers and | are responsilaledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 19det4he Registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresdiare that material information relating to tregiRtrant, including it
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this
annual report is being prepared;

(b)  evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant'slaksire controls and procedures as of a date waidays prior to the
filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluatibate”); and

(c)  presented in this annual report our conclusionsitathe effectiveness of the disclosure controlsamodedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers and \vealisclosed, based on our most recent evaludatdhe Registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of Registrant’s board odators (or persons performing the equivalent fiongt

(@) all significant deficiencies in the design or opiena of internal controls which could adverselyeaffthe Registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repadrftial data and have identified for the Registsaantiditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the
Registrant’s internal controls; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officers and aandicated in this annual report whether or her¢ were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that cosignificantly affect internal controls subsequenthe date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions wiglgard to significant deficiencies and material wesdses.

Date: March 19, 200

/s] CARMAN J.L 1uzzo

Carman J. Liuzzo
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Highwoods Properties, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Highwoods Properties, Inc. as of Deeerdl, 2002 and 2001, and
the related consolidated statements of incomekitidders’ equity, and cash flows for each of theeéhyears in the period ended December
31, 2002. Our audits also included the financialeshent schedule listed in the Index at Item 15{lagse financial statements and schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s managent@uat.responsibility is to express an opinion orsthBnancial statements and schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audigtagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablaerasse about whether the financial statementsraeedf material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Highwoods Properties, Inc. at December 31, 2002284, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@@nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement scheedshen considered in relation to the basic fin@ngtatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information f&th therein.

In 2002, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidtadcial statements, the Company adopted theigioms of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for thgphirment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.

/S/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF
Raleigh, North Carolina
February 14, 200
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
($ in thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Assets:
Real estate assets, at ct
Land and improvemen $ 397,090 $ 405,64:
Buildings and tenant improvemet 2,870,03 2,858,66.
Development in proce: 6,841 108,27:
Land held for developme 176,17: 147,31¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 20,96¢ 19,39¢
3,471,11. 3,539,28!
Less— accumulated depreciati (462,229 (374,01
Net real estate ass¢ 3,008,88i 3,165,27
Property held for sal 124,05t 197,92(
Cash and cash equivalel 11,017 57¢€
Restricted cas 8,58 5,68t
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,450 $h®87, respectivel 13,57¢ 23,65¢
Advances to related parti — 78¢€
Notes receivabl 31,057 43,76
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl 48,77, 49,07¢
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 79,50¢ 83,39:
Other asset:
Deferred leasing cos 100,16¢ 100,42t
Deferred financing cos 26,12( 26,12:
Prepaid expenses and ot| 15,29¢ 10,46:
141,58: 137,00¢
Less— accumulated amortizatic (71,679) (58,859
Other assets, n 69,91( 78,14¢
Total Assets $3,395,36! $3,648,28
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Mortgages and notes payal $1,528,721  $1,719,23
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 120,61« 120,23!
Total Liabilities 1,649,33. 1,839,46!
Minority interest 188,56: 203,18:
Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 autbdrshares
8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSHhquidation preference $1,000 per share), 3%,
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,a8@D200] 104,94! 104,94!
8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Sayesiation preference $25 per share), 6,900,060
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2002 antl 172,50( 172,50(
8% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Sliagelation preference $250 per share), 400,0@0esd
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2002 antl 100,00( 100,00(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares; 53,400,195 and 52,891,822 shares issadec
outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respéc 534 52¢
Additional paic-in capital 1,390,04. 1,376,541
Distributions in excess of net earnir (197,64) (135,879
Accumulated other comprehensive | (9,209 (9,44))
Deferred compensatic- restricted stocl (3,699 (3,56))
Total Stockholder Equity 1,557,47. 1,605,64



Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $3,395,36! $3,648,28!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

($ in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@ 200

Rental revenue

Operating expenses:
Rental propert
Depreciation and amortizatic
Interest expenst
Contractua
Amortization of deferred financing cos

General and administrative (includes $3,700 nonré@icompensation expense in 20
Litigation reserve

Total operating expens

Other income:
Interest and other incon
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Income before gain/(loss) on disposition of land depreciable assets, minority interest,
discontinued operations and extraordinary i

Gain on disposition of lan
Gain/(loss) on disposition of depreciable as

Income before minority interest, discontinued ofierss and extraordinary ite
Minority interest

Income from continuing operatiol

Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriterest
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomity interest

Net income before extraordinary ite
Extraordinary item — loss on early extinguishment 6debt

Net income
Dividends on preferred shar

Net income available for common stockhold

Net income per common share — basic:
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatic
Extraordinary iten— loss on early extinguishment of de

2002 2001 2000
$454,22( $ 469,27t $509,81"
143,41  144,68° 150,82
126,63t  113,46(  113,18¢
109,13« 104,77 108,59
1,39: 2,00t 2,51z
110,52°  106,78;  111,10°
2457¢  21,39( 21,84
2,70( — —
407,85¢ 386,32 396,96
13,65(  24,49:  19,03:
8,06: 8,911 3,86:
21,71 33,40 22,89
68,07¢ 116,35 135,74«
6,89 4,702 6,44¢
5,35: 11,47¢ (1,790
80,32t  132,52! 140,40
(9,659 (16,689 (16,900
70,67:  11584; 123,50
12,31 16,08: 14,69t
10,85¢ — —
23,16’ 16,08: 14,69t
93,83¢  131,92¢ 138,19
(379) (714  (4,71)
93,467 13121 133,48
(30,85) (31,500 (32,580
$ 62,60¢ $ 99,71: $100,90°
$ 078 $ 158 $ 154
0.44 0.3( 0.24
(0.01) (0.01) (0.0¢)




Net income $ 118 $ 18 $ 1.7C
Weighted average common shares outstar— basic 53,22¢ 54,22¢ 59,17¢
Net income per common shar+ diluted:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 078 $ 15t $ 154
Income from discontinued operatic 0.4z 0.2¢ 0.24
Extraordinary iten— loss on early extinguishment of de (0.01) (0.01 (0.08)
Net income $ 117 $ 18 $ 1.7C
Weighted average common shares outstar- diluted 53,48t 54,57 59,347
Distributions declared per common sh $ 234 $ 231 $ 2.2t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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Balance abDecember 31, 19¢
Issuance of Common Sto
Common Stock dividends
Preferred Stock dividenc
Issuance of restricted stock

Amortization of deferred
compensation

Repurchase of Common Stc
Net Income

Balance abDecember 31, 20C
Issuance of Common Sto
Common Stock dividends
Preferred Stock dividenc
Issuance of restricted stock

Amortization of deferred
compensation

Repurchase of Common Stc
Repurchase of Preferred Stc
Other comprehensive loss
Net Income

Balance abDecember 31, 20C
Issuance of Common Sto

Conversion of Common Unit
to Common Stocl

Common Stock dividends
Preferred Stock dividenc
Issuance of restricted stock

Amortization of deferred
compensation

Repurchase of Common Stc
Other comprehensive incom
Net Income

Balance aDecember 31, 20C

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(% in thousands, except for number of common shares
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@ 200

Accum. Retained
Other Earnings
Number of Additional Deferred Compre-  (Distributions
Common Common Series A Series B Series D Paid-In Compen hensive in Excess of

Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Preferred Capital sation Loss Net Earnings) Total
60,918,61 $ 60¢ $ 125,00( $ 172,50 $ 100,00 $ 1,572,03. $ — 3 —  $ (77,670 $ 1,892,447
81,73: — — — — 74¢ — — — 74¢
— — — — — — — — (133,441) (133,44¢)
— — — — — — — — (32,580) (32,580)
104,94! 1 — — — 2,557 (3,049 — — (492)
— — — — — — 561 — — 561
(2,981,08)) (29) — — — (69,17¢) — — — (69,20%)
— — — — — — — — 133,48 133,48
58,124,20 581 125,00( 172,50( 100,00( 1,506,16: (2,489 — (110,209 1,791,54!
72,25¢ — — — — 1,42¢ — — — 1,42¢
— — — — — — — — (125,38() (125,38()
— — — — — — — — (31,500 (31,500
84,66 — — — — 2,10¢ (2,109 — — —
— — — — — — 1,03¢ — — 1,03¢
(5,389,30i) (52 — — — (134,709 — — — (134,759
— — (20,059 — — 1,55¢ — — — (18,507
— — — — = = = (9,449 — (9,441
— — — — — — — — 131,21: 131,21:
52,891,82 52¢ 104,94! 172,50( 100,00( 1,376,541 (3,56)) (9,447 (135,879) 1,605,641
249,29 2 — — — 5,78¢ — — — 5,78¢
257,12: 3 — — — 7,471 — — — 7,47¢
— — — — — — — — (124,379 (124,379
— — — — — — — — (30,857) (30,857)
48,56 — — — — 1,41 (1,419 — — —
— — — — — — 1,27¢ — — 1,27¢
(46,607 — — — — (1,179 — — — (1,179
— — — — — — — 237 — 237
— — — — — — — — 93,46 93,46
53,400,19 $ 534 $ 104,94¢ $ 172,50 $ 100,00 $ 1,390,04. $ (3,699 $ (9,209 $ (197,64) $ 1,557,47.
L §§ | I I I L] I L] I I

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(% in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@ 200

2002 2001 2000
Operating activities:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 70,67: $ 115,84: $ 123,50:
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing r@piens to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciatior 108,41¢ 100,45! 102,63(
Amortization of lease commissio 18,22( 13,01 10,55¢
Amortization of deferred compensati 1,27¢ 1,03¢ 561
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,39: 2,00t 2,51z
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive 1,54: 1,56¢ —
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (8,069 (8,917 (3,869
Gain on disposition of land and depreciable as (12,247 (16,177) (4,659
Minority interest 9,65: 16,68: 16,90(
Transition loss upon adoption of SFAS 1 — 55€ —
Loss on ineffective portion of derivative instrunte — 55¢ —
Discontinued operatior 21,10: 25,947 23,04(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 10,08¢ (4549) (1,156
Prepaid expenses and other as (7,73)) (2,07¢) 3,38¢
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl (3,349 (11,257 (14,897
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied (9,495 10,33¢ (2,12))
Net cash provided by operating activit 201,48! 249,12¢ 256,40(
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate ass (130,87() (351,98 (423,24)
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as 302,20! 161,38¢ 729,94!
Repayments from/(advances to) subsidie 78¢€ 27,57( (12,469
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliat 11,201 9,72z 3,03(
Investments in notes receival 12,70« 37,157 (15,559
Other investing activitie (4439 (23,500 4,50z
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activi 195,58 (139,645 286,21
Financing activities:
Distributions paid on common stock and common (141,17¢ (142,889 (151,89
Dividends paid on preferred sto (30,857 (31,500 (32,580
Repurchase of preferred stc — (18,507 —
Net proceeds from the sale of common si 5,78¢ 1,42¢ 74¢
Repurchase of common stock and common 1 (4,837 (148,78) (101,81)
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ (37¢) (7149 (4,717
Borrowings on revolving loar 211,50( 594,00 546,00(
Repayment of revolving loat (382,50() (365,50() (775,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi 51,733 76,707 218,16:
Repayment of mortgages and notes pay (94,619 (176,919 (168,26()
Net change in deferred financing cc (1,305 (1,010 (2,985
Net cash used in financing activiti (386,63) (213,68Y) (472,329
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 10,44 (104,204 70,28¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ¢b 57€ 104,78 34,49¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pi $ 11017 $ 57€¢ $ 104,78(




Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 116,96 $ 122,04t $ 130,89¢

L] L] I
See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

F-6



Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(% in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@ 200

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

The following table summarizes the net assets itated by the holders of Common Units in the OpegaPartnership, the net assets
acquired subject to mortgage notes payable and ntrecash equity transactions:

2002 2001 2000
Assets:
Notes receivabl $ — $ — $ 637
Accounts receivabl 13¢ — —
Net real estate asst 43,14¢ 6,51¢ (56,055
Cash and cash equivalel 358 40 —
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat (1,179 — 48,05
$42,46¢ $6,55¢ $ (1,629
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payal $23,36¢ $3,92: $ —
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritied 18,50¢ 73 —
41,87+ 3,99t —
Equity: $ 59z $2,561 $ (1,629

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2002

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P OLICIES

Description of the Company

Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) is &-selministered and self-managed real estate imvastinust (“REIT”) that operates
in the southeastern and midwestern United States.Cobmpany’s wholly-owned assets include: 493 mise office, industrial and retail
properties; 213 apartment units; 1,308 acres oéueldped land suitable for future development; amédditional four properties under
development.

The Company conducts substantially all of its atiéis through, and substantially all of its intescis the properties are held directly or
indirectly by, Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersiiipe “Operating Partnership”). The Company issbke general partner of the Operating
Partnership. At December 31, 2002, the Company dv@8e4% of the common partnership interests (“Comidoits”) in the Operating
Partnership. Limited partners (including certaifiogfrs and directors of the Company) own the remgilCommon Units. Holders of
Common Units may redeem them for the cash valwmefshare of the Company’s Common Stock, $.01 gaeythe “Common Stock”), or,
at the Company’s option, one share of Common Stock.

Generally, the Operating Partnership is obligatedttieem each Common Unit at the request of thdehtthereof for cash equal to the
fair market value of one share of the Company’s @om Stock at the time of such redemption, provitthed the Company at its option may
elect to acquire any such Common Unit presentedefdemption for cash or one share of Common Stwtwttlen a Common Unit holder
redeems a Common Unit for a share of Common Stoclkgh, the minority interest will be reduced dmel Company’s share in the Operating
Partnership will be increased. The Common UnitsexMoy the Company are not redeemable for cash.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of the Company and the Operating Partreesid its majority-owned
affiliates. All significant intercompany balancesdaransactions have been eliminated in the catesigld financial statements.

The Company has elected and expects to contingediify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 86thefinternal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. Therefore, no provision has ineele for income taxes related to REIT taxable iretonbe distributed to stockholders.

Minority interest represents Common Units in thee@ping Partnership owned by various individuald antities other than the
Company. The Operating Partnership is the enty thvns substantially all of the Company’s progartind through which the Company, as
the sole general partner, conducts substantidllyf étis operations. Per share information is ciltad using the weighted average number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding (including comsitre equivalents). In addition, minority intéiesludes equity of consolidated real
estate partnerships which are owned by variouwihgials and entities other than the Company.

The extraordinary loss represents the paymentegfgyment penalties and the write off of loan orgjion fees related to the early
extinguishment of debt and is shown net of the mityinterest’s share in the loss.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLiciEs — Continued

Impairment of long-lived assetsReal estate and leasehold improvements are ckdsi§i long-lived assets held for sale or as long-
lived assets to be held and used. In accordanteStatement of Financial Accounting Standards Md, 1Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assetsthe Company records assets held for sale at therlofithe carrying amount or fair value less costdll. The
impairment loss is the amount by which the carnangpunt exceeds the fair value less cost to séth W¥spect to assets classified as held
used, the Company periodically reviews these assetstermine whether its carrying amount will beavered from their undiscounted fut
operating cash flows and the Company recognizéspairment loss to the extent it believes the dagyamount is not recoverable. The
Company'’s estimates of the undiscounted futureatijyey cash flows expected to be generated are lmasachumber of assumptions that are
subject to economic and market uncertainties inotyjdamong others, demand for space, competitioteftants, changes in market rental
rates, and costs to operate each property. As thes®s are difficult to predict and are subjecfuture events that may alter the Company’s
assumptions, the undiscounted future operating tasis estimated by the Company in its impairmerdlgses may not be achieved and the
Company may be required to recognize future impamnfosses on its properties.

Allowance for doubtful accounts.Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowancarfayunts that may become uncollectible in the
future. The Company’s receivable balance is coredriwimarily of rents and operating cost recovedias from tenants as well as accrued
rental rate increases to be received over thefifbe existing leases. The Company regularly exteluthe adequacy of our allowance for
doubtful accounts considering such factors as thditcquality of its tenants, delinquency of payméstorical trends and current economic
conditions. Actual results may differ from theséraates under different assumptions or conditidine Company’s assumptions regarding
the collectibility of accounts receivables provedrrect, the Company could experience write-offacfounts receivable or accrued straight-
line rents receivable in excess of its allowanceadfmbtful accounts.

Capitalized costs. Expenditures directly related to both the deveiept of real estate assets and the leasing of giepare included
in net real estate assets and are stated at cib&t aonsolidated balance sheets. The developmpanditures include pre-construction costs
essential to the development of properties, devetoy and construction costs, interest costs, statetaxes, salaries and other costs incurrec
during the period of development. The leasing egfiares include all general and administrative gosicluding salaries incurred in
connection with successfully securing leases omtbperties. Estimated costs related to unsucddssfses are expensed as incurred. If the
Company'’s assumptions regarding the successfultefdd development and leasing are incorrect, ¢éselting adjustments could impact
earnings.

Fair value of derivative instruments.In the normal course of business, the Companyps$ed to the effect of interest rate changes.
The Company limits its exposure by following esistiibd risk management policies and proceduresdimguhe use of derivatives. To
mitigate its exposure to unexpected changes imdsteates, derivatives are used primarily to hexggnst rate movements on the Company’s
related debt. The Company is required to recogalizéerivatives as either assets or liabilitieshie consolidated balance sheets and to
measure those instruments at fair value. Changesrimalue will affect either stockholders’ equity net income depending on whether the
derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for aotiog purposes.

To determine the fair value of derivative instrurtseithe Company uses a variety of methods and g that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each balance gsteget For the majority of financial instruments;luding most derivatives, standard market
conventions and techniques such as discountedfloashnalysis, option pricing models, replacemesgt@and termination cost are used to
determine fair value. All methods of assessingValue result in a general approximation of valre] such value may never actually be
realized.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLiciEs — Continued

Rental revenue.Rental revenue is comprised of base rent, recavéoen tenants which represent reimbursementsdidain costs as
provided in the lease agreements such as reateatads, utilities, insurance, common area maimemand other recoverable costs, parking
and other income and termination fees which ralatpecific tenants, each of whom has paid a feertoinate its lease obligation before the
end of the contracted term on the lease.

In accordance with GAAP, base rental revenue isgeized on a straight-line basis over the termh®fespective leases. This means
that, with respect to a particular lease, actualams billed in accordance with the lease duringgiwen period may be higher or lower than
the amount of rental revenue recognized for theogeAccrued straight-line rents receivable repnes¢he amount by which straight-line
rental revenue exceeds rents currently billed soetance with lease agreements.

Investments in joint ventures.The Companys investments in unconsolidated affiliates consfigine corporation, nine limited liabili
companies, five limited partnerships and two gdneaietnerships. The Company accounts for its imaests in unconsolidated affiliates un
the equity method of accounting as the Companyceses significant influence, but does not conthelse entities. The Company’s
unconsolidated corporation is controlled by an lategl third party that owns more than 50.0% ofdbtstanding voting stock. The Company
has a 50.0% or less ownership interest in the wamated limited liability companies and, undez terms of the various operating
agreements, does not have any participating rigts.Company has a 50.0% or less ownership interéisé unconsolidated limited
partnerships and general partnerships. AlthouglCtrapany has an interest in two unconsolidatedrgépartnerships and is the general
partner in three of the unconsolidated limited parships, under the terms of the various partnemfiieements, the Company does not have
control of the major operating and financial paiiof these unconsolidated partnerships.

These investments are initially recorded at castpaestments in unconsolidated affiliates, andsatisequently adjusted for equity in
earnings and cash contributions and distributigmy. difference between the carrying amount of thagestments on the Company’s balance
sheet and the underlying equity in net assets trt@rad as an adjustment to equity in earningsnebasolidated affiliates over the life of the
property, generally 40 years.

From time to time, the Company contributes realtesassets to an unconsolidated joint venturehange for a combination of cash
and an equity interest in the venture. The Compangrds a partial gain on the contribution of thal estate assets to the extent of the third
party investor’s interest and records a deferred tpathe extent of its continuing interest in theconsolidated joint venture.

Real Estate Assets

All capitalizable costs related to the improvemanteplacement of commercial real estate propeatiesapitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over thienesed useful life of 40 years for buildings antprovements and five to seven years for
furniture, fixtures and equipment. Tenant improvata@are amortized over the life of the respecthasés, using the straigite method. Rei
estate assets are stated at the lower of cosirmalae, if impaired.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLiciEs — Continued

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had 2.3 miliquare feet of office properties and 277.6 aofésnd under contract for sale
various transactions totaling $143.8 million. Thesal estate assets have a carrying value of $1@lian and have been classified as assets
held for sale in the accompanying financial statetisie

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers highly liquid investmenthwaitmaturity of three months or less when purchésée cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes security deposits foChmpany’s commercial properties and constructidated escrows. In addition, the
Company maintains escrow and reserve funds for gkabice, real estate taxes and property insuresizblished pursuant to certain mortc
financing arrangements.

Income Taxes

The Company is a REIT for federal income tax puego#\ corporate REIT is a legal entity that holelsl estate assets, and through
distributions to stockholders, is permitted to reglor avoid the payment of Federal income taxéiseatorporate level. As of December 31,
2002, to maintain qualification as a REIT, the Campwas required to distribute to stockholdergast 90.0% of REIT taxable income,
excluding capital gains.

No provision has been made for federal income thresuse the Company qualified as a REIT, disibthe necessary amount of
taxable income and, therefore, incurred no incameskpense during the period.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Management of the Company performs ongoing cregiiuations of its tenants. As of December 31, 2802 whollyowned propertie
(excluding apartment units) were leased to 2,564rits in 14 geographic locations. The Company’aritnengage in a wide variety of
businesses. There is no dependence upon any simglet.

Stock Compensation

The Company grants stock options for a fixed nundbshares to employees with an exercise priceléquhe fair value of the shares
at the date of grant. As described in Note 12 ietliherein, the Company has elected to follow Anting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB"R&nNd related interpretations in accounting ferstock options. During 2002, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS “Wccounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Titaors and Disclosure”, which
provides methods of transition to the fair valusdthmethod of accounting for stock-based emplogegensation. This standard is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargifneing after December 15, 2002. The Company Mékethe prospective method as defined
by SFAS 148 in the first quarter of 2003.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accocdamith generally accepted accounting principlegires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and accompagnyities. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLiciEs — Continued

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Awting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAdsets.” SFAS 144
supercedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impamhof Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assietde disposed of” and the
accounting and reporting provisions for disposéla segment of business as addressed in APB 300tReg the Results of Operations-
Reporting the Effects of the Disposal of a Segnoémat Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and ¢pfeatly Occurring Events and
Transactions.” SFAS 144 is effective as of Jandai3002 and extends the reporting requirementssebdtinued operations to include those
long-lived assets which:

(1) are classified held for sale at December 31, 2802 r@sult of disposal activities that were ingéthsubsequent to January 1, 2002
or

(2) were sold during 2002 as a result of disposal digts/that were initiated subsequent to Janua002.

Per SFAS 144, those long-lived assets which wdrkdiging 2002 and resulted from disposal actisiii@tiated prior to January 1,
2002 should be accounted for in accordance withSE21 and APB 30. The Company adopted SFAS Noirlddnuary of 2002. Income
from discontinued operations, net of minority i&rand the gain/(loss) on sale of discontinuedatipas, net of minority interest, for
properties meeting the criteria in accordance SRAS No. 144 are reflected in the consolidatedstants of income as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. See Notadldded herein for further discussion on the Comgfsadiscontinued operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Resimn of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, AmendofdRASB Statement No.
13 and Technical Corrections”, which rescinds $ha&tet No. 4, which required all gains and lossesifextinguishment of debt to be
aggregated, and if material, classified as an ewxdiaary item, net of related income tax effecte fitovisions of SFAS No. 145 related to the
rescission of Statement No. 4 are effective foarfitial statements issued for fiscal years beginaftegy May 15, 2002. The Company will
adopt SFAS No. 145 in the first quarter of 2003e TTompany does not anticipate that the adoptidghisfstatement will have a material ef
on its results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Actiogrfor Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes”, which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs assed with exit or disposal activities. This statetaullifies Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition fore@tain Employee Termination Benefits and Other €tsEXit an Activity (including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”. Ttendard is effective for disposal activities iniéidtafter December 31, 2002. The Company
will adopt SFAS No. 146 in the first quarter of 300 he Company does not anticipate that the adoptidhis statement will have a material
effect on its results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation M5 “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Reguients for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness bk@t,” which changes the accounting for, and ds&gie of certain guarantees. Beginning
with transactions entered into after December 8022certain guarantees are to be recorded atdhie, which is different from prior
practice, under which a liability was recorded ondyen a loss was probable and reasonably estimabdeneral, the change applies to
contracts or indemnification agreements that caetinlly require the Company to make payments toagaaguieed thirgparty based on chang
in underlying asset, liability, or an equity setyinf guaranteed party.

While the accounting provisions only apply for nEansactions entered into after December 31, 2B@2nterpretation requires the
Company to include, and the Company has included, disclosures in these financial statements. Tdragany is assessing the impact of
this interpretation on its accounting for guarastee
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES — Continued

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148¢ctlating for Stock-Based Compensation — Transgiot Disclosure”, which
amends FASB No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Basedn@ensation”, to provide alternative methods ofdition for a voluntary change to
the fair value based method of accounting for stueéed employee compensation. In addition, thersitit amends the disclosure
requirements of Statement No. 123 to require prentidisclosures in both annual and interim findrsti@ements about the method of
accounting for stockased employee compensation and the effect of #tkad used on reported results. The standarddstefé for financia
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &tsrember 15, 2002. On January 1, 2003, the Comyaingdopt the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based compensation provisidr&atement No. 123. In accordance with SFAS 8 Company will apply the
prospective method of accounting and will experisiiture employee stock options (and similar avedraver the vesting period based on the
fair value of the award on the date of grant. Tleen@any does not anticipate that the adoption sfstatement will have a material effect on
its results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation46o.“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitié5I(N 46"),” the primary objective
of which is to provide guidance on the identifioatiof entities for which control is achieved thrbugeans other than voting rights. (“variable
interest entities” or “VIES”) and to determine whamd which business enterprise should consolithat&/tE (the “primary beneficiary”). This
new model applies when either (1) the equity inmes(if any) do not have a controlling financialdrest or (2) the equity investment at risk is
insufficient to finance that entity’s activities thvout additional financial support. In additionNF46 requires additional disclosures. The
Company is assessing the impact of this interpegtain its accounting for investments in unconsaiid joint ventures.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the December 31, 2001 and 20@hEial Statements have been reclassified to confo the December 31, 2002
presentation and accounting for discontinued ofmrai(see Note 10 included herein). These reclaasns had no material effect on net
income or stockholders’ equity as previously report

2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES

During the past several years, the Company haseidwarious joint ventures with unrelated investditsee Company has retained
minority equity interests ranging from 12.50% to@%6 in these joint ventures. As required by GA&R, Company has accounted for its
joint venture activity using the equity method otaunting, as the Company does not control théaeyentures. As a result, the assets
liabilities of the Company'’s joint ventures are matluded on its balance sheet.

The following is a summary of the various joint tmes in which the Company has a minority equitgiiest, including the names of
the unrelated investors, the value of the propewtytributed to the joint venture, the debt obtaibgdhe joint venture, the cash proceeds
received by the Company and the ownership percertfithe Company in each joint venture.

In connection with the Company’s merger with J.@Hhéls in July of 1998, the Company acquired a 4®idterest in Board of Trade
Investment Company, a 30.0% interest in Kessingertét, LLC, and a 12.5% interest in 4600 Madisosogsates, L.P. The Company is the
sole and exclusive property manager of the Boarfrafle Investment Company and the 4600 Madisondatss, L.P. joint ventures, for
which it received $132,038, $123,202 and $124,8%&és in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Intaag Kessinger Hunter, LLC is the
sole and exclusive property manager, leasing aled sgent and provides certain construction rels¢edices for certain wholly-owned
properties of the Company, and received $3.0 milligs.8 million and $7.1 million for these relatgtvices from the Company in 2002, 2(
and 2000, respectively. During 2002, the Compamyeabesed its ownership interest in Kessinger/Huhie€, to 26.5%. The Company has
adopted the equity method of accounting for thes# yentures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES — Continued

In addition, in connection with the Company’s mergith J.C. Nichols Company in July 1998, the Compaucceeded to the interests
of J.C. Nichols in a strategic alliance with R&R/éstors, Ltd. pursuant to which R&R Investors masagnd leases certain joint venture
properties located in the Des Moines area. As @tresthe merger, the Company acquired an ownpristtérest of 50.0% or more in a series
of nine joint ventures with R&R Investors (the “Didsines Joint Ventures”). Certain of these progartivere previously included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. O Jyr1999, the Company agreed with R&R Investoredoganize its respective
ownership interests in the Des Moines Joint Verstsrech that each would own a 50.0% interest. Adaglyl the Company has adopted the
equity method of accounting for its investmentacle of the Des Moines Joint Ventures as a reswuci reorganization. The impact of the
reorganization was immaterial to the consolidatedrfcial statements of the Company.

On March 15, 1999, the Company closed a transaetitnSchweiz-Deutschland-USA Dreilander Beteiligudbjekt DLF 98 / 29 -
Walker Fink-KG (“DLF"), pursuant to which the Company sold or contributertiain office properties valued at approximatel4&0 million
to a newly created limited partnership (the “DLFoint Venture”). DLF contributed approximately $&@nillion for a 77.19% interest in the
DLF I Joint Venture, and the DLF | Joint Venturefmaved approximately $71.0 million from third-patgnders. The Company retained the
remaining 22.81% interest in the DLF | Joint Verfueceived net cash proceeds of approximately $I8#lion and is the sole and exclus
property manager and leasing agent of the DLFAtdéénture’s properties, for which the Company reee fees of $862,006, $808,926 and
$762,670 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Cipany has adopted the equity method of accoufdinigs investment in this joint
venture.

On May 9, 2000, the Company closed a transacti¢im Mieilander-Fonds 97 / 26 and 99 / 32 (“DLF IpQrsuant to which the
Company contributed five in-service office propestencompassing 570,000 rentable square feet 24l,@00-square-foot development
project valued at approximately $110.0 million tnewly created limited partnership (the “DLF Il doVenture”). DLF Il contributed $24.0
million in cash for a 40.0% ownership interesthe DLF 1l Joint Venture and the DLF Il Joint Vergusorrowed approximately $50.0 million
from a third-party lender. The Company initialltaimed the remaining 60.0% interest in the DLFoihg Venture and received net cash
proceeds of approximately $73.0 million. During 2Gthd 2000, DLF 1l contributed an additional $16iflion in cash to the DLF Il Joint
Venture. As a result, the Company decreased itemship percentage to 42.93% as of December 31, 20@Company is the sole and
exclusive property manager and leasing agent obttfe Il Joint Venture’s properties, for which th@@pany received fees of $530,932,
$491,200 and $208,600 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, casply. The Company has adopted the equity meti@tcounting for this joint ventu

On December 19, 2000, the Company formed five joémtures with Denver-based Miller Global Propextiel C (“Miller Global”). In
the first joint venture, the Company sold or cdnited 19 in-service office properties encompasapoximately 2.5 million rentable square
feet valued at approximately $335.0 million to avhecreated limited liability company. As part diet formation of the first joint venture,
Miller Global contributed approximately $85.0 molli in cash for an 80.0% ownership interest angdimé venture borrowed approximately
$238.8 million from a third-party lender. The Compaetained a 20.0% ownership interest and recaietdash proceeds of approximately
$307.0 million. During 2001, the Company contrilslige39,000 square feet development project toitsigjdint venture for $5.1 million. The
joint venture borrowed an additional $3.7 millionder its existing debt agreement with a third partg the Company retained a 20.
ownership interest and received net cash procdegfspooximately $4.8 million. In the remaining fgoint ventures, the Company
contributed approximately $7.5 million of developrhéand to various newly created limited liabiltgmpanies and retained a 50.0%
ownership interest. Three of these joint ventumsetdeveloped three properties encompassing 347ed@ble square feet that costs
approximately $50.4 million. The fourth joint vengus expected to develop one property encompa88/@0 rentable square feet with a
budgeted cost of approximately $10.8 million. Thenany is the sole and exclusive developer of thesgerties, and received $34,997,
$553,270 and $263,549 in development fees in 2ZB0@] and 2000, respectively. In addition, the Camypa the sole and exclusive property
manager and leasing agent for the properties iof dllese joint ventures and received fees of $#l8on, $1.5 million and $73,793 in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company has addpé&equity method of accounting for all of thnjoventures with Miller Global.
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2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES — Continued

In connection with one of the joint ventures witlilst Global, the Company guaranteed Miller Glolvahich has an 80.0% interest in
the joint venture, a minimum internal rate of raton $50.0 million of Miller Global’s equity. If .aminimum internal rate of return is not
achieved upon the sale of the assets or windingf tipe joint venture, Miller Global would receivedesproportionately greater interest of the
cash proceeds related to the assets subject toténeal rate of return guarantee. Based upon thet operating performance of the assets
and the Company'’s estimate of the residual valub@bubject assets, the estimated internal ratetafn for Miller Global with respect to
those assets exceeds the minimum required retgra.r@sult, the Company does not currently expettits interest in the joint venture will
be adjusted upon the sale of the subject ass#t ovinding up of the joint venture as a resulthaf internal rate of return guarantee.

Additionally, during 1999 and 2001, the Companyselb two transactions with Highwoods-Markel Assasat LC and Concourse
Center Associates, LLC pursuant to which the Comsaid or contributed certain office propertiesiewly created limited partnerships.
Unrelated investors contributed cash for a 50.0%e»ghip interest in the joint ventures. The Compatagined the remaining 50.0% interest,
received net cash proceeds and is the sole andséxelproperty manager and leasing agent of tmé y@inture’s properties, for which the
Company received fees of $109,775, $53,636 andl$31n 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Compas adopted the equity method
of accounting for both of these joint ventures.

On June 14, 2002, the Company contributed $1.iamidash to Plaza Colonnade, LLC, a newly formendtéd liability company to
construct a 285,000 square foot development prgppEie total project costs are estimated at $70l6&m The Company has retained a
50.0% interest in this joint venture, and has agldphe equity method of accounting for this joiahture. On February 12, 2003, Plaza
Colonnade, LLC signed a $61.3 million constructioen to fund the development of this property. Tdan requires that the joint venture
invest $9.3 million, $4.6 million of which will bthe Company’s share. The Company and its partnetss joint venture have each
guaranteed 50.0% of the loan. The loan repaymeariagtees are reduced upon the project reachingic@redetermined criteria. In addition,
the guarantees are reduced to 25.0% of the loambal In addition to the construction loan descridleove, the partners have provided
collectively $12.0 million in letters of credit, #million by the Company and $6.0 million by itgrmer. During construction the joint vent
is required to have in place the aforementionaédrgbf credit.

On June 26, 2002, the Company acquired its jointure partner’s interest in MG-HIW Rocky Point, LL@hich owned Harborview
Plaza, a 205,000 rentable square foot office pitgptr bring our ownership interest in that entity100.0%. At that time, the Company
consolidated the assets and liabilities, and rextbidcome and expenses on a consolidated basis.

On September 11, 2002, the Company contributeddtheidw Plaza to SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a nefermed joint venture
with a different partner, in exchange for a 20.084ited partnership interest and $12.1 million isttaThe Company is the sole and exclusive
property manager and leasing agent of this jointwe’s property, for which it received fees of 8 in 2002. The assets, liabilities and net
income from the SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP arduded in the table below.
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2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES — Continued

The following tables set forth information regamglitne Company’s joint venture activity as recordadhe joint venture’s books at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 ($ in thousands):

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Percent Total Total Total Total
Owned Assets Debt Liabilities Assets Debt Liabilities

Balance Sheet Data
Board of Trade Investment Compa 490% $ 7,77¢ $ 91¢ $ 1071 ¢ 7372 $ 1,07¢ $ 1,25¢
Dallas County Partners ( 50.0(% 44,12¢ 38,90¢ 41,28t 44,78¢ 35,49t 40,967
Dallas County Partners Il (. 50.00% 18,90( 23,587 24,87« 19,89: 24,60 25,77¢
Fountain Three (1 50.0(% 37,15¢ 30,95¢ 32,58: 37,21¢ 26,04¢ 33,20(
RRHWoods, LLC (1, 50.0(% 82,64¢ 68,56 71,76% 82,74( 66,03¢ 69,09¢
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( 26.5% (2) 12,92¢ — 88¢ 16,22¢ — 802
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5(% 23,25¢ 17,38¢ 17,89¢ 23,97: 17,95t 18,62«
Schweiz-Deutschland-USA DreilanderBeteiligung

Objekt DLF 98/2-Walker Finl-KG 22.81% 0141,14 68,20¢ 70,48. 143,96( 69,11: 70,97¢
Dreilande-Fonds 97/26 and 99/: 42.9%% 119,13: 59,68¢ 62,60. 122,82( 60,00( 62,42
Highwood:«-Markel Associates, LL( 50.00% 16,02¢ 11,62¢ 12,58: 16,43¢ 11,62¢ 12,56:
MG-HIW, LLC 20.0(% 355,10: 242,24( 249,34(  353,53. 242,24( 247,95(
MG-HIW Peachtree Corners Ill, LL 50.00% 3,80¢ 2,494(3) 2,82: 3,50z 2,29¢ 2,44¢
MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC 50.0(% — — — 28,21 17,32: 19,69¢
MG-HIW Metrowest |, LLC 50.0(% 1,601 — 3 1,60( — —
MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC 50.0(% 9,60( 5,374(4) 5,54( 8,68: 3,76 4,03¢
Concourse Center Associates, L 50.0(% 14,89¢ 9,85¢ 10,19: 14,55 10,00( 10,01¢
Plaza Colonnade, LL! 50.0(% 3,591 —(5) 3 — — —
SF-HIW Harborview, LF 20.0(% 41,13¢ 22,80( 25,22¢ — — —
Total $932,83: $602,60. $629,15' $925,50( $587,57¢ $619,83:

(1) Des Moines joint ventures.
(2) The Company decreased its ownership percentage3eod0% at December 31, 2001 to 26.50% at DeceBhe2002.

(3) Amount represents total draws at December 31, BB02 construction loan made to this joint ventyreb affiliate of the Company
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis poiite July 2003.

(4) $2.7 million of this debt has been guaranteed byGbmpany subject to a prorata indemnity from then@any’s joint venture partner.

(5) On February 12, 2003, Plaza Colonnade, LLC signg@la3 million construction loan to fund the deymtwent of this property. The
loan requires that the joint venture invest $9.8iom, $4.6 million of which will be the Company’share. The Company and its part
in this joint venture have each guaranteed 50.0%efoan.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

2. | NVESTMENTS IN U NCONSOLIDATED A FFILIATES — Continued

Income Statement
Data:

Board of Trade
Investment Compan

Dallas County Partners
1)

Dallas County Partner
(1)

Fountain Three (1

RRHWoods, LLC (1,

Kessinger/Hunter, LL(

4600 Madison
Associates, LI

Schweiz-Deutschland-
USA

DreilanderBeteiligun
Objekt DLF 98/29-
Walker Finl-KG

Dreilanderfonds 97/2¢

and 99/3:

Highwoods-Markel
Associates, LLC

MG-HIW, LLC

MG-HIW Peachtree
Corners lll, LLC

MG-HIW Rocky Point,
LLC

MG-HIW Metrowest |,
LLC

MG-HIW Metrowest II,
LLC

Concourse Center
Associates, LLC

Plaza Colonnade, LL!

SF-HIW Harborview,
LLC

Total

December 31, 2002

December 31, 2001

(1) Des Moines joint ventures.
(2) Includes $617,297 loss on early extinguishmentetitd
(3) The Company decreased its ownership percentage3@od0% at December 31, 2001 to 26.50% at DeceBhe2002.

Net Operating Net

Percent Operating Depr/ Income/ Depr/ Income/
Owned Revenue Expenses Interest Amort (Loss) Revenue  Expenses Interest Amort (Loss)
490(% $ 267( $ 1,647 $ 83 $ 36:9% 577 $ 252/ % 1,66t $ 90 $ 311 $ 457
50.0(% 11,04¢ 5,47( 2,66: 1,99¢ 91t 11,14¢ 4,90t 2,71% 1,88: 1,64¢
50.0(% 5,94¢ 2,52 2,452 1,062 (88) 7,614 2,75C 2,55( 1,06¢€ 1,24¢
50.0(% 6,884 2,85( 2,14: 1,51¢ 37¢ 6,741 2,912 2,10¢ 1,67¢ 50
50.0(% 13,74( 7,14t 3,391(2) 3,61 (41¢) 14,63 6,95( 3,45¢ 3,29¢ 93C
26.5(%(3) 6,86 4,927 — 68z  1,25¢ 12,897 10,21( — 46¢ 2,21¢
12.5(% 5,22¢ 1,954 1,25¢ 1,83¢ 17¢& 4,72¢ 2,08¢ 1,294 1,58¢ (247)
22.81% 20,33: 554¢  4,65: 3,391 6,74« 20,30¢ 5474 4,71z  3,28¢ 6,831
42.9% 16,85¢ 4,46¢ 4,63¢ 3,96¢ 3,791 17,69: 4,15¢  4,58¢ 3,23¢ 5,704
50.00(% 3,191 1,64: 1,032 562 (45) 3,21¢ 1,811 96¢& 66¢& (229
20.0(% 51,177 18,15¢ 10,74: 8,377 13,90: 50,457 17,58: 15,41¢ 8,701 8,754
50.00% — 55 — 44 (99) 1 38 — — (37)
50.0(% 1,81: 55¢ 271 24¢& 73¢ 18 — — — 18
50.0(% — 26 — — (26) — 21 — — (21)
50.0(% 30z 24C 50 24€ (239 52 67 — 26 (47)
50.0(% 2,11¢ 53¢ 681 30z 591 66 16 41 — 9
50.0(% 9 — — 2 7 — — — — —
20.0(% 1,721 45¢ 432 28¢ 542 — — — — —

$149,90° $58,20( $34,49. $28,50¢ $28,71( $152,09: $60,64: $37,937 $26,21¢ $ 27,29t
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3. M ORTGAGES AND N OTES P AYABLE

The Company’s mortgages and notes payable congikthae following at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

($ in thousands)
Mortgage and loans payab

9.0% mortgage loans due 20 $ 36,08 $ 36,92¢
8.1% mortgage loans due 20 28,00 28,69:
8.2% mortgage loans due 20 68,44 69,86¢
7.8% mortgage loans due 20 89,94¢ 91,44¢
7.9% mortgage loans due 20 90,00¢ 91,49
7.8% mortgage loans due 20 142,84: 134,96¢
4.5% to 9.4% mortgage loans due between 2002 a2@ 60,08 82,747
Variable rate mortgage loan due 2( 4,30¢ —
Secured Revolving Loan due 20 — 3,92¢

519,72( 540,06!

Unsecured indebtedne:

6.75% notes due 20( $ 100,00 $ 100,00(
8.0% notes due 20( 146,50( 146,50(
7.0% notes due 20( 110,00( 110,00
7.125% notes due 20( 100,00( 100,00
8.125% notes due 20( 50,00( 50,00(
MOPPRS due 2013 (: 125,00( 125,00
Put Option Notes due 2011 ( 100,00( 100,00(
7.5% notes due 201 200,00 200,00
Term loan due 200 — 19,16¢
Term loan due 200 20,00( —
Unsecured Revolving Loan due 2C 57,50( 228,50(

1,009,001 1,179,16!

Total $1,528,721 $1,719,23

(1) On February 2, 1998, the Operating Partnership $bib.0 million of MandatOry Par Put Remarketeduiges (‘“MOPPRS”) due
February 1, 2013. The MOPPRS bore an interesofedde835% from the date of issuance through Jan8ay2003. On January 31,
2003, the interest rate was changed to 8.975% ants$a the interest rate reset provisions of thef®BS. On February 3, 2003, the
Operating Partnership repurchased 100.0% of tmeipal amount of the MOPPRS from the sole holderabf in exchange for a
secured note in the principal amount of $142.8iamll The secured note bears interest at a fixeda®6.03% and has a maturity dat
February 28, 2013.

(2) OnJune 24, 1997, a trust formed by the OperatargnBrship sold $100.0 million of Exercisable PgtiGn Securities due June 15,
2004 (“X-POS"), which represent fractional undivideeneficial interest in the trust. The assetfefttust consist of, among other
things, $100.0 million of Exercisable Put Optiont&®due June 15, 2011 (the “Put Option Notas8ed by the Operating Partners|
The Put Option Notes bear an interest rate of 7.ft®% the date of issuance through June 15, 20€4ér Bune 15, 2004, the interest
rate to maturity on such Put Option Notes will b&986 plus the applicable spread determined asraf 16, 2004. In connection with
the initial issuance of the Put Option Notes, anterparty was granted an option to purchase th@®ptibn Notes from the trust on
June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the principal amourthdfcounterparty elects not to exercise this optise Operating Partnership would
be required to repurchase the Put Option Notes frenirust on June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the gral@mount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.
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3. M orTGAGES AND N OTES P AYABLE — Continued

The following table sets forth the principal payrteedue on the Company’s long-term debt as of Deeerdb, 2002 ($ in thousands):

Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Fixed Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
MOPPRS (1. $ 125,000 $ — % — % — 3 — 3 — $125,00(
Put Option Notes (Z 100,00( — — — — — 100,00(
Notes 706,50 246,50( — — 110,00( — 350,00(
Secured:
Mortgages and loans payal 515,41: 10,43¢ 13,09« 77,74 15,45( 75,25 323,43(
Total Fixed Rate Det 1,446,91. 256,93¢ 13,09¢ 77,747 12545( 75,25 898,43(
Variable Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
Term Loan 20,00( — — 20,00( — — —
Revolving Loar 57,50( 57,50( — — — — —
Secured:
Revolving Loar — — — — — — —
Mortgage loan payab 4,30¢ 24€ 26& 27¢ 292 3,22 —
Total Variable Rate Del 81,80¢ 57,74¢ 265 20,27¢ 29z 3,221 —
Total Long Term Debt $1,528,721 $314,68' $13,35¢ $ 98,02¢ $125,74. $ 78,47¢ $898,43(

(1) On February 2, 1998, the Operating Partnership $bkb.0 million of MandatOry Par Put Remarketeduiies (“MOPPRS”) due
February 1, 2013. The MOPPRS bore an interesofed@e835% from the date of issuance through Jan8ay2003. On January 31,
2003, the interest rate was changed to 8.975% ants$a the interest rate reset provisions of theP®BS. On February 3, 2003, the
Operating Partnership repurchased 100.0% of tmeipal amount of the MOPPRS from the sole holderabf in exchange for a
secured note in the principal amount of $142.8iamll The secured note bears interest at a fixeda®a6.03% and has a maturity dat
February 28, 2013.

(2)  OnJune 24, 1997, a trust formed by the OperatargnBrship sold $100.0 million of Exercisable Pption Securities due June 15,
2004 (“X-POS"), which represent fractional undividieeneficial interest in the trust. The asset$efttust consist of, among other
things, $100.0 million of Exercisable Put Optionté®due June 15, 2011 (the “Put Option Notéas8led by the Operating Partners|
The Put Option Notes bear an interest rate of 7.&®% the date of issuance through June 15, 20€4r Aune 15, 2004, the interest
rate to maturity on such Put Option Notes will b89%846 plus the applicable spread determined asred 16, 2004. In connection with
the initial issuance of the Put Option Notes, anterparty was granted an option to purchase th®©ption Notes from the trust on
June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the principal amourthdfcounterparty elects not to exercise this optise Operating Partnership would
be required to repurchase the Put Option Notes frantrust on June 15, 2004 at 100.0% of the gsal@mount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

Secured Indebtedness

The mortgage and loans payable and the securelirmy@an were secured by real estate assetsamithggregate carrying value of
$905.1 million at December 31, 2002.

Unsecured Indebtedness

The Company’s fixed rate unsecured notes of $98illl®n bear interest rates from 6.8% to 8.1% wirtterest payable semi-annually
in arrears. The premium and discount related tastheance of the unsecured notes is being amonizedthe life of the respective notes a



adjustment to interest expense. All of the unsatumges, except for the MOPRRS, which were retinedrebruary 3, 2003, and Put
Option Notes, are redeemable at any time at thHeropf the Company, subject to certain conditiar@uding the payment of make-whole
amounts.
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3. M orTGAGES AND N OTES P AYABLE — Continued

The Company currently has a $300.0 million unsetuesolving loan (with $57.5 million outstanding@&cember 31, 2002) that
matures in December 2003. The Company’s unsecaradving loan also includes a $150.0 million conipet sub-facility. Depending upon
the corporate credit ratings assigned to the Cosnfram time to time by the various rating agenctbs, Companys unsecured revolving lo
bears variable rate interest at a spread above RIBDging from 0.70% to 1.55% and the Company’'sisgtrevolving loan bears variable
rate interest at a spread above LIBOR ranging fdd56% to 1.50%. The Company currently has a cratlitg of BBB- assigned by Standard
& Poor’s, a credit rating of BBB- assigned by Fitale. and a credit rating of Baa3 assigned by M&otwestor Service. As a result, interest
currently accrues on borrowings under the Compamy&ecured revolving loan at an average rate oORBlus 95 basis points. In addition,
the Company is currently required to pay an anfaglity fee equal to .20% of the total commitmentthe unsecured revolving loan.

The terms of each of the Company’s revolving loamg the indenture that governs the Operating Pattipés outstanding unsecured
notes require the Company to comply with variousraping and financial covenants and performandestathe Company is currently in
compliance with all such requirements.

Interest Rate Hedge Contracts

To meet in part its long-term liquidity requiremgnthe Company borrows funds at a combinationxaffiand variable rates.
Borrowings under the two revolving loans bear iegtiat variable rates. The Company’s long-term,delbich consists of secured and
unsecured long-term financings and the issuancasdécured debt securities, typically bears intexefiked rates. In addition, the Company
has assumed fixed rate and variable rate debtrinemiion with acquiring properties. The Companwgteiiest rate risk management objective
is to limit the impact of interest rate changesamings and cash flows and to lower it's overatrbwing costs. To achieve these objectives,
from time to time the Company enters into intera hedge contracts such as collars, swaps, capsesasury lock agreements in order to
mitigate its interest rate risk with respect toieas debt instruments. The Company does not hoisksoe these derivative contracts for trac
or speculative purposes.

The interest rate on all of the Company’s variahte debt is currently adjusted at one to threetmomervals, subject to settlements
under these contracts. Net payments/(receipts) toackeunterparties under interest rate hedge ocistreere $415,051, $1,003,159 and
$(206,894) in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelg,\aare recorded as increases/(decreases) to ingeqEense.

In addition, the Company is exposed to certaindsss the event of non-performance by the countgrpsder the interest rate hedge
contract. The Company expects the counterpartygiwisia major financial institution, to performlfulnder the contract. However, if the
counterparty was to default on its obligations urttie interest rate hedge contract, the Companiddmirequired to pay the full rates on its
debt, even if such rates were in excess of theimates contract.

Other Information

Total interest capitalized was approximately $7illion, $16.9 million and $23.7 million in 2002, A0 and 2000, respectively.
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4. EMPLOYEE B ENEFIT P LANS

Management Compensation Program

The Company’s executive officers participate iraanual cash incentive bonus program whereby theeglagible for cash bonuses
based on a percentage of their annual base saafythe prior December. Each executive’s targegllbonus is determined by competitive
analysis and the executive’s ability to influeneemall performance of the Company and, assuminigicelevels of the Company’s
performance, ranges from 40.0% to 85.0% of baseysdkepending on position in the Company. The leiigbonus percentage for each
executive is determined by a weighted averageeoCthmpany’s actual performance versus its annaal péing the following measures:
return on invested capital; growth in funds froneigions (“FFQO”) per share; property level cashvflis a percentage of plan; general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revandegrowth in same store net operating incomah&aextent this weighted average is less
than or exceeds the Company’s targeted performlaneg the bonus percentage paid is proportioraltiuced or increased on a
predetermined scale. Depending on the Companyfenpesince, annual incentive bonuses could range e to 200.0% of an executive’s
target level bonus. Bonuses are accrued in thegaraed and are included in accrued expenses tidhsolidated Balance Sheets.

On January 1, 1999, the Company established amtix@compensation program which allows executiffieers to participate in a
long term incentive plan which includes annual tgarf stock options, restricted shares and granisits in the Shareholder Value Plan. The
stock options vest ratably over four years.

The restricted shares vest 50.0% after three yeat$0.0% after five years. The restricted shar@rdsvare recorded at market value
the date of grant as unearned compensation expadsamortized over the restriction periods. Gehgnacipients are eligible to receive
dividends on restricted stock issued. Restrictedksaind annual expense information is as follows:

2002
Restricted shares outstanding at January 1, 189,60¢
Number of restricted shares awar 78,96¢
Restricted shares repurchased or canc (30,407
Restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 238,16¢
Annual expense, ni $1,276,00
Average fair value per share at date of g $ 24.9(

The Shareholder Value Plan rewards the executiieeo$ of the Company when the total shareholdirne measured by increases in
the market value of the Common Stock plus the @ivits on those shares exceed a comparable indeg Glompanys peers over a three ye
period. The payout for this program is determingdhHe Company’s percent change in shareholderrretmimpared to the composite index of
its peer group. If the Company’s performance isatdeéast 100.0% of the peer group index, no paigouade. To the extent performance
exceeds the peer group, the payout increases. Ahrew year plan cycle begins each year undeptbigram.

The Company established a deferred compensationpplisuant to which various executive officers daelect to defer a portion of tl
compensation that would otherwise be paid to theetive officer for investment in units of phantstock or other investments unrelated to
the Company’s securities. At the end of each caleqdarter, any executive officer that elects tiedeompensation in phantom stock is
credited with units of phantom stock at a 15.0%alimt. The units of phantom stock accrue dividends amount equal to the dividends
paid on the Company’s common stock. If the exeeutifficer leaves Highwoods employ for any reasdahdpthan death, disability, normal
retirement or voluntary termination by Highwoodsjhin two years after the end of the year in whicich officer has deferred compensation,
such officer will incur a penalty. Over the two-ye@sting period, the Company records compensatipense equal to the 15.0% discount,
the accrued dividends and any changes (increasdecoease) in the market value of the Company’s comstock from the date of the
deferral.
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4. EMPLOYEE B ENEFIT P LANS — Continued

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan coveringtaotially all employees who meet certain age angleyment criteria. The
Company matches the first 6.0% of compensationrdefeat the rate of 75.0% of employee contributi@sring 2002, 2001 and 2000, the
Company contributed $942,111, $648,509 and $955y88Bectively, to the 401(k) savings plan. Adntiaisve expenses of the plan are paid
by the Company.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plafl fotive employees. At the end of each threetmoffering period, each
participant’s account balance is applied to acgslir@es of Common Stock at a cost that is calaikt®5.0% of the lower of the average
closing price on the New York Stock Exchange onfie consecutive days preceding the first dayhefdquarter or the five days preceding
last day of the quarter. A participant may contigbup to 25.0% of their pay. Employees purchased88/and 40,935 shares of Common
Stock under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan dthingears ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, tashec

5. RENTAL | NCOME

The Company’s real estate assets are leased tutg¢anader operating leases, substantially all atkwvkxpire over the next 10 years.
The minimum rental amounts under the leases arergiyeither subject to scheduled fixed increaseasdjustments based on the Consumer
Price Index. Generally, the leases also requiretkigatenants reimburse the Company for increasesrtain costs above the base year costs.

Expected future minimum rents to be received ovemtext five years and thereafter from tenantéefases in effect at December 31,
2002, are as follows ($ in thousands):

2003 $ 384,58¢
2004 335,92:
2005 278,30¢
2006 219,86!
2007 172,69(
Thereatftel 464,05:

$ 1,855,42!

Expected future minimum rents have been reducedrasult of the rejection by WorldCom of two leasasompassing 819,653 square
feet and the rejection by USAirways of two leasesoenpassing 119,013 square feet.

6. RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

On December 8, 1998, the Company purchased a partithe Bluegrass Valley office development profeam a limited liability
company controlled by an executive officer and aiwe of the Company for approximately $2.5 milli@n July 16, 1999, the Company
purchased development land and an option to puechther development land in the Bluegrass Valldige@fdevelopment project from the
same limited liability company controlled by thereaexecutive officer and director of the Companydieproximately $4.6 million in
Common Units. On October 31, 2002, the Companyoisex its option to purchase the additional devakept land in a staged takedown,
acquired 30.6 acres of the optioned property frioensame limited liability company for $4.6 millioAs part of this transaction, the Company
also acquired 23.5 acres of other developmentilatiie Bluegrass Valley office development project$2.6 million. On January 17, 2003,
the Company acquired 23.46 acres of the formertipopd development land from the same limited lighcompany for $2.3 million. The
Company believes that each purchase price didxuateel market value.
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6. RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

During 2000, the Company sold certain propertieoerpassing 2.0 million square feet to an entitytictied by a former executive
officer and director for approximately $169.0 nalli consisting of cash, shares of Common Stock,r@@mUnits and the waiver and/or
termination of certain outstanding obligations &Rrip under various agreements between the Compashgwach former executive officer and
director.

The Company advanced $787,746 to an officer arettdir related to certain expenses paid by the Coynpa behalf of the officer ar
director. During 2002, this advance, along withraed interest, was repaid by the officer and daect

During 2000, in connection with the formation o tlMG-HIW Peachtree Corners lll, LLC, a construction legas made by an affilia
of the Company to this joint venture. Interest aesrat a rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points arddan is due July 2003. At December 31,
2002, $2.5 million was outstanding on this loan.

7. STOCKHOLDERS' E QuITY

Common Stock Distributions

Distributions paid on Common Stock were $2.34, $28d $2.25 per share for the years ended Dece®ib@002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

For federal income tax purposes, the followingaahimmarizes the estimated taxability of distriimsi paid:

2002 2001 2000

Per share
Ordinary income $ 1.2¢ $181 $ 1.67
Capital gains 0.5t .33 .58
Return of capita 0.53 A7 —
Total $ 234 $231 $ 2.2t

The Company'’s tax returns for the year ended Deeerdb, 2002 have not been filed, and the taxabiliigrmation for 2002 is based
upon the best available data. The Company’s taxnsthave not been examined by the IRS, and theréie taxability of distributions is
subject to change.

As of December 31, 2002, the tax basis of the Caoylpassets was $2.6 billion.

On January 28, 2003, the Board of Directors dedlar€ommon Stock distribution of $0.585 per shagaple on February 24, 2003
stockholders of record on February 17, 2003.
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7. STOCKHOLDERS' E QuiTy — Continued

Preferred Stock

On February 12, 1997, the Company issued 125,808% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferreaeShthe “Series A
Preferred Shares”). The Series A Preferred Shaeesan-voting and have a liquidation preferenc&X000 per share for an aggregate
liquidation preference of $125.0 million plus aceduand unpaid dividends. The net proceeds (aféemwriting commission and other
offering costs) of the Series A Preferred Sharesad were $121.8 million. Holders of the Seriesréférred Shares are entitled to receive,
when, as and if declared by the Company’s Boardicdctors, out of funds legally available for paymef distributions, cumulative
preferential cash distributions at a rate of 834 of the liquidation preference per annum (edeiviato $86.25 per share). On or after
February 12, 2027, the Series A Preferred Shargsmaedeemed for cash at the option of the CompEmy redemption price (other than
portion thereof consisting of accrued and unpadtritiutions) is payable solely out of the sale peats of other capital shares of the Comg
which may include shares of other series of preteéstock. Of the $86.25 distribution paid per SeAePreferred Share in 2002, $60.02 will
be taxed as ordinary income and $26.23 will bedasecapital gain. On June 19, 2001, the Companyrecbhased in a privately negotiated
transaction 20,055 of these shares at $922.50hpee sfor a total purchase price of $18.5 milliBor each Series A Preferred Share
repurchased by the Company, one equivalent Serfeferred Unit was retired.

On September 25, 1997, the Company issued 6,908%08eries B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred SkitiesSeries B Preferred
Shares”). The Series B Preferred Shares are namgvand have a liquidation preference of $25 paresiior an aggregate liquidation
preference of $172.5 million plus accrued and uhpéridends. The net proceeds (after underwritiognmission and other offering costs) of
the Series B Preferred Shares issued were $1668i8mHolders of the Series B Preferred Shareseat#led to receive, when, as and if
declared by the Company’s Board of Directors, ddtinds legally available for payment of distribaris, cumulative preferential cash
distributions at a rate of 8.0% of the liquidatipreference per annum (equivalent to $2.00 per ¥h@reor after September 25, 2002, the
Series B Preferred Shares may be redeemed foratéisé option of the Company. The redemption pfatker than the portion thereof
consisting of accrued and unpaid distributiong)agable solely out of the sale proceeds of othpitalashares of the Company, which may
include shares of other series of preferred stoékhe $2.00 distribution paid per Series B Preférghare in 2002, $1.39 will be taxed as
ordinary income and $0.61 will be taxed as cajgjéah.

On April 23, 1998, the Company issued 4,000,00@diggry shares (the “Series D Depositary Sharesigh representinga 1 /10
fractional interest in an 8% Series D Cumulativel&amable Preferred Share (the “Series D PrefeiliadeS"). The Series D Preferred Shares
are non-voting and have a liquidation preferenc®250 per share for an aggregate liquidation peefe of $100 million plus accrued and
unpaid dividends. The net proceeds (after undengritommission and other offering costs) of thee®eb Preferred Shares issued were
$96.8 million. Holders of Series D Preferred Shamesentitled to receive, when, as and if declasethe Company’s Board of Directors, out
of funds legally available for payment of distrilauts, cumulative preferential cash distributiona aaite of 8.0% of the liquidation preference
per annum (equivalent to $20.00 per share). Offiter April 23, 2003, the Series D Preferred Shamey be redeemed for cash at the optic
the Company. The redemption price (other than tréqm thereof consisting of accrued and unpaittidistions) is payable solely out of the
sale proceeds of other capital shares of the Comparich may include shares of other series ofgrefl stock. Of the $20.00 distribution
paid per Series D Preferred Share in 2002, $13iBbevtaxed as ordinary income and $6.09 will &eetd as capital gain.
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7. STOCKHOLDERS' E QuiTy — Continued

Shareholder Rights Plan

On October 4, 1997, the Board declared a dividendre preferred share purchase right (“Right”)dach outstanding share of
Common Stock to be distributed to all holders afrd of the Common Stock on October 16, 1997. TightR attach to shares of Common
Stock subsequently issued. Each Right entitlesegistered holder to purchase dnaidredth of a participating preferred share foesgrcise
price of $140.00 per onledndredth of a participating preferred share, suiifpadjustment as provided in the rights agreeniére Rights wil
generally be exercisable only if a person or gracguires 15% or more of the Common Stock or annesiadender offer for 15% or more of
the Common Stock. The Rights will expire on Octobe?007, unless the expiration date of the Righéxtended, and the Rights are subject
to redemption at a price of $0.01 per Right undetain circumstances.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Company has instituted a Dividend ReinvestraadtStock Purchase Plan under which holders of Gamfatock may elect to
automatically reinvest their distributions in adlatiial shares of Common Stock and may make opticasth payments for additional shares of
Common Stock. The Company may issue additionakshair Common Stock or repurchase Common Stocleioplen market for purposes
financing its obligations under the Dividend Reistveent and Stock Purchase Plan.

Stock Repurchases

During 2002, the Company repurchased a total ofZ88tcommon partnership units at a weighted avepage of $24.79 per unit.
Since commencement of its initial share repurclpaggram in December 1999, the Company has repurdhkk 6 million share of common
stock and common units at a weighted average pfi§24.19 per share/unit for a total purchase pofc®280.7 million. On April 25, 2001,
the Company announced that the CompamBoard of Directors authorized the repurchasepdbuan additional 5.0 million shares of Comr
Stock and Common Units. At December 31, 2002, thien@any had 3.4 million shares/units remaining urodercurrently authorized
additional 5.0 million share/unit repurchase progra

8. DERIVATIVE F INANCIAL | NSTRUMENTS

SFAS 133 requires the Company to recognize allzdéivies on the balance sheet at fair value. Devigatthat are not hedges must be
adjusted to fair value through income. If the dative is a hedge, depending on the nature of tdgdyechanges in the fair value of the
derivative will either be offset against the changéair value of the hedged assets, liabilitieion commitments through earnings, or
recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive (#9CL") until the hedged item is recognized in Biags. The ineffective portion of a
derivative’s change in fair value is recognize@amnings.

The Company'’s interest rate risk management obgedito limit the impact of interest rate changasarnings and cashflows and to
lower overall borrowing costs. To achieve thesediyes, the Company enters into interest rate éiedgtracts such as collars, swaps, caps
and treasury lock agreements in order to mitigatenterest rate risk with respect to various destruments. The Company does not hold
these derivatives for trading or speculative puggsos
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8. DERIVATIVE F INANCIAL | NSTRUMENTS — Continued

On the date that the Company enters into a devevabntract, the Company designates the derivaiv@) a hedge of the variability of
cash flows that are to be received or paid in cotioe with a recognized liability (a “cash flow” tige), (2) a hedge of changes in the fair
value of an asset or a liability attributable tpaaticular risk (a “fair value” hedge), or (3) arsfrument that is held as a non-hedge derivative.
Changes in the fair value of highly effective clslv hedges, to the extent that the hedge is affecare recorded in AOCL, until earnings
are affected by the hedged transaction (i.e. petilodic settlements of a variable-rate liabilitg @ecorded in earnings). Any hedge
ineffectiveness (which represents the amount bylwiiie changes in the fair value of the derivagixeeed the variability in the cash flows of
the transaction) is recorded in current-period i@ For derivatives designated as fair value Bedghanges in the fair value of the
derivative and the hedged item related to the heédigk are recognized in earnings. Changes inahievélue of non-hedging instruments are
reported in current-period earnings.

The Company formally documents all relationshipsveen hedging instruments and hedged items, asawdi$ risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking various leetlgnsactions. This process includes linking ethatives that are designated as cash flow
hedges to (1) specific assets and liabilities enthlance sheet or (2) forecasted transactionsCohgpany also assesses and documents, botl
at the hedging instrumestinception and on an ongoing basis, whether thgateves that are used in hedging transactionhayey effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows associated thithhedged items. When the Company determinesttiativative is not (or has ceased to
be) highly effective as a hedge, the Company discoes hedge accounting prospectively.

During 2002, the Company had an interest rate swatpire, resulting in a debit to interest rate daiixe liability and an offsetting
credit to AOCL of $411,000. In addition, during 20@he Company entered into and terminated twoGb@4llion treasury lock agreements
related to an anticipated fixed rate financing viitlo financial counterparties, which effectivelgkothe treasury rate at 3.8%. These treasury
lock agreements are designated as cashflow heddabea effective portion of the cumulative losstbese derivative instruments was $1.7
million at December 31, 2002 and is being repoagad component of AOCL in stockholders’ equity. Seheosts will be recognized into
earnings in the same period or periods during wttiehhedged transaction affects earnings (as tterlying debt is paid down). The
Company expects that the portion of the cumuldtgs recorded in AOCL at December 31, 2002 assstiatth these derivative instruments
which will be recognized within the next 12 monti#l be approximately $277,867.

At December 31, 2002, approximately $7.5 milliordeferred financing costs from past cash flow heglgistruments remain in
AOCL. These costs will be recognized into earniagshe underlying debt is repaid. The Company dzgbat the portion of the cumulative
loss recorded in AOCL at December 31, 2002 assmtiatth these derivative instruments, which willreeognized within the next 12
months, will be approximately $1.6 million.

9. A ccuMULATED O THER C OMPREHENSIVE | NCOME /(L 0sS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) represents netie plus the results of certain non-stockholdegsiity changes not reflected in
the Consolidated Statements of Income. The compgsémther comprehensive income/(loss) are asva@!($ in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2002 2001

Net income $ 93,46: $ 131,21:
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(lo

Unrealized derivative losses on cashflow hec (2,30€) (411

Reclassification of past hedging relationst — (10,597

Amortization of past hedging relationsh 1,54: 1,56

Total other comprehensive income/(lo 237 (9,44))

Total comprehensive incon $ 93,69¢ $ 121,77(
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10. DISCONTINUED O PERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED A SSETS

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Awting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAdsets.” SFAS 144
supercedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impaimtrof Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Asstetde disposed of” and the
accounting and reporting provisions for disposéla segment of business as addressed in APB 300tReg the Results of Operations-
Reporting the Effects of the Disposal of a Segnoémat Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and ¢pfeatly Occurring Events and
Transactions.” SFAS 144 is effective as of Janda®002 and extends the reporting requirementssebdtinued operations to include those
long-lived assets which:

(1) are classified held for sale at December 31, 2802 r@sult of disposal activities that were ingéhsubsequent to January 1, 2002
or

(2) were sold during 2002 as a result of disposal #igtd/that were initiated subsequent to Janua002.

Per SFAS 144, those long-lived assets which wdrkdiging 2002 and resulted from disposal actigiii@tiated prior to January 1,
2002 should be accounted for in accordance withSE2AL and APB 30. During 2002, the Company soldproperty which resulted from
disposal activities initiated prior to January @02, and the gain realized on the sale is apprgyiancluded in the gain/(loss) on disposition
of depreciable assets in the Company’s consolidstetéments of income.

Below represents the net operating results andareging value of 1.9 million square feet of prdyesold during 2002 and 2.3 million
square feet of property, 92 apartment units and0laé&res of revenue-producing land held for sal@estember 31, 2002. These were a result
of disposal activities that were initiated subseque the effective date of SFAS 144 and are diessas discontinued operations in the
Company'’s consolidated statements of income (fiongands):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Total revenue $ 32,42¢ $ 37,937 $ 33,72
Rental operating expens 9,407 10,27: 8,961
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,13¢ 7,59¢ 6,254
Interest expens 1,91¢ 1,71¢ 1,72(
Income before gain on sale of discontinued opematand minority intere: 13,96: 18,34¢ 16,78¢
Minority interest- income from discontinued operatic (1,657 (2,265 (2,097
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriteresi 12,31 16,08: 14,69¢
Gain on sale of discontinued operatit 12,27 — —
Minority interest- gain on sale of discontinued operatis (1,416 — —
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest 10,85¢ — —
Total discontinued operatiol $ 23,167 $ 16,080 $ 14,69:
Net carrying valut $106,950 $246,84° $250,73¢

In addition, SFAS 144 requires that a long-livededlassified as held for sale be measured abwer of the carrying value or fair
value less cost to sell. At December 31, 20020bmpany has determined that the carrying valuenefadfice property held for sale is less
than its fair value less cost to sell and has reizegl a $851,166 impairment loss, which is inclugtegain on sale of discontinued operations
in the consolidated statements of income for ther g@aded December 31, 2002.
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10. DISCONTINUED O PERATIONS AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED A sSETS— Continued

SFAS 144 also requires that the carrying valuelohg-lived asset classified as held and used bgaeed to the sum of its estimated
future undiscounted cash flows. If the carryinguesils greater than the sum of its undiscounteddutash flows, an impairment loss should
be recognized. At December 31, 2002, the Compasydwognized a $9.1 million impairment loss relatedne office property that will be
partially demolished and redeveloped into a classiBurban office property and whereby the carryalge exceeded the sum of the
property’s undiscounted future cash flows. Thisamment loss is included in gain/(loss) on disposibf depreciable assets in the
consolidated statements of income for the yeareidEember 31, 2002.

11. EARNINGS P ER SHARE

FASB Statement No. 128 replaced the calculatigoriofiary and fully diluted earnings per share wistsic and diluted earnings per
share. Unlike primary earnings per share, basiciegs per share excludes any dilutive effects dbog, warrants and convertible securities.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using thighted average number of shares of Common Stockhendilutive effect of options,
warrants and convertible securities outstandinggushe “treasury stock” method. Earnings per sliata is required for all periods for which
an income statement or summary of earnings is ptedeincluding summaries outside the basic firgratatements. All earnings per share
amounts for all periods presented have, where apiatte, been restated to conform to the FASB Stat#rhi28 requirements.
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11. EARNINGS P ER SHARE — Continued

The following table sets forth the computation aéic and diluted earnings per share:

2002 2001 2000

(% in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Numerator:
Income before minority interest, discontinued ofieres and extraordinary ite $ 80,32t $132,52! $140,40:
Non-convertible preferred stock dividends (30,857) (31,500 (32,580)
Minority interest (9,659 (16,687) (16,900
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryorteresi 12,31 16,08: 14,69¢
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest 10,85¢ — —
General partn(s portion of extraordinary itel (378 (714) (4,71])

Numerator for basic earnings per sh— income available to common stockhold $ 62,60¢ $ 99,71 $100,90

Effect of dilutive securities
Minority interest — — —
Minority interest portion of extraordinary ite — — —

Numerator for diluted earnings per sh— net income available to common stockholders er aft
assumed conversiol $ 62,60¢ $ 99,71 $100,90°

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings per st— weighte-average share 53,22¢ 54,22¢ 59,17¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options (. 254 337 162

Warrants (1, 5 6 10

Common Units converte — — —

Dilutive potential common shar 25¢ 343 172
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adflisteighted average shares and assumed

conversion: 53,48t 54,57 59,341
Basic earnings per she $ 118 $ 18 $ 17cC
Diluted earnings per sha $ 11792)$ 18%3)%$ 1.7(4)

(1) For additional disclosures regarding outstandirefgsred stock, the employee stock options and tireants, see Notes 4, 7 and 12
included herein.

(2) 7.1 million Common Units and the related $12.7 imillin minority interest, net of $45,000 of the ity interest’s portion of the
extraordinary item, were excluded from the diluttarnings per share calculation due to the anitidéd effect.

(3) 7.6 million Common Units and the related $18.9 imnllin minority interest, net of $88,000 of the ity interest’s portion of the
extraordinary item, were excluded from the diluttarnings per share calculation due to the anitidé effect.

(4) 8.4 million Common Units and the related $19.0 imrllin minority interest, net of $584,000 of thenmiity interest’s portion of the
extraordinary item, were excluded from the diluttarnings per share calculation due to the anitidé effect.
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11. EARNINGS P ER SHARE — Continued

The number of potentially convertible shares of nawm stock related to warrants and stock optionsatfellows:

December 31, December 31

2002 2001
Outstanding warrani 843,03! 843,03!
Outstanding stock optior 3,672,24! 3,854,622
Possible future issuance under stock option 1,410,98° 1,776,58

5,926,261 6,474,241

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had 146,58%8Mhmon shares available to be issued.

12. Stock O PTIONS AND W ARRANTS

As of December 31, 2002, 6.0 million shares ofGeenpany’s authorized Common Stock were reservesoiance under the
Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan. Stptikns granted under this plan generally vest aviewur- or five-year period beginning
with the date of grant.

In 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Boastiéd Statement of Financial Accounting StandamsLR3, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, (“SFAS 123"). SFAS I&®mmends the use of a fair value based methoctofiating for an employee stock
option whereby compensation cost is measured artve date on the fair value of the award anééegnized over the service period
(generally the vesting period of the award). Howe®&AS 123 specifically allows an entity to coménto measure compensation cost under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accdimg for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 259 long as pro forma disclosures of
income and earnings per share are made as if SE3&dd been adopted. The Company has electedda/f8PB 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for its employee ktoptions.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148¢ctfating for Stock-Based Compensation — Transiiot Disclosure”, which
amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Basethf@ensation”to provide alternative methods of transition farcduntary change to t
fair value based method of accounting for stockeda=mployee compensation. In addition, the stateareends the disclosure requirements
of Statement No. 123 to require prominent disclesun both annual and interim financial statemabtsut the method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effébeahethod used on reported results. The stanslaftective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after Decembe2082. On January 1, 2003, the Company will adopfair value method of accounting
stock-based compensation provisions of StatemenflR& The Company will apply the prospective mdthbaccounting and will expense
all future employee stock options (and similar alsaiover the vesting period based on the fair vafibe award on the date of grant. The
Company does not anticipate that the adoptionisfdtatement will have a material impact on itailssof operations.

Under SFAS 123, a public entity must estimate #ievialue of a stock option by using an option-jgcmodel that takes into account
as of the grant date the exercise price and exgpditeeof the options, the current price of the arging stock and its expected volatility,
expected dividends on the stock, and the riskifreest rate for the expected term of the opt®FAS 123 provides examples of possible
pricing models and includes the Black-Scholes pganodel, which the Company used to develop itSf@mma disclosures. However, as
previously noted, the Company does not believeghelh models provide a reliable single measuraefdir value of employee stock optio
Furthermore, the Black-Scholes model was develdpedse in estimating the fair value of traded ops that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable, rather than for use inmating the fair value of employee stock optionsgascitto vesting and transferability
restrictions.
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12. Stock O pTIONS AND W ARRANTS — Continued

Because SFAS 123 is applicable only to optionstgchaubsequent to December 31, 1994, only opticarsted subsequent to that date
were valued using this Black-Scholes model. Thevalue of the options granted in 2002 was estithatehe dates of the grant using the
following weighted average assumptions: risk-frgeriest rates ranging between 3.64% and 4.06%geatidi yield of 8.70%, expected
volatility of 22.72% and a weighted average expetife of the options of four years. The fair valiethe options granted in 2001 was
estimated at the dates of the grant using theuiatig weighted average assumptions: risk-free istai@es ranging between 5.76% and
6.11%, dividend yield of 9.00%, expected volatilitiy1 7.20% and a weighted average expected liftaebptions of four years. The fair value
of the options granted in 2000 was estimated atléttes of grant using the following weighted averagsumptions: risk-free interest rates
ranging between 5.78% and 6.67%, dividend yielti(b9®1%, expected volatility of 21.50% and a weidrdagerage expected life of the
options of four years. Had the compensation casthie Company’s stock option plans been determireed on the fair value at the dates of
grant for awards in 2002, 2001 and 2000 consistéthtthe provisions of SFAS 123, the Company’sinebme and net income per share
would have decreased to the pro forma amountsdasated:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(% in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income available for common sharehol— as reportet $ 62,60¢ $ 99,71: $ 100,90°
Net income available for common sharehol— pro forma $ 61,74« $ 97,39¢ $ 98,46¢
Net income per sha— basic (as reporte( $ 118 $ 184 $ 1.7C
Net income per sha— diluted (as reportec $ 117 $ 18 $ 17C
Net income per sha— basic (pro forma $ 11¢ $ 18C $ 1.6€
Net income per sha— diluted (pro forma $ 118 $ 17¢ $  1l.6¢
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12. Stock O pTIONS AND W ARRANTS — Continued

The following table summarizes information aboupéyees’ and Board of Directorstock options outstanding at December 31, 2
2001 and 2000:

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
Balances at December 31, 1¢ 4,399,43. $ 28.01
Options grante: 1,050,20- 20.9¢
Options cancele (2,072,45) 32.17
Options exercise (103,52) 16.8i
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,273,65! 23.0¢€
Options grante: 741,88: 25.0z
Options cancele (119,12) 26.9¢
Options exercise (41,799 18.2%
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,854,62. 23.3¢
Options grante: 570,33 26.9¢
Options cancele (204,739 25.6¢
Options exercise (547,979 21.71
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,672,24! $ 24.1¢

Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
December 31, 200 1,242,62' $ 24.4¢
December 31, 20C 1,712,621 $ 23.7¢
December 31, 200 1,729,32! $ 24.0¢

Exercise prices for options outstanding as of Ddmam31, 2002 ranged from $17.03 to $31.18. The htedyaverage remaining
contractual life of those options is 6.7 years.nggshe Black-Scholes options valuation model, tiegghted average fair value of options
granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $0.72, $n#l1$0.90, respectively.

Warrants
In connection with various acquisitions in 19959@%nd 1997, the Company issued warrants to puecteees of Common Stock.

The following table sets forth information regamgliwarrants outstanding as of December 31, 2002:

Number of Exercise
Date of Issuance Warrants Price
February 199! 35,00 $ 21.0C

April 1996 150,00( $ 28.0(



October 199" 538,03" $ 32.5C
December 199 120,00¢ $ 34.1:

Total 843,03!
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12. Stock O pTIONS AND W ARRANTS — Continued

The warrants granted in February 1995, April 1986 Becember 1997 expire 10 years from the respedttes of issuance. All
warrants are exercisable from the dates of issudreewarrants granted in October 1997 do not laavexpiration date.

13. CoOMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivadfitsancial institutions. The combined accouriahaes at each institution
typically exceed the FDIC insurance coverage as@, i@sult, there is a concentration of credit redlted to amounts on deposit in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage. Management of the Compaligves that the risk is not significant.

Land Leases

Certain properties in the Company’s wholly-ownedtfotio are subject to land leases expiring thro2@B2. Rental payments on these
leases are adjusted annually based on either timinwer price index or on a predetermined schedule.

For three properties, the Company has the optigrutchase the leased land during the lease tetine afreater of 85.0% of appraised
value or $35,000 per acre.

For two properties, the Company has the optiorutahmse the leased land at any time during the less. The purchase price ranges
from $2.3 million to $3.8 million.

The obligation for future minimum lease paymentasollows ($ in thousands):

2003 $ 1,25¢
2004 1,25¢
2005 1,257
2006 1,197
2007 1,17¢
Thereaftel 42 ,46¢

$ 48,607

Litigation

The Company is a party to a variety of legal proaegs arising in the ordinary course of its bussnd$he Company believes that it is
adequately covered by insurance and indemnificagmeements. Accordingly, none of such proceeding®xpected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, finanoiadlition and results of operations.

The Company reserved $2.7 million in September Z060fhe probable and estimated losses relatedriows legal proceedings from
previously completed mergers and acquisitions.
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13. CoMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES — Continued

Contracts

The Company has entered into construction conttatiating $52.1 million as of December 31, 2002e Bmounts remaining to be pi
under these contracts as of December 31, 2002tb$8.9 million.

Capital Expenditures

The Company presently has no plans for major daipifgrovements to the existing properties exceptlie $1.8 million renovation of
Tampa Bay Park, the $9.1 million renovations ati@guClub Plaza in Kansas City, and the $4.0 mnllifedevelopment of the property
vacated by the Environmental Protection Agencyéasdarch Triangle. The Company could incur tenaptdrements and lease commissions
related to releasing of space vacated by WorldCadhlUiS Airways.

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of the Company’s in-service pntjgs have been subjected to Phase | environmassaissments (and, in certain
instances, Phase Il environmental assessmentd).888essments and/or updates have not revealed, management aware of, any
environmental liability that management believesilddhave a material adverse effect on the acconipgrpnsolidated financial statements.

Joint Ventures

Certain properties owned in joint ventures withfiiated parties have buy/sell options that mayelxercised to acquire the other
partner’s interest by either the Company or itatj@enture partner if certain conditions are mesetdorth in the respective joint venture
agreement. The Company’s partner in SF-HIW HarlgavyiLP has the right to put its 80.0% equity ins¢iia the partnership to the Company
in cash at anytime during the one-year period conming on September 11, 2014. The value of the gintierest will be determined based
upon the then fair market value of SF-Harborvie®,dssets and liabilities.

In connection with several of its joint venturegshwiinaffiliated parties, the Company has agreeglivantee the rental revenue and re-
tenanting costs of certain properties contributesiadd to the joint ventures during 1999, 2000 2662. The agreements, which vary in term,
relate to vacant space in several properties olgdtree of the Company’s unconsolidated joint uezd. The Company makes monthly
payments to the joint ventures for any rent shitstfavhich may be incurred over the term of theeggnents. Any new leases signed during
guarantee period will reduce the amount of thetflbpayments owed by the Company. In additioe, @ompany is liable for tenant
improvements and lease commissions for certainntesgaces to be leased. During 1999 and 2000, dhg&ny accrued estimated losses for
each of the joint venture guarantee agreementsf Becember 31, 2002, the Company has $20.0 miflimmrued for obligations related to
these agreements. The Company believes thatiilsages of future obligations related to the rerdrgmtees are adequate. However, if the
Company’s assumptions and estimates are incouteeflosses may occur.
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13. CoMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES — Continued

In connection with the MG-HIW, LLC joint venturdyg Company has guaranteed Miller Global, its parie has an 80.0% interest
in the joint venture, a minimum internal rate aiura on $50.0 million of their equity investmentthre joint venture’s Orlando assets. If the
minimum internal rate of return is not achieved miploe sale of these assets or winding up of the ja@nture, Miller Global would receive a
disproportionate share of the cash proceeds refaték Orlando assets. Based upon the currenfioaedasted operating performance of tr
assets and the Company’s estimate of their residilag, the estimated internal rate of return faltdviGlobal with respect to their Orlando
equity is not less than the minimum required retéda result, the Company does not currently exied its interest in the joint venture will
be adjusted upon the sale of the subject ass#te ovinding up of the joint venture as a resulthaf internal rate of return guarantee.
However, if the operating performance of the asaetior the residual value were to be lower th@nGbmpany’s estimates, Miller Global
could receive a disproportionately greater shath@itash proceeds from any such sale or windirgndpthe Company’s share would be
correspondingly lower.

In connection with the Metrowest Il, LLC joint vemée, the Company has guaranteed $2.7 million o$ttontion debt. The debt has
been guaranteed by the Company subject to a on@émnity from its joint venture partner.

In connection with the Plaza Colonnade, LLC joiahture, the Company and its joint venture partiaseteach guaranteed 50.0% of a
$61.3 million construction loan. The loan repaymguarantees are reduced upon the project reachitgjrc predetermined criteria. In
addition, the guarantees are reduced to 25.0%edbtm balance. In addition to the constructiomldascribed above, the partners have
provided collectively $12.0 million in letters ofedlit, $6.0 million by the Company and $6.0 millioy its partner. During construction the
joint venture is required to have in place the afioentioned letters of cred

Dispositions

In connection with the November 26, 2002 dispositid 225,220 square feet of properties, fully lebgeCapital One Services, Inc., a
subsidiary of Capital One Financial Services, Itite, Company has agreed to guarantee for the beféfie owner any rent shortfalls which
may be incurred for the payment of rent, and restéing costs for a five year period of time froma thate of sale. Two of the properties
comprising 148,175 square feet have leases thaearpMarch 2010. In the event the tenant defauttder these leases, the Company’s
contingent liability as of December 31, 2002 is 81®illion. The other property is subject to a ZlB&quare feet lease that expires in May
2004. In the event the tenant defaults or doesem@w this lease in May 2004, the Company’s astegticontingent liability as of December
31, 2002 is $7.2 million. Any new leases signedrduthe guarantee period will reduce the amounhefrent shortfall guarantee to the ow
In addition, the Company is liable for a proratedtion of the re-tenanting costs of new leaseseGihis guarantee, the Company has not
recorded any gain on the disposition of these piigse The deferred gain of approximately $6.9 imnillwill be recognized when the
contingency period is concluded.
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14. DiSCcLOSURE A BOUT F AIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL | NSTRUMENTS

The following disclosures of estimated fair valuerevdetermined by management using available markoemation and appropriate
valuation methodologies. Considerable judgmenetessary to interpret market data and develop atgdrfair values. Accordingly, the
estimates presented herein are not necessarilyaitiett of the amounts that the Company could realizon disposition of the financial
instruments. The use of different market assumptaord/or estimation methodologies may have a nahiffect on the estimated fair values.
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values®Qompany’s financial instruments at Decembe2802 were as follows:

Carrying Fair
Amount Value

($ in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,017 % 11,017
Accounts and notes receival $ 44,63t $ 44,63*
Mortgages and notes payal $ (1,528,72) $ (1,612,88)

The fair values for the Company’s fixed rate mogegmand notes payable were estimated using disbaash flow analysis, based on
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing aateecember 31, 2002, for similar types of borrapémrangements. The carrying
amounts of the Company’s variable rate borrowirgeaximate fair value.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial instents are based on relevant information avail@biee Company at December 31,
2002. Although management is not aware of any fadttat would have a material effect on the falugaamounts reported herein, such
amounts have not been revalued since that datelaneht estimates of fair value may significantiffed from the amounts presented herein.

15. DISPOSITIONS

During 2002, the Company contributed to joint veesuor sold approximately 2.5 million rentable sguaet of office and industrial
properties and 137.7 acres of development landrfuss proceeds of $302.2 million. The Company @@ gain of $24.5 million related to
these dispositions.

During 2001, the Company contributed to joint veesuor sold approximately 425,000 rentable squeeedf office and industrial
properties, 215.7 acres of development land antlapartment units for gross proceeds of $180.8omilThe Company recorded a gain of
$16.2 million related to these dispositions.

During 2000, the Company contributed to joint veesuor sold approximately 8.2 million rentable sgueet of office, industrial and
retail properties and 272 acres of development fandross proceeds of $801.1 million. The Compeeoprded a gain of $4.7 million related
to these dispositions.

16. SUBSEQUENT E VENT

On February 2, 1998, the Operating Partnership $bkb.0 million of MandatOry Par Put Remarketedusiges (‘“MOPPRS”) due
February 1, 2013. The MOPPRS bore an interesofgae835% from the date of issuance through Jan8&r2003. On January 31, 2003, the
interest rate was changed to 8.975% pursuant tmtleest rate reset provisions of the MOPPRS. €rdrary 3, 2003, the Operating
Partnership repurchased 100.0% of the principalusrinof the MOPPRS from the sole holder thereofithange for a secured note in the
principal amount of $142.8 million. The securedebears interest at a fixed rate of 6.03% and hmaatarity date of February 28, 2013.
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16. SUBSEQUENT E VENT — Continued

The following table sets forth the principal payrsedue on our longerm debt as of December 31, 2002, as adjustethdéarefinancing
of the MOPPRS on February 3, 2003 ($ in thousands):

Fixed Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
MOPPRS
Put Option Note:
Notes
Secured:
Mortgages and loans payal

Total Fixed Rate Del

Variable Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
Term Loan
Revolving Loar
Secured:
Revolving Loar
Mortgage loan payab

Total Variable Rate Del

Total Long Term Debt

17. SEGMENT | NFORMATION

Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
$ — 3 — % — % — 5 — $ — 3 —
100,00( — — — — — 100,00(
706,50( 246,50( — — 110,00( — 350,00(
658,22( 11,737 14,91¢ 79,68¢ 17,50¢ 77,43¢ 456,93°
1,464,72 258,23 14,91¢ 79,68¢ 127,50¢ 77,43¢ 906,93°
20,00( — — 20,00( — — —
57,50( 57,50( — — — — —
4,30¢ 24¢€ 265 27¢ 292 3,22 —
81,80¢ 57,74¢ 26E 20,27¢ 29z 3,22 —
$1,546,52' $315,98! $15,18: $99,96: $127,80( $80,66: $ 906,93

The sole business of the Company is the acquisitienelopment and operation of rental real estaipasties. The Company operates
office, industrial and retail properties and apamtunits. There are no material inter-segmensaetions.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CDM&sesses and measures operating results basegroperty level net
operating income. The operating results for théviddal assets within each property type have lzmregated since the CDM evaluates
operating results and allocates resources on a&pyepy-property basis within the various propdytpes.
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17. SEGMENT | NFORMATION — Continued

The accounting policies of the segments are thee smthose described in Note 1 included hereirihEyrall operations are within the

United States and no tenant comprises more thandf@¥nsolidated revenues. The following table samres the rental income, net
operating income and assets for each reportableesggor the years ended December 31, 2002, 2002@00 ($ in thousands):

Rental Revenue (A):
Office segmen
Industrial segmer
Retail segmer
Apartment segmetr

Total Rental Revenue

Net Operating Income (A):
Office segmen
Industrial segmer
Retail segmer
Apartment segmetr

Total Net Operating Income

Reconciliation to income before gain/(loss) on diggition of land and depreciable assets,
minority interest, discontinued operations and extaordinary item:

Depreciation and amortizatic

Interest expens

General and administrative expen
Litigation reserve

Interest and other incon

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Income before gain/(loss) on disposition of land @hdepreciable assets, minority interest,
discontinued operations and extraordinary item

Total Assets:
Office segmen
Industrial segmer
Retail segmer
Apartment segmet
Corporate and othe

Total Assets

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
$ 379,81. $ 388,03 $ 417,10
34,41¢ 36,14¢ 40,08:
38,82¢ 37,13¢ 35,62¢
1,163 7,961 17,00¢
$ 454,22( $ 469,27¢ $ 509,81!
$ 256,36¢ $ 266,13 $ 291,30:
27,08 29,43 33,10¢
26,88¢ 25,09¢ 24,72¢
467 3,92 9,84¢
$ 310,80t $ 324,59 $ 358,98¢
(126,639 (113,469 (113,189
(110,52)  (106,78)  (111,10)
(24,57¢) (21,390) (21,84))
(2,700 — —
13,65( 24,49. 19,03:
8,06¢ 8,911 3,86¢
$ 68,07¢ $ 116,35 $ 135,74

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
$2,608,94 $2,859,871 $2,661,91
354,61 343,60t 299,66(
258,79¢ 263,62: 273,02:
15,19: 10,39 118,14«
157,81 170,78! 348,86:
$3,395,36! $3,648,28/ $3,701,60:;




(A) Net of discontinued operations.
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18. RESTATED Q UARTERLY F INANCIAL D ATA (Unaudited):

The Company has set forth selected quarterly fiadudata for the years ended December 31, 20026@64. Because certain of the
data set forth in the following tables varies framounts previously reported on the Form 10-Q ferapplicable period, the following tables
and the accompanying footnotes reconcile the ansagimén with those previously reported and desdtieereason for the differences.

The following table sets forth quarterly finanamformation for the Company’s fiscal year ended &aber 31, 2002 ($ in thousands
except per share amounts):

Fourth
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Quarter Tota
Previously Discontinuec Previously Discontinuec Previously Discontinuec
Restatec Restatec Restatec
Reported Operations Reported Operations Reported Operations
Amounts 1) Adjustment  Amounts Amounts 1) Adjustment Amounts Amounts 1) Adjustment  Amounts
Rental
revenue  $ 124,971 $ (8,54¢) $ — $116,420 $ 118,61 $ (7,430 $ —  $111,18! $ 117,36¢ $ (3,109 $ —  $114,26($112,35: $454,:
Operating
expenses
?3) 96,16¢ (4,700 — 91,46¢ 95,69¢ (4,06¢6) — 91,63( 99,14: (1,63)) — 97,51 102,67: 383,.
General and )
administra 5,174 4) 18€(2) 5,35¢ 5,537 4) 3,5142) 9,047 7,847 — (3,70((2) 4,147 6,02¢ 24!
Total other
income 5,97¢ (70) — 5,90¢ 5,23¢ (65) — 5,17¢ 4,08¢ (20) — 4,06¢ 6,56z 21,
29,61: (3,919 (18€) 25,51! 22,61¢ (3,425 (3,519 15,68( 14,46¢ (1,49¢) 3,70 16,67( 10,217 68,(
Gain on
disposition
of land anc
depreciabl )
assets 944 — — 944 6,672 828 2,691(4) 10,19: 3,59¢ 4 (2,691(4) 912 19¢ 12
30,55¢ (3,919 (18€) 26,45¢ 29,29: (2,597) (823) 25,87 18,06 (1,499 1,00¢ 17,58. 10,41¢ 80,
Minority
interest (3,722) 47¢ 23 (3,22)) (3,47)) 297 98 (3,07¢) (2,21¢) 174 (121) (2,167 (1,197 (9,¢
Income from
continuing
operations 26,83: (3,43¢6) (163 23,23¢ 25,821 (2,300 (725) 22,79¢ 15,85: (1,320 88¢ 15,41¢ 9,227 70,
Discontinued
operations 202 3,43¢ — 3,63¢ 2,65¢ 2,30( — 4,95¢ (1,539 1,32 — (21¢) 14,79¢ 23,
27,03t — (163 26,87: 28,47¢ — (725) 27,75( 14,31: — 88¢ 15,20C 24,017 93¢
Extraordinary
item — — — — — — — — (37¢) — — (37¢) — [
Netincome $ 27,035 $ — $ (163) $26,872 $ 28,47 $ — % (725) $27,750 $ 13,934 $ — $ 888 $ 14,820 % 24,017$ 93,
I N B I N B B I B S S I D E—
Net income
per share-
basic:
Income from
cont.
operations $ 0.36 $ (0.07) $ — $ 029 % 0.34 $ (0.04) $ 0.02) $ 028 % 0.16 $ (0.03) $ 002 $ 0.1t$ 0.0:$ O

Discontinued

operations $ — 0.07 $ — $ 007 $ 0.0t $ 0.04 $ — $ 009% (003)% 0.03 $ — 3 —$ 02% O
Net income

(5) $ 0.36 $ — $ — $ 036 % 0.3¢ $ — $ (0.02) $ 037 $ 012 $ — % 002 $ 014% 031%$ 1
Net income

per share-

diluted:



Income
cont.

from

operations $ 0.36 $ 0.07) $ — $ 029 % 034 $ (0.04) $ 0.02) $ 028 % 0.16 $ (0.03) $ 002 $ 01t$ 0.0:$ O

Discontinued

operations $ — $ 0.07 $ — $ 007 % 0.0t $ 0.04 $ — $ 009% (0.03)% 0.03 $ — % —$ 02i$ O
Net income

(5) $ 036 % — % — $ 036 % 03$ —$ (002 $ 037% 012 $ —$ 002 $ 014$ 03C$ 1

(1) OnJanuary 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 14ddinting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longxbdl Assets”. In

)

®3)
(4)

®)

accordance with SFAS 144, certain amounts fronfitkethree quarters have been reclassified tootiicued operations to reflect the
results of operations for those properties qualdyas discontinued operations as of December 32. Z¥e Note 10 included herein for
a more detailed discussion of the Company’s discoat operations. The column titled “Discontinuege@ations’reflects the amoun
that have been reclassified

As reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q for the éhmeonths ended September 30, 2002 , in the thdeuof 2002, the Company
recorded nonrecurring compensation expense ofi#8lidn ($3.3 million net of minority interest) rated to the exercise of options, of
which $186,000 ($163,000 net of minority interestyl $3.5 million ($3.1 million net of minority im@st) occurred in the first and
second quarters of 2002, respectively. In the alabie, the first three quarters have been adjusteeflect the nonrecurring
compensation expense in the first and second gaarteher than in the third quarter as previousported. The column titled
“Adjustment” reflects the adjusted amounts.

Operating expenses include rental property opeyaipenses, depreciation and amortization, intesgetnse and litigation reserve.

As reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q for the éhmeonths ended September 30, 2002 , in the thdguof 2002, the Company
recorded $2.7 million of additional gain ($2.4 noili net of minority interest) that resulted frone thale of a building during the second
quarter of 2002 that had not been recorded duhiaggeriod due to an error in the consolidatiorcess. In the above table, the second
and third quarters have been adjusted to reflecatiditional gain in the second quarter, rathem thahe third quarter as previously
reported. The column titled “Adjustment” reflecketadjusted amounts.

Amounts represent net income available to CommonkBblders per share, which exclude preferred diwits.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

18. RESTATED Q UARTERLY F INANCIAL D ATA (Unaudited): — Continued

The following table sets forth quarterly finandmformation for the Company'’s fiscal year ended &aber 31, 2001 ($ in thousands
except per share amounts):

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
Dis- Dis- Dis- Dis- Dis-
Previously continued Previously continued Previously continued Previously continued Previously continued
Operations Restatec Operations Restatec Operations Restatec Operations Restatec Operations Restate(
Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported
Amounts 1) Amounts Amounts 1) Amounts Amounts 1) Amounts Amounts 1) Amounts Amounts 1) Amounts
Rental
revenue $ 128,62:$  (9,329$119,29:$ 126,19:$  (9,08)$117,11:$ 125,79:$ (9,169$116,63($ 126,24:$ (10,0000$116,24:$ 506,85($ (37,574)$469,27
Operating
expenses
) 95,10: (4,679 90,427  94,40¢ (4,537 89,87¢  93,90¢ (5,157 88,75¢ 101,09t (5,217 95,87¢ 384,51  (19,57%) 364,93
General and
administra 5,212 (4) 5,20¢ 5,451 (3) 5,44¢ 4,78¢ (3) 4,781 5,957 (4) 5,95 21,40« (14) 21,39
Total other
income 8,64¢ (38) 8,60¢ 9,372 (230) 9,14: 8,347 (45 8,30z 7,40( (50)  7,35(C 33,765 (363) 33,40
36,95¢ (4,689 32,26¢ 35,707 (4,775 30,93: 35,45: (4,055 31,397 26,58¢ (4,829 21,75¢ 134,70: (18,34¢ 116,35
Gain on
disposition
of land anc
depreciabl
assets 7,071 — 7,071 5,67( — 5,67( 3,351 — 3,357 74 — 74 16,17: — 16,17
44,02¢ (4,689 39,33¢ 41,371 (4,77%) 36,60: 38,80¢ (4,055 34,75¢ 26,66 (4,829 21,83: 150,87: (18,34¢ 132,52
Minority
interest (5,25)) 562  (4,68%) (5,095 597 (4,499 (4,820 511 (4,309 (3,789) 594 (3,18f) (18,94%) 2,265 (16,68
Income from
continuing

operations 38,77« (4,12¢) 34,64¢ 36,28 (4,17¢) 32,10¢ 33,98¢ (3,544 30,44¢ 22,88( (4,235 18,64t 131,92 (16,087 115,84
Discontinued

operations — 4,12¢ 4,12¢ — 4,17¢ 4,17¢ — 3,54¢ 3,54¢ — 4,23 4,23 — 16,08: 16,08
38,77¢ — 38,77¢ 36,28: — 36,28: 33,98¢ —  33,98¢ 22,88( — 22,88( 131,92 — 131,92

Extraordinary
item (199) — (199 (325) — (325) — — — (19€) — (19€) (714) — (71«
Netincome $ 38,58 % —$38581 $ 35957 % — $35957% 33,98¢$ — $33,989% 22,68:% — $22684% 131,21:$ — $131,21

Net income
per share-
basic:
Income from
continuing
operations $ 0.54% 0.09$ 047 $ 0.55 % (0.0 0.45 % 0.4¢$ 0.00$ 042% 0.2¢$ 0.0 021 % 1.8t % (0.30)$ 1.55

Discontinued
operations $ —$ 0.07$ 0.07 % —$ 0.06¢$ 0.08 % —$ 0.07$ 007 % —$ 0.06$ 0.08 $ —$ 0.3($ 0.30

Net income
?3) $ 0.5¢% —$%$ 054% 0.5z % —$ 052% 0.4¢$ —$ 049% 0.2¢$ —$%$ 029% 1.84% —$ 184

Net income
per share-
diluted:

Income from

continuing
operations $ 0.54% 0.09$ 047 $ 0.5z % (0.07$ 045 3% 0.4¢$ 0.09$ 042% 0.2¢$ (0.09% 0.21 % 184% (0.29% 1.55



Discontinued
operations $ —$ 0.07$ 0.07 % —$ 0.07$ 0.07$ —$ 0.07$ 007 % —$ 0.06$ 0.08 $ —$ 0.2¢$ 0.29

Net income
3) $ 0.5¢% —$%$ 054% 0.51% —$ 051% 0.4¢$ —$ 049% 0.2¢$ —$%$ 029% 1.8 % —$ 1.83

(1) OnJanuary 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 14ddunting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longxbdl Assets”. In
accordance with SFAS 144, certain amounts fronfitbethree quarters have been reclassified toodisicued operations to reflect the
results of operations for those properties qualdyas discontinued operations as of December 32. Z¥Ee Note 10 included herein for
a more detailed discussion of the Company’s discoat operations. The column titled “Discontinuege@ations’reflects the amoun
that have been reclassified.

(2) Operating expenses include rental property opeyatipenses, depreciation and amortization, intepgstnse and litigation reserve.

(3) Amounts represent net income available to CommonkBblders per share, which exclude preferred divits.

F-40



Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE Ill - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION

12 /31 /2002
(In Thousands)

Cost Capitalized
subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

» HE ! Life on
Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period Which
Depreciation
Accumulated
2002 Building & Building & Building & Date of is
Description ~ JDE City Encumberanc Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Computed
Atlanta, GA
Two Point
Royal 2006( Atlanta 1,79:¢ 14,951 — 382 1,79 15,332 17,12¢ 2,074 1997 5-40 yrs.
400 North
Business
Park 2007C Atlanta 97¢ 6,112 — 504 97¢ 6,616 7,59t 978 1985 5-40 yrs.
50 Glenlake 2008( Atlanta 2,50( 20,000 — 289 2,50 20,28¢ 22,78¢ 2,725 1997 5-40 yrs.
6348
Northeast
Expresswa 2009( Atlanta 277 1,629 — 112 277 1,741 2,01¢ 264 1978 5-40 yrs.
6438
Northeast
Expresswa 2010( Atlanta 181 2,225 — 123 181 2,348 2,52¢ 368 1981 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Lakes | 2011C Atlanta 81€ 3,775 — 3) 81€ 3,772 4,58¢ 655 1999 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Place | 2013C Atlanta 491 2,016 — 54 491 2,070 2,561 294 1995 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Place Il 2014C Atlanta 412 2,529 — 58 412 2,587 2,99¢ 359 1996 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Valley 2015C Atlanta 1,50(¢ — — 4,253  1,50( 4,253 5,75% 388 2000 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Land Site
V10 2016( Atlanta 1,82¢ — — — 1,82 — 1,82¢ — 1999 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Land Site
Vi4 2017C Atlanta 2,36t — — —  2,36f — 2,36t — 1999 5-40 yrs.
Bluegrass
Phase 2 6030C Atlanta 6,977 — — — 6,977 — 6,977 — N/A N/A
1700 Century
Circle 2833( Atlanta — 2,456 — 493 — 2,949 2,94¢ 131 1983 5-40 yrs.
1700 Century
Center 2018( Atlanta 1,11¢ 3,148 — 667 1,11¢ 3,815 4,93( 910 1972 5-40 yrs.
1800 Century
Boulevard  2019( Atlanta 1,441 28,939 — 9,288 1,441 38,227 39,66¢ 4,905 1975 5-40 yrs.
1825 Century
Center
(CDC) 2861( Atlanta 864 11,539 4,916 864 16,455 17,31¢ 173 2002 5-40 yrs.
1875 Century
Boulevard  2020( Atlanta — 8,790 — 598 — 9,388 9,38¢ 1,507 1976 5-40 yrs.
1900 Century
Boulevard 2021( Atlanta — 4,721 — 919 — 5,640 5,64( 1,167 1971 5-40 yrs.
2200 Century
Parkway 2022( Atlanta — 14,274 — 2,026 — 16,30C  16,30( 2,989 1971 5-40 yrs.
2400 Century
Center 2023( Atlanta — 14,970 — 69 — 15,03¢ 15,03¢ 3,429 1998 5-40 yrs.
2600 Century
Parkway 2024( Atlanta — 10,254 — 1,197 — 11,451 11,45 1,875 1973 5-40 yrs.
2635 Century
Parkway 2025( Atlanta — 21,083 — 1,513 — 22,59€ 22,59¢ 3,758 1980 5-40 yrs.
2800 Century
Parkway 2026( Atlanta — 19,963 — 770 — 20,732 20,73: 3,164 1983 5-40 yrs.
Chattahooche
Avenue 2027C Atlanta 24¢ 1,817 — 306 24¢ 2,123 2,371 502 1970 5-40 yrs.
Chastain Plac
| 2028( Atlanta 472 3,011 — 960 472 3,971 4,447 1,202 1997 5-40 yrs.
Chastain Plac
1] 2029( Atlanta 607 2,097 — 17 607 2,114 2,721 579 1998 5-40 yrs.
Chastain Plac
1Ll 2030C Atlanta 53¢ 1,662 — — 53¢ 1,662 2,201 387 1999 5-40 yrs.



Corporate
Lakes

Cosmopolitan
North

Century Plaz:
|

Century Plaza
1l

Deerfield Il
EKA
Chemical
1035 Fred
Drive
5125 Fulton
Industrial
Drive
Gwinnett
Distributior
Center
Kennestone
Corporate
Center
La Vista
Business
Park
Norcross | &
I}

Nortel
Newpoint
Place |
Newpoint
Place Il
Newpoint
Place IlI
Newpoint
Place IV
Newpoint
Place Land
Oakbrook |
Oakbrook Il
Oakbrook Il
Oakbrook IV

Oakbrook V
Oakbrook
Summit
Oxford Lake
Business
Center
Peachtree
Corners
Land
Southside
Distributior
Center
Highwoods
Center | at
Tradeport

2032(

2033(

2034(

2035(
2807(

2040(

2041(C

2043(

2047(C

2048(

2049(

2050(
2051(C

2052(

2053(

2054(

2821(

2055(
2057(
2058(
2059(
2060(
2061(

2062(

2063(

2065(

2069(

2072(

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta
Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta
Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta
Atlanta
Atlanta
Atlanta
Atlanta
Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

®)
©)
®)
®)
®)

1,27¢
2,85¢
1,29(C

1,38(
1,01(C

60¢

27C

57¢

1,12¢

51¢

821

32¢
3,342

82t
1,43¢
661
1,012

19¢
873
1,57¢
1,48(
952
2,20¢

95(

85t

1,18¢

81C

30¢

7,227
4,155
8,425

7,589
3,341

9,883

1,239

3,116

5,943

4,874

5,244

1,979
32,109

3,799
3,321
1,866

5,308

4,948
8,388
8,388
5,400
12,501

6,572

7,014

1,219

3,299

F-41

653
1,536
1,423

1,092

284

141

752

339

902

103
14

308
1,575

710

10
535
1,795
544
464
971

790

457

3,481

119

1,27¢
2,85¢
1,29(C

1,38(
1,01(C

27C

57¢

1,12¢

51¢&

821

32€
3,342

82t
1,48:
661
1,012

2,12¢
8172
1,57¢
1,48(
952
2,20¢

95C

85¢E

1,18¢

81C

30¢E

7,880
5,691
9,848

8,681
3,341

9,886

1,523

3,257

6,695

5,213

6,146

2,082
32,122

4,107
4,896
2,576
5,308

10
5,483
10,182
8,932
5,864
13,472

7,362

7,471

4,700

3,418

9,15¢
8,54¢
11,13¢

10,06:
4,351

10,49¢

1,79%

3,83¢

7,82%

5,731

6,967

2,40¢
35,46¢

4,93
6,37¢
3,231
6,32(

2,13¢
6,35¢€
11,76:
10,41
6,817
15,67¢

8,31:

8,32¢

1,18¢

5,51(

3,72¢

1,460
1,329
952

758
56

1,184

196

538

1,106

818

1,103

321
3,849

1,351
721
610

46

957
2,084
1,577
1,054
2,614

1,320

1,138

740

756

1988

1980

1981

1984
2001

1998

1973

1973

1991

1985

1973

1970
1998

1998

1999

1998

2001

N/A

1981
1983
1984
1985
1985

1981

1985

N/A

1988

1999

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
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Gross Amount at
which Carried at

Cost Capitalized
subsequent

Initial cost to Acquisition Close of Period
Accumulated
2002 Building & Building & Building &

Description JDE City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation
Highwoods Center Il at Tradepc 2071C Atlanta 635 3,474 — 757 635 4,231 4,86€ 749
Highwoods Center Ill at Tradeport  2859C Atlanta 402 2,121 3 1,132 405 3,253 3,65¢ 650
Tradeport Land 2073C Atlanta 5,314 — 35 58 5,34¢ 58 5,407 1
Tradeport Place 2074C Atlanta 557 2,669 — 185 557 2,854 3,411 598
Tradeport Il 2075C Atlanta 557 3,456 — 59 557 3,515 4,072 829
Tradeport IlI 2076C Atlanta — — 668 3,942 668 3,942 4,61C 575
Tradeport IV 2826( Atlanta 661 3,182 — 636 661 3,818 4,47¢ 163
Tradeport V 2874C Atlanta 459 1,815 489 459 2,304 2,763 14
Baltimore, MD
Sportsman Club Lan 2077C Baltimore 24,702 — — — 24,702 — 24,702 —
Charlotte, NC —

Ridgefield 2003C Charlotte 791 — — — 791 — 791 —
4101 Stuart Andrew Bouleva 2080C Charlotte 70 510 — 284 70 794 864 302
4105 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2081C Charlotte 26 189 — 33 26 222 248 60
4109 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2082C Charlotte 87 636 — 75 87 711 798 163
4201 Stuart Andrew Bouleva 2083C Charlotte 110 809 — 88 110 897 1,007 202
4205 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2084C Charlotte 134 979 — 86 134 1,065 1,19¢ 237
4209 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2085( Charlotte 91 665 — 116 91 781 872 208
4215 Stuart Andrew Bouleva 2086( Charlotte 133 978 — 94 133 1,072 1,20t 245
4301 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2087C Charlotte 232 1,702 — 175 232 1,877 2,10¢ 436
4321 Stuart Andrew Boulevard 2088C Charlotte 73 534 — 42 73 576 649 128
4601 Park Square 2089C Charlotte 2,601 7,802 — 341 2,601 8,143 10,74¢ 1,021
Alston & Bird 2090C Charlotte 2,362 5,379 (2,362 (5,379) — — — —
First Citizens Building 2091C Charlotte 647 5,528 — 719 647 6,247 6,894 1,635
Twin Lakes Distribution Center 2092C Charlotte 2,81€ 6,570 (2,81€) (6,57C) — — — —
Mallard Creek | 2093C Charlotte 1,24¢€ 4,142 — 610 1,24¢€ 4,752 6,00C 690
Mallard Creek IlI 2094C Charlotte 845 4,762 — 202 845 4,964 5,80¢ 638
Mallard Creek IV 2095( Charlotte 348 1,152 — 12 348 1,164 1,512 143
Mallard Creek V 2096C Charlotte 1,665 8,738 — 2,697 1,665 11,435 13,10C 1,657
Mallard Creek VI 2097C Charlotte 834 — — 834 — 834 —
Oakhill Land 2099C Charlotte 2,797 — — 2,797 — 2,797 —
Oakhill Business Park English Oak 2100C Charlotte (5) 750 4,248 — 312 750 4,560 5,31C 796
Oakhill Business Park Laurel O 2101C Charlotte 5) 471 2,671 — 405 471 3,076 3,547 672
Oakhill Business Park Live Oak 2102C Charlotte 1,402 5,611 — 1,193 1,402 6,804 8,207 1,529
Oakhill Business Park Scarlet Oak 2103C Charlotte (5) 1,072 6,078 — 545 1,072 6,623 7,69€ 1,295
Oakhill Business Park Twin O¢ 2104cC Charlotte (5) 1,242 7,044 — 713 1,242 7,757 9,00C 1,482
Oakhill Business Park Willow Oak  2105C Charlotte (5) 442 2,505 — 910 442 3,415 3,857 1,000
Oakhill Business Park Water Oak 2106C Charlotte (5) 1,623 9,196 — 965 1,623 10,161 11,78¢ 2,126
Pinebrook 2107C Charlotte 846 4,607 — 409 846 5,016 5,862 837
One Parkway Plaza Building 2108C Charlotte 1,11C 4,741 — 884 1,11C 5,625 6,73E 1,236
Two Parkway Plaza Building 2109C Charlotte 1,694 6,777 — 1,675 1,694 8,452 10,14¢ 2,383
Three Parkway Plaza Building 2110C Charlotte 3) 1,57C 6,282 — 881 1,57C 7,163 8,732 1,640
Six Parkway Plaza Buildin 2111C Charlotte — 2,438 — 531 — 2,969 2,96¢ 858
Seven Parkway Plaza Building 2112C Charlotte — 4,648 — 253 — 4,901 4,901 894
Eight Parkway Plaza Building 2113C Charlotte — 4,698 — 202 — 4,900 4,90C 878
Nine Parkway Plaza Buildin 2114C Charlotte — 6,008 — (6,009) — — — —
Eleven Parkway Plaza 2115C Charlotte — 2,328 160 220 160 2,548 2,70¢ 539
Twelve Parkway Plaza 2116C Charlotte 112 1,489 — 302 112 1,791 1,902 316
Fourteen Parkway Plaza Buildil 2117C Charlotte 483 6,077 — 994 483 7,071 7,554 1,142
University Cente 2840C Charlotte 1,29€ 216 — 1,29€ 216 1,512 17
University Center — Land 2841C Charlotte 7,95¢ — — — 7,95¢ —  7,95¢ —
Oakhill Land 2870C Charlotte 1,157 — — — 1,157 — 1,157 —



Columbia, SC
Centerpoint |
Centerpoint Il
Centerpoint V
Centerpoint VI
Fontaine |
Fontaine Il
Fontaine Ill
Fontaine V

Piedmont Triad, N(
6348 Burnt Poplar
6350 Burnt Poplar
Chinney Rock A/B
Chinney Rock

2127C
2128C
2129C
2130c
2131C
2132C
2133C
2134C

2139C
2140C
2141C
2142C

Columbia
Columbia
Columbia
Columbia
Columbia
Columbia
Columbia
Columbia

Piedmont Triad
Piedmont Triad
Piedmont Triad
Piedmont Triac

1,312
1,182
265
273
1,21¢
941
853
395

721
339
1,61C
604

F-42

7,441
8,724
1,279

6,907
5,335
4,333
2,237

2,883
1,365
3,757
1,408

444
13
348

1,44¢€
836
120
19

42
64
514
108

1,313
1,182
265
273
1,21¢
941
853
395

721
339
1,611
604

7,885
8,737
1,627

8,353
6,171
4,453
2,256

2,925
1,429
4,271
1,516

9,19¢
9,92C
1,892

273
9,572
7,112
5,30€
2,651

3,64¢€
1,76€
5,882
2,12C

1,416
1,869
451

1,442
1,572
841
355

574
295
638
174
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Cost Capitalized
subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Initial Cost Acquisition Close of Period .
Life on
Which
Accumulated Depreciation
2002 Building & Building & Building & Date of
Description JDE City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction is Computed
Piedmont
Chimney Rock D 2143(C  Triad 23€ 550 — 93 23€ 643 87¢ 113 1983 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Chimney Rock E 2144(C  Triad 1,692 3,94¢ 1 365 1,69: 4,31F  6,00¢ 494 1985 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Chimney Rock F 2145  Triad 1,431 3,33¢ 1 267 1,43 3,605 5,037 409 1987 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Chimney Rock C 2146(  Triad 1,04¢ 2,43t 1 184 1,04¢ 2,61¢ 3,66« 298 1987 5-40 yrs.
Deep River Piedmont
Corporate Center 2147(  Triad 1,03 5,85t — 434 1,03 6,28¢ 7,32 1,19C 1989 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Copier Piedmont
Consultants 2148(  Triad 2) 252 1,006 (29 124 223 1,13z 1,35t 250 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building 1 2149C  Triad ) 377 1,51C — 16C 377 1,67C 2,047 393 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building 2 2150C  Triad ) 461 1,84z — 174 461 2,01€ 2,47 373 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building 3 2151C  Triad ) 321 1,28: — 214 321 1,497 1,81¢ 340 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
HewlettPackarc  2152( Triad 2) 465 727  55¢ 336 1,02¢ 1,065 2,087 325 1996 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Inacomnr Piedmont
Building 2153(  Triad ) 26E 478  39¢ 294 661 772 1,43t 300 1996 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Airpark EastSimplex 2154(  Triad ) 271 526  34¢ 263 62C 789 1,40¢ 253 1997 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building A 2155(  Triad ) 541 2,91z (33 844 50¢ 3,757 4,26¢ 983 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building B 2156(  Triad 2) 77¢ 3,20C (43 752 73€ 3,95% 4,68¢ 943 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building C 2157C  Triad ) 2,38¢ 9,563E — 2,22¢ 2,38¢ 11,764 14,14¢ 2,517 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Building D 2158(  Triad ) 85(C 3,217 1,02¢ 1,47 1,87¢ 4,685 6,56( 1,21¢ 1997 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Service Piedmont
Center 1 2161C  Triad ) 27¢ 1,09¢ (39 174 23€ 1,273 1,50¢ 329 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Service Piedmont
Center z 2162(  Triad 2) 222 889 (31 11¢ 191 1,006 1,19¢ 234 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Service Piedmont
Center & 2163(  Triad ) 304 1,214 — 163 304 1,377 1,681 309 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Service Piedmont
Center 4 2164(  Triad ) 224 898 — 187 224 1,08t 1,30¢ 275 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East-Service Piedmont
Court 2165(  Triad ) 194 774 (24) 66 17¢C 840 1,01( 194 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Warehouse 1 2166(  Triad 2) 384 1,53t (29 99 35k 1,634 1,98¢ 357 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Warehouse 2 2167C  Triad ) 372 1,48¢ — 141 372 1,62¢ 2,001 389 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Warehouse 3 2168(  Triad ) 37C 1,48C (30) 55 34C 1,53t 1,87t 319 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Warehouse : 2169( Triad ) 657 2,62¢ — 182 657 2,81C 3,461 643 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark East- Piedmont
Highland 2170C  Triad 2) 17& 699  (30) 39C 14E 1,08¢ 1,23¢ 187 1990 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Inman Road Lan 2183(  Triad 941 — — 941 — 941 — N/A N/A
7906 Industrial Piedmont
Village Road 2184(  Triad 62 455 — 23 62 478 54C 91 1985 5-40 yrs.
7908 Industrial Piedmont
Village Road 2185(  Triad 62 455 — 34 62 489 551 114 1985 5-40 yrs.
7910 Industrial Piedmont
Village Road 2186(  Triad 62 455 — 50 62 505 567 112 1985 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont
Jefferson Pilot Land 2187(  Triad 17,69¢ — — — 17,69¢ — 17,69¢ — N/A N/A

Piedmont



Airpark North-DC1
Airpark North -DC2
Airpark North -DC3
Airpark North -DC4

Airpark North Land

2606 Phoenix Drive
100 Series

2606 Phoenix Drive-
200 Seriet

2606 Phoenix Drive
300 Seriet

2606 Phoenix Drive-
400 Seriet

2606 Phoenix Drive
500 Series

2606 Phoenix Drive-
600 Series

2606 Phoenix Drive
700 Series

2606 Phoenix Drive-
800 Series

Highwoods Park
Building |

500 Radar Roa
502 Radar Roa
504 Radar Road

506 Radar Road
Regency One-
Piedmont Center

Regency Two-
Piedmont Center

Sears Cenfact
Airpark South
Warehouse |
Airpark South
Warehouse !
Airpark South
Warehouse :
Airpark South
Warehouse 4

Airpark South
Warehouse 6

Airpark West 1
Airpark West 2
Airpark West 4
Airpark West £

Airpark West €

7327 West Friendly
Avenue

7339 West Friendly
Avenue

7341 West Friendly
Avenue

7343 West Friendly
Avenue

7345 West Friendly
Avenue

7347 West Friendly
Avenue

7349 West Friendly
Avenue

7351 West Friendly
Avenue

2188(

2189(

2190(

2191(C

2192(

2194(

2195(

2196(

2197(

2198(

2199(

2200(¢

2201(

2867(

2211(

2212(

2213(

2214(C

2215(

2216(

2217(

2221(C

2222(

2223(

2224(

2225(

2227(

2228(

2229(

2230(¢

2231(

2232(

2233(

2234(

2235(

2236(

2237(

2238(

2239(

Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad
Piedmont
Triad

©)
©)
©)
(©)

728

1,094

37¢

804

63

63

31

52

64

78

39

51t

43t

861

22¢

242

32€

60

63

sl

72

66

97

53

10€

2,891

4,37¢

1,511

1,50¢

466

466

229

382

471

575

533

2,30¢

7,27%

1,484

285

285

285

2,347

1,85¢

3,44¢

2,934

2,54¢

2,365

2,17¢

3,91¢

3,817

3,53¢€

903

966

1,30¢

441

465

831

531

485

709

388

778

134
202
70
70

(804)

12

(31)

11

26

©)

(60)

(63)

24€
215

141

13
91
128
34

32

1,03t
168
85

35

19

53€
348
(422)

(39)

24¢€

~

89t

60E

17¢
181
(447)

(465)

48
25
85
23

30

1,291

448

63

63

31

52

64

78

39

51t

43t

83C

54¢

744

Sik

49¢€

1,71¢

954

884

22¢

242

32€

sl

72

66

97

53

10€

3,134

4,621

1,72¢

1,64¢

479

557

354

416

503

606

736

2,611

8,30¢

1,652

370

320

304

2,93C

2,39%

3,794

2,512

2,512

2,365

2,421

3,922

4,712

4,141

1,11¢

1,14¢

1,48¢

968

579

510

794

411

808

3,991

5,91¢

2,174

2,09¢

542

62C

38t

46€

684

73€

2,611

10,30(

1,85¢

343

3,44t

2,83(

4,62/

3,057

3,25¢

2,96¢

2,917

5,63¢

5,66¢

5,02¢

1,342

1,381

1,81%

1,081

651

57€

891

464

914

648

936

474

398

90

135

93

85

109

131

171

156

61

361

112

65

60

755

799

761

501

223

174

423

375

1,252

1,12¢

301

279

379

229

121

101

196

84

164

1986

1987

1988

1988

N/A

1989

1989

1989

1989

1989

1989

1988

1989

2001

1981

1986

1986

1986

1996

1996

1989

1998

1999

1999

1999

1999

1984

1985

1985

1985

1985

1987

1989

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
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7353 West Friendly Piedmont

Avenue 2240C Triad 125 901 — 50 122 951 1,07« 174 1988 5-40 yrs.
7355 West Friendly Piedmont

Avenue 2241( Triad 72 525 — 47 72 572 644 112 1988 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

150 Stratford 2618C  Triad 2,771 11,459 — 564 2,771 12,023 14,80( 2,536 1991 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

ALO 2619( Triad 177 986 — 8 177 994 1,171 63 1998 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

Chesapeake 2620C Triad ®3) 1,23¢ 4,944 — 7 1,23¢ 4,951 6,187 977 1993 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

Forsyth Corporate Cent 2621C  Triad (5) 32¢€ 1,850 — 707  32€ 2,557 2,88: 706 1985 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

The Knollwooc¢-370 2623C  Triad ) 1,81¢ 7,451 — 515 1,81¢ 7,966 9,78t 1,759 1994 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

The Knollwooc-380 2624C  Triad 2) 2,971 11,912 — 1,303 2,977 13,215 16,19: 2,924 1990 5-40 yrs.
The Knollwood -380 Piedmont

Retail 2626(  Triad ) — 1 — 187 — 188 18¢ 93 1995 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

101 Stratford 2629C  Triad 1,20t 6,810 — 447 1,20¢ 7,257 8,46: 1,040 1986 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

160 Stratford - Land ~ 2837C  Triad 96€ — — —  96€ — 96€ — N/A N/A

Consolidated Center/ Piedmont

Building | 2630C  Triad 62¢ 2,126 — 89 62t 2,215 2,84( 302 1983 5-40 yrs.
Consolidated Center/ Piedmont

Building 1 2631C  Triad 62& 4,376 — 151 62t 4,527 5,15Z 623 1983 5-40 yrs.
Consolidated Center/ Piedmont

Building 11l 2632C  Triad 68C 3,522 — 57  68C 3,579 4,25¢ 460 1989 5-40 yrs.
Consolidated Center/ Piedmont

Building IV 2633C  Triad 37¢ 1,624 — 269  37€ 1,893 2,26¢ 369 1989 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5610 2646C  Triad 211 493 — 25 211 518 72¢ 75 1988 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5620 2647C  Triad 941 2,196 — 26 941 2,222 3,16: 276 1983 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5630 2648C  Triad 1,48¢ 3,468 — 39 1,48¢ 3,507  4,99: 410 1983 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5635 2649C  Triad 892 2,083 — 466 892 2,549 3,44 632 1986 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5640 2650C  Triad 3,632 8,476 — 88 3,63 8,564 12,19¢ 1,024 1985 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5650 2651C  Triad 1,081 2,522 — 29 1,081 2,551 3,63: 317 1984 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5660 2652C  Triad 1,91C 4,456 — 48 1,91( 4,504 6,41¢ 548 1984 5-40 yrs.
Madison Park - Building Piedmont

5655 2653C  Triad 5,891 13,753 — 141 5,891 13,894 19,78t 1,717 1987 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

500 Northridge 2657C  Triad 1,78¢ 4,174 — 206 1,78¢ 4,380 6,16¢ 651 1988 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

711 Almondridge Triad 28C 694 — — 28C 694 974 — 1988 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

710 Almondridge Triad 2,18( 8,730 — — 2,18( 8,730 10,91( — 1989 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

520 Northridge Triad 1,541 3,777 — — 1,541 3,777 5,31¢ — 1988 5-40 yrs.
531 Northridge Piedmont

Warehouse Triad 4,59¢ 10,967 — —  4,59¢ 10,967 15,56: — 1989 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

531 Northridge Office Triad 70€ 1,683 — —  70€ 1,683 2,38¢ — 1989 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

540 Northridge Triad 1,952 4,681 — — 1,952 4,681 6,63¢ — 1987 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

550 Northridge Triad 447 1,081 — — 447 1,081 1,52¢ — 1989 5-40 yrs.
Piedmont

US Airways 2663C  Triad (5) 2,62F 14,824 — 245 2,62t 15,069 17,69¢ 1,966 1970-1987 5-40yrs.
University Commercial Piedmont



Cente-Landmark & 2666(

University Commercial
Center-Archer 4 2667(

University Commercial
CenterService Cente
1 2668(

University Commercial
CenterService Cente
2 2669(

University Commercial
CenterService Cente
3 2670(C

University Commercial
Center-Warehouse 1 2671(

University Commercial
Cente-Warehouse | 2672(

Westpoint Business
Parl-BMF 2673(

Westpoint Business
Park-Luwabahnson 2674(

Westpoint Business
Park-3 & 4

Westpoint Business Pa
Land 2676(

Westpoint Business
Park-Wp 11 2678(

Westpoint Business
Park-Wp 12

Westpoint Business
Parl-Wp 13 2680(

Westpoint Business
Parl-Fairchild 2681(

Westpoint Business
Parl-Warehouse!

Enterprise Warehouse 2842(

Brigham Road - Land 2871(

Greenville, SC

385 Land 2242(
Bank of America Plaz  2243(
MetLife @ Brookfield 2849C

Brookfield Plaze 2244
Brookfield-Jacobs-

Sirrine 2245(
Brookfield YMCA 2246(
385 Building 1 2247C
Patewood | 2248(
Patewood | 2249(
Patewood I 2250(
Patewood IV 2251C
Patewood V 2252(
Patewood VI 2253C
770 Pelham Roa 2254(
Patewood Business

Center 2255(
Verizon Wireless 2864(

Jacksonville, FL

Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Piedmont
Triad

Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville

Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville
Greenville

Greenville
Greenville

®)

®)
©)
®)

42¢

514

27¢

21¢

20z

19¢

79t

34¢

111

861

39¢

7,29¢

1,80(

642
1,02t
1,48¢

3,02z
28
1,41:
947
94z
83t
1,21(C
1,671
2,36(
70%

1,312
1,79C

1,771

2,058

1,155

859

668

812

786

3,181

1,384

445

1,570

1,337

1,192

2,577

671

2,960

9,349
8,336
8,437

17,125
189
1,401
5,016
5,018
4,733
6,856
9,503
9,643
2,778

7,436
12,701

F-44

321 42¢
203 514
140  27€
126  21F
250 167

9 202
16 19€

4 798

1 346
— 1
— 861
86 392
— 32
224 297
25 64C
— 157
745 487
— 7,29¢
— 1,80C

2,519 642

2,905 1,03

1,054 1,48¢

24 3,02
(189) —

2,799 1,41:
537 942
503 94z
222 83t
192 1,21(
110 1,677

(7) 2,36
323 70%
337 1,31z

16 1,79

2,092

2,261

1,295

985

918

821

802

3,185

1,385

445

1,656

1,337

1,416

2,602

671

3,705

11,868
11,241
9,491

17,149
4,200
5,653
5,521
4,955
7,048
9,613
9,636
3,101

7,773
12,717

2,521

2,77¢

1,571

1,20

1,08t

1,02¢

99¢

3,98(

1,731

55€

861

2,04¢

1,66€

1,71

3,24z

82¢

4,197

7,29¢

1,80(
12,51(
12,27
10,98(

20,17
5,61:
6,49t
6,46
5,79(
8,25¢

11,29(

11,99¢
3,80¢

9,08t
14,50

461

529

294

259

190

162

159

627

273

357

255

512

96

2,201
490
1,965

2,707

1,060
783
927
898

1,097

1,592

2,132
396

1,378
298

1985

1986

1983

1983

1984

1983

1983

1986

1990

1988

N/A

1988

1988

1988

1990

1995

2002

N/A

N/A

1973
2001
1987

1990
1990
1998
1985
1987
1989
1989
1990
1999
1989

1983
2002

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

N/A

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
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9A Land 22640 Jacksonville 4,44¢ — (4,44€) — — — —
Belfort Park VI - Land 22700 Jacksonville 480 — (355) — 125 — 125
Belfort Park VII - Land 22710 Jacksonville 1,85€ — — — 1,85¢ — 1,858
Shawnee Mission, KS
Shawnee
Corinth Square North Shops 26900 Mission 2,693 10,772 — 761 2,692 11,533 14,22¢
Shawnee
Corinth Shops South 26910 Mission 1,043 4,172 — 293 1,043 4,465 5,508
Shawnee
Fairway Shop: 26930 Mission 2,429 673 2,694 — 565 673 3,259 3,932
Shawnee
Prairie Village Rest & Bank 27050 Mission (6) — — — 1,372 — 1,372 1,372
Shawnee
Prairie Village Shop 27060 Mission (6) 3,28¢ 13,157 — 3,18C 3,28¢ 16,337 19,62¢
Shawnee
Shannon Valley Shopping Center 27120 Mission 5,893 1,66¢ 6,678 — 2,107 1,66¢ 8,785 10,454
Shawnee
Brymar Building 27470 Mission 329 1,317 (329) (1,317) — — —
Shawnee
Corinth Executive Building 27490 Mission 514 2,054 — 697 514 2,751 3,26F
Shawnee
Corinth Office Building 27510 Mission 719 529 2,116 — 374 529 2,490 3,01¢
Shawnee
Fairway North 27540 Mission 753 3,013 — 673 753 3,686 4,43¢
Shawnee
Fairway West 27550 Mission 1,775 851 3,402 — 495 851 3,897 4,748
Shawnee
Land - Kansas 27630 Mission 11,85¢ — — — 11,852 — 11,85¢
Shawnee
Nichols Building 27670 Mission 762 490 1,959 — 253 490 2,212 2,702
Shawnee
Prairie Village Office Center 27760 Mission 749 2,997 — 589 749 3,686 4,33%
Kansas City, MO
Country Club Plaza - 48th & Penn 26830 Kansas City 4) 418 3,736 — 2,114 418 5,850 6,268
Country Club Plaza - Balcony Retail 26840 Kansas City 4) 889 8,002 — 4,831 889 12,833 13,722
Country Club Plaz- Retail 26860 Kansas City 4) 433 — 433 433
Country Club Plaza - Court of the Penguins 26870 Kansas City 4) 566 5,091 — 2,641 566 7,732 8,298
Country Club Plaza - Esplanade Retall 26920 Kansas City 4) 748 6,734 — 3,75E 748 10,489 11,237
Country Club Plaz- Halls Block 26970 Kansas City 4) 275 2,478 — 822 275 3,300 3,57t
Country Club Plaza - Macy Block 26990 Kansas City 4) 504 4,536 — 1,617 504 6,153 6,657
Country Club Plaza - Millcreek Retail 27000 Kansas City 4) 602 5,422 — 2,75¢ 602 8,181 8,783
Country Club Plaz- Nichols Retail 27010 Kansas City 4) 600 5,402 — 1,802 600 7,204 7,804
Country Club Plaza - Plaza Central 27030 Kansas City 4) 405 3,649 — 2,02C 405 5,669 6,074
Country Club Plaza - Savings South 27040 Kansas City 4) 357 3,211 — 3,124 357 6,335 6,692
Country Club Plaza - Granada Shops 28380 Kansas City — 4,045 513 — 4,558 4,558
Country Club Plaz- Seville Shops We: 27100 Kansas City 4) 300 2,696 — 12,607 300 15,303 15,602 :
Country Club Plaza - Seville Square 27110 Kansas City 4) — 20,973 — 1,87¢ — 22,852 22,85z 1
Country Club Plaza - Swanson Block 27130 Kansas City 4) 949 8,537 — 3,054 949 11,591 12,54C .
Country Club Plaz- Theatre Retai 27150 Kansas City 4) 1,197 10,769 — 6,524 1,197 17,293 18,49C {
Country Club Plaza - Time Retalil 27160 Kansas City 4) 1,292 11,627 — 8,101 1,292 19,728 21,02C .
Country Club Plaza - Triangle Block 27170 Kansas City 4) 308 2,771 — 1,374 308 4,145 4,453
Country Club Plaz- Valencia Place Rets 27190 Kansas City 4) — 2,245 441 15,30C 441 17,545 17,98¢
Country Club Plaza - Balcony Office 27440 Kansas City 4) 65 585 — 255 65 840 905
Country Club Plaza - Esplanade Office 27530 Kansas City 4) 375 3,374 — 109 375 3,483 3,85¢&
Country Club Plaza - Millcreek Office 27650 Kansas City 4) 79 717 — 215 79 932 1,011



Country Club Plaza - Theatre Office 27950 Kansas City 4) 242 2,179 — 654 242 2,833 3,07%

Country Club Plaz- Time Office 27960 Kansas City 4) 199 1,792 — 528 199 2,320 2,51¢
Brookside Shopping Center 26850 Kansas City 2,002 8,602 154 1,223 2,15€ 9,825 11,981
Colonial Shops 26880 Kansas City 138 550 — 176 138 726 864
Retail Ground Leases 26950/4( Kansas City 1,061 — — — 1,061 — 1,061
Red Bridge Shop 27080 Kansas City 1,091 4,364 (1,091) (4,364) — — —
Neptune Apartments 27320 Kansas City 4,212 1,07 6,079 — 380 1,07 6,459 7,532
Parklane 27330 Kansas City 273 1,548 — 169 273 1,717 1,99C
Wornall Road Apartment 27400 Kansas City 30 171 — 23 30 194 224
4900 Main 27410 Kansas City 12,809 (12,809 — — —
63rd & Brookside 27420 Kansas City 71 283 — 48 71 331 402
Land- Missouri 27660 Kansas City 6,507 190 (1,34%) — 5,164 190 5,354
Nichols Block Office 27680 Kansas City 4) 74 668 — 87 74 755 829
One Ward Parkway 27720 Kansas City 666 2,663 — 2,13€ 666 4,799 5,465
Park Plaza 27740 Kansas City 4) 1,352 5,409 1,81€ 1,352 7,227 8,57¢
Parkway Building 27770 Kansas City 395 1,578 — 724 395 2,302 2,697
Somerset 27920 Kansas City 30 122 — — 30 122 152
Two Brush Creek 27940 Kansas City 961 3,845 — 877 961 4,722 5,683
Valencia Place Offic 27970 Kansas City 4) 1,53C 27,548 — 9,011 1,53C 36,559 38,08¢
Alameda Towers 60220 Kansas City — 231 — — — 231 231
KC Residential 60270 Kansas City 553 — — — 553 — 553
Rental House 27980 Kansas City — 940 — 69 — 1,009 1,00¢
St. Charles Apartments 27990 Kansas City 29 163 — — 29 163 192
Oak Park Mall Ground Lease 28030 Kansas City 19,000 19,09t — — — 19,09¢ — 19,09t
JCN Land 28040 Kansas City 871 — — — 871 — 871
Memphis, TN

F-45
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Cost Capitalized Gross Amount at Life on
subsequent to Which Carried at Which
Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period Depreciation
Accumulated
2002 Building & Building & Building & Date of is
Description JDE City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Computed
Atrium | &

I 2281(  Memphis 1,53( 6,121 40 660 1,57( 6,781 8,351 1,129 1984 5-40 yrs.
Centrum 2282( Memphis 1,012 5,488 — 391 1,01: 5,879 6,892 910 1979 5-40 yrs.
The

Colonnat 2283( Memphis 1,30C 7,994 — 20 1,30C 8,014 9,31« 1,685 1998 5-40 yrs.
Hickory Hill

Medical

Plaza 2284(  Memphis 39¢ 2,256 — 131 398 2,387 2,78 407 1988 5-40 yrs.
3400

Players

Club

Parkway 2285( Memphis (5) 1,00¢ 5,515 — 13 1,00t 5528  6,53¢ 1,494 1997 5-40 yrs.
Internatione

Place Il 2286(  Memphis 4,847 27,469 — 1,313 4,841 28,782  33,62¢ 5,279 1988 5-40 yrs.
Internatione

Place & Memphis — 25,761 — (25,761) — — — — 2001 5-40 yrs.
6000 Poplar

Ave 2829(  Memphis 2,34( 11,385 — 382  2,34C 11,767 14,107 681 1985 5-40 yrs.
6060 Popla

Ave 2830C  Memphis 1,98( 8,677 — 357 1,98( 9,034 11,01« 484 1987 5-40 yrs.
Shadow

Creek | 2831C Memphis 9732 5,493 — 1,892 973 7,385 8,35¢ 674 2000 5-40 yrs.
Shadow

Creek Il 2865( Memphis 723 6,041 11 445 734 6,486 7,22( 104 2001 5-40 yrs.
Southwind

Office

Center A 2289C  Memphis 99€ 5,643 — 369 99€ 6,012 7,00¢ 1,080 1991 5-40 yrs.
Southwind

Office

Center B 2290( Memphis 1,35¢ 7,684 — 449  1,35¢ 8,133 9,48¢ 1,503 1990 5-40 yrs.
Southwind

Office

Center C 2292( Memphis (5) 1,07C 5,924 — — 1,07C 5,924 6,99¢ 958 1998 5-40 yrs.
Southwind

Office

Center D 2291( Memphis 744 6,232 — (35) 744 6,197 6,941 1,101 1999 5-40 yrs.
Norfolk,

VA
Greenbrier

Business

Center 2257( Norfolk 93€ 5,305 — 177 936 5,482 6,41¢ 904 1984 5-40 yrs.
Nashville,

TN
Eakin &

Smith 1114C  Nashville 2,692 11,914 2,69z 11,914  14,60¢ 2,086 1999 5-40 yrs.
3322 West

End 2293(  Nashville 3,021 27,266 4 1,851 3,02% 29,117  32,14: 2,325 1986 5-40 yrs.
3401

Westend 2294C  Nashville 6,102 23,343 (1,229 (260) 4,87¢ 23,083  27,96: 4,739 1982 5-40 yrs.
5310

Marylanc

Way 2295(  Nashville 1,92 7,360 (36¢) (1,036) 1,55¢ 6,324 7,87¢ 1,059 1994 5-40 yrs.
Hickory

Trace 2296(  Nashville 1,16¢4 4,321 — 1,741 1,16¢ 6,062 7,22¢ 241 N/A N/A
SouthPointe 2297(  Nashville 1,65¢ 9,059 — 203 1,65t 9,262 10,917 2,423 1998 5-40 yrs.
BNA

Corporat

Center  2298(  Nashville — 22,588 — (1,091) — 21,497 21,49 4,010 1985 5-40 yrs.
Caterpillar

Financial

Center  2299C  Nashville 5,12( 31,553 (5,120 (31,553 — — — — 1999 5-40 yrs.
Century

City



Plaza |

Cool
Springs
1

Cool
Springs |

Eastpark I,
1, & 1l

Highwoods
Plaza |

Highwoods
Plaza Il

Harpeth on
the Gree
1
Harpeth on
the Gree
1
Harpeth on
the Gree
\%
Harpeth on
The
Green V
Lakeview
Ridge |
Lakeview
Ridge Il
Lakeview
Ridge Il
The

Ramparts

at

2300(

2302(

2303(

2304(

2309(

2310

2311C

2312(

2313(

2314(

2315(

2316(

2317(C

Brentwoo(2832(

Seven
Springs -
Land |

Seven
Springs -
Land Il

Seven
Springs |

Sparrow
Building

Winners
Circle

Westwood
South

Orlando,
FL
Sunport
Center
Oakridge
Office
Park
Lake Mary
Land
In Charge
Institute
Metrowest
Center
MetroWest
Land
Capital
Plaza Il
Interlachen
Village

Research
Triangle,
NC

Blue Ridge
1l

Blue Ridge

3600
Glenwoo
Avenue

3645 Trust

2850(

2862(

2863(

2319(

2321(

2322(

2323(

2324(

2338(

2339(

2347(

2352(

2356(

2360(

2361(

2364(

Nashville 903 3,612

Nashville 2,28t 15,535
Nashville 1,982 13,854
Nashville 3,137 11,842
Nashville 1,772 9,029
Nashville 1,44¢ 6,948
Nashville 1,41¢ 5,677
Nashville 1,65¢ 6,633
Nashville 1,70¢ 6,835
Nashville 662 5,771
Nashville 2,17¢ 7,545
Nashville 60E& 5,883
Nashville 1,072 9,708
Nashville 2,39¢ 12,806
Nashville 3,11¢ —
Nashville 3,21¢ —
Nashville 2,07¢ 10,667
Nashville 1,262 5,047
Nashville 1,49¢ 7,072
Nashville 2,10¢ 10,517
Orlando 1,50¢ 9,777
Orlando 4,70(C 18,761
Orlando 6,36¢ —
Orlando 501 2,085
Orlando 1,34¢ 7,618
Orlando 3,11z —
Orlando 2,977 —
Orlando 90C 2,689
Research

Triangle 462 1,485
Research

Triangle 722 4,538
Research

Triangle — 10,994

(4,700

732

5,273

1,345
(10)
246

1,674

868

639

975

39
(1,012)
(24)

2,100

487

569
331
701

701

205

(18,761)
710

999

(306)

221

1,251

2,28t

1,98:¢

2,371

1,772

1,44¢

1,42C

1,66(

1,71¢

662

1,76¢

605

1,07:

2,394

3,11¢

3,21¢

2,07¢

1,262

1,491

2,10¢

1,50¢

6,36¢

501

1,34¢

3,112

2,971

90C

462

722

4,344

20,808

15,199

11,832

9,275

8,622

6,545

7,272

7,810

5,810

6,533

5,859

11,808

13,293

11,236

5,378

7,773

11,218

9,982

2,795

8,617

2,383

1,706

5,789

10,994

5,247

23,09¢

17,18:

14,20¢

11,04%

10,07(

7,96¢

8,93:

9,524

6,47

8,301

6,46¢

12,88:

15,68

3,11¢

3,21¢

13,31

6,64(

9,27(

13,32«

11,48

6,36¢

3,29¢

9,961

3,112

2,97

3,28¢

2,16¢

6,511

10,99«

962

981

2,994

2,425

2,583

2,663

1,226

1,290

1,594

1,543

1,096

1,711

1,796

895

47

859

1,131

1,931

1,397

307

1,410

370

661

1,646

1,591

1987

N/A

1999

1978

1996

1997

1984

1987

1989

1998

1986

1998

1999

1986

N/A

N/A

2002

1982

1987

1999

1990

1966-1992

N/A

2000

1988

N/A

N/A

1987

1988

1982

1986

5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

N/A

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.



Drive - One

North

Commerc

Center 2365(
3737

Glenwoo

Avenue 2366(
4401

Research

Common: 2372(
4800 North

Park 2374(
4900 North

Park 2375(

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

52C

1,24¢

2,67¢

1,207 77C

2,949 26€

15,889 —

8,929 —

17,673 —

1,989 —

F-46

842

2,423

6,607

1,443

574

788

1,24¢

2,67¢

77C

3,791

18,312

15,536

19,116

2,563

4,57¢

18,31

16,78¢

21,79¢

3,33¢

601

2,008

6,146

4,371

667

1984

1999

1987

1985

1984

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
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Cost Capitalized Gross Amount at
subsequent to Which Carried at .
Initial Cost Acquisition Close of Period Llfe_on
Which
Depreciation
Accumulated
2002 Building & Building & Building & Date of is
Description JDE City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Computed
5000 North Research
Park 2376( Triangle (5) 1,01( 4,697 — 2,691 1,01C 7,388 8,39¢ 2,018 1980 5-40 yrs.
5200 Greens
Dairy-
One
North
Commerc Research
Center 2377( Triangle 16¢ 959 — 17C  16¢ 1,129 1,29¢ 227 1984 5-40 yrs.
5220 Green
Dairy-
One
North
Commerc Research
Center 2378( Triangle 382 2,165 — 31¢ 382 2,483 2,86t 531 1984 5-40 yrs.
801
Corporate Research
Center 2852( Triangle 82¢ 7,672 — 95¢& 828 8,627 9,45¢ 191 2002 5-40 yrs.
Research
Amica 2381( Triangle 28¢ 1,517 (289 (1,519 — — — — 1983 5-40 yrs.
Research
Arrowwood  2382( Triangle 95t 3,406 (955) (3,40€6) — — — — 1979 5-40 yrs.
Aspen Research
Building  2383( Triangle 56C 2,088 — 77¢  56C 2,867 3,421 855 1980 5-40 yrs.
4300 Six
Forks Research
Road 2385( Triangle — 15,504 — 4,321 — 19,825 19,82t 2,442 1995 5-40 yrs.
Research
Cedar East 2388( Triangle 562 2,491 — 57¢ 563 3,069 3,632 840 1981 5-40 yrs.
Research
Cedar West 2389( Triangle 562 2,475 — 844 563 3,319 3,88: 1,062 1981 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
One - Research
Weston 2820( Triangle 1,64¢ 7,133 — 2,26¢ 1,64¢ 9,401 11,04¢ 1,065 2000 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
Two - Research
Weston 2844( Triangle 1,667 7,478 — 1,957 1,667 9,435 11,10: 457 2001 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
Three
Land - Research
Weston 2869( Triangle 1,95¢ — — — 1,95t — 1,95¢ — N/A N/A
CentreGree Research
Four 2851( Triangle 1,69 7,984 — 4 1,69¢ 7,988 9,68: 50 2002
CentreGree
Five Lanc Research
- Weston 2868( Triangle 3,13: — — — 3,13¢ — 3,13¢ — N/A N/A
Inveresk
Land Research
Parcel 2 2390( Triangle 657 — — — 657 — 657 — N/A N/A
Inveresk
Land Research
Parcel 3 2391( Triangle 54¢ — — — 548 — 54¢ — N/A N/A
Research
Cape Fear  2395( Triangle 131 — — 2,88 131 2,883 3,01« 1,994 1979 5-40 yrs.
Creekstone Research
Crossing:  2396( Triangle 72¢ 3,841 — 37C 728 4,211 4,93¢ 857 1990 5-40 yrs.
Research
Catawba 2398( Triangle 12t 1,635 — 2,58z 12t 4,217 4,34: 1,411 1980 5-40 yrs.
Research
Cottonwood 2399( Triangle 60¢ 3,253 — 68 609 3,321 3,93( 730 1983 5-40 yrs.
Research
Cypress 2400( Triangle 567 1,729 — 474 567 2,203 2,77( 656 1980 5-40 yrs.
Research
Dogwood 2401( Triangle 76€ 2,777 — 632 766 3,409 4,17¢ 605 1983 5-40 yrs.
Research
EPA Annex 2402( Triangle 2,601 10,920 — (10,92() 2,601 — 2,601 — 1966 5-40 yrs.

Global Research



Software

GlenLake
Bldg |

Hawthorn

Pulse
Athletic
Club at
Highwood:

Holiday Inn
Reservati
Center

Healthsourc

Highwoods
Tower
One

Highwoods
Tower
Two

Highwoods
Centre-
Weston

Ironwood
Kaiser

Laurel

Highwoods
Office
Center
North
Land

Highwoods
Office
Center
South
Land

Leatherwoo

Maplewood

Northpark-
Wake
Forest

Northpark
Land -
Wake
Forest

ParkWest
One -
Weston

ParkWest
Two -
Weston

ParkWest
Three -
Land -
Weston

Phase | -
One
North
Commerc
Center

W Building -
One
North
Commerc
Center

Overlook

Other
Property

Pamlico

Raleigh
Corp
Center
Lot D

Red Oak

2404(

2866(

2405(

2406(

2407(

2409(

2410(C

2411(

2412(

2413(

2414(

2415(

2417(

2418(

2419(C

2421(

2424(

2425(

2845(

2846(

2847(

2426(

2427(

2428(

1118(

2429(

2432(

2433(

Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

5) 465
1,20¢

904

14z

1,29¢

(5) 20z

36¢

35t

2,40¢
2iLE

14¢

40=

1,59¢

374

48¢

51C

76€

1,162

39¢

26¢

1,211

38¢

7,471

18,288

3,782

524

2,735

10,593

16,914

20,164

7,902

1,276

3,625

2,524

49

851

2,928

2,938

2,642

4,353

6,592

10,401

6,086

93

20

168

561

71C

2,51¢

138

1,69¢

1,05¢

4,13¢

(124
481
93t

95¢€

1,164

743

1,651

2,06z
67C
10,38

11,08

632

465

1,20¢

904

142

867

1,304

203

36E

355

498

1,59¢

378

492

51C

768

1,162

398

1,211

38¢

7,634

18,849

4,492

3,040

2,870

12,289

17,970

24,303

7,778

1,757

4,560

3,480

50

1,484

3,625

4,032

4,102

3,385

6,004

8,654

11,071

10,387

11,087

6,718

8,09¢

20,054

5,39¢

3,18

3,731

13,59¢

18,17

24,66¢

8,31(

2,07¢

4,69:¢

4,36¢

40t

2,40¢

1,691

3,774

4,53(

1,59¢

4,48(

3,871

51C

6,77

9,817

11,46¢

10,38

11,37¢

1,211

7,107

2,393

136

2,408

694

646

2,471

5,579

1,274

1,573

577

2,165

876

19

532

294

957

243

275

1,061

1,959

1,989

1,977

4,348

1,191

1996

2002

1987

1998

1984

1996

1991

2001

1998

1978

1988

1982

N/A

N/A

1979

N/A

1997

N/A

2001

2001

N/A

1981

1983

1999

N/A

1980

N/A

1999

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

N/A
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

5-40 yrs.



Rexwoods
Center |
Rexwoods
Center Il
Rexwoods
Center Il
Rexwoods
Center IV
Rexwoods
Center V

Riverbirch
Six Forks
Center |
Six Forks
Center Il
Six Forks
Center Il
Smoketree
Tower
South
Square |
South
Square Il

Sycamore

WESPEC -
Tract 3

Weston
Tract 5C

Weston
Oaks
Court

Weston
Common
Tract 2B

Weston

Common:
Tract 5A

2435(

2436(

2437(

2438(

2439(

2440(

2443(

2444(

2445(

2446(

2447(

2448(

2449(

6003(

6004(

6005(

6006(

6007(

Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle
Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

Research
Triangle

(©)

(©))
®)
®)

®)

®)

77t

35¢

88¢

58¢€

1,301

44¢

66€

1,08¢

862

2,35¢

60€

52t

25t

2,00¢

2,78¢

2,251

92¢

1,14¢

5,979

2,663

4,345

4,411

11,802

3,785

4,710

5,830

102

34

F-47

4,12z

1,904

3,112

3,774

16€

4,611

1,24(

66€

2,35¢

1,27¢

531

17¢

878

362

92C

58€

1,08¢

862

2,35¢

60€

52E

255

2,00¢

2,78¢

2,251

928

1,14¢

4,123

1,904

3,112

3,774

6,145

4,611

3,340

5,585

5,079

14,157

5,063

5,241

6,005

5,001

2,26¢

4,032

4,36(

7,44¢

5,08(

4,00¢

6,671

5,941

16,51(

5,66¢

5,76¢

6,26(

2,00¢

2,78¢

2,251

92¢

1,14¢

1,387

491

891

1,269

1,452

1,909

756

1,173

1,251

3,855

1,230

1,263

1,672

1990

1993

1992

1995

1998

1987

1982

1983

1987

1984

1988

1989

1997

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Depreciation
Accumulated
2002 Building & Building & Building & Date of is
Description JDE City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Computed
Weston
Commor Research
Tract 6C 6008( Triangle 651 — — — 651 — 651 — N/A N/A
Day Tract Research
Residentic 6020( Triangle 7,57 — — —  7,57¢ — 7,57 — N/A N/A
Weston - Research
Land 2454( Triangle 43€ — — — 43€ — 43€ — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
6B 2853( Triangle 2,35k — — — 2,35k — 2,35k — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
6A 2854( Triangle 1,521 — — — 1,521 — 1,521 — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
8A 2855( Triangle 2,41¢ — — — 2,41F — 2,41F — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
6A2 2857( Triangle 2,08¢ — — —  2,08¢ — 2,08¢ — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
8A 2879( Triangle 2,681 — — — 2,681 — 2,681 — N/A N/A
Weston
Tract - Research
5B 2880( Triangle 2,42¢ — — — 2,42« — 2,42¢ — N/A N/A
WESPEC Research
Tract1  2881( Triangle 1,54: — — — 1,54 — 1,54: — N/A N/A
WESPEC Research
Tract 2E  2883( Triangle 644 — 19 — 662 — 662 — N/A N/A
Research
Willow Oak 2455( Triangle (5) 458 4,685 — 1,87¢ 45¢ 6,560 7,01¢ 2,334 1995 5-40 yrs.
Richmond,
VA
HDC Land
Site -
Parcel € 2456( Richmond 1,27¢ — — — 1,27¢ — 1,27¢ — N/A
Airport
Center | Richmond 693 4,422 — — 692 4,422 5,11¢ — 1997 5-40 yrs.
Airport
Center Il Richmond 33€ 2,772 — — 33¢ 2,772 3,10¢ — 1998 5-40 yrs.
Capital Ong
Building
| 2459( Richmond 1,27¢ 10,690 — 322 1,27¢ 11,012 12,29( 1,417 1999 5-40 yrs.
Capital One
Building
I} 2460( Richmond 477 3,946 — 24¢ 477 4,194 4,671 506 1999 5-40 yrs.
Capital Ong
Building
1l 2461C Richmond 1,27¢ 11,515 — (169 1,27¢ 11,346 12,62« 1,343 1999 5-40 yrs.
Capital One
Parking
Deck 2462(  Richmond — 2,288 — 141 — 2,429 2,42¢ 200 1999 5-40 yrs.
1309 E.
Cary
Street 2463( Richmond 171 685 — 10C 171 785 95€ 161 1987 5-40 yrs.
4900 Cox
Road 2464(  Richmond 1,32¢ 5,305 — 68€ 1,32¢ 5,991 7,31t 1,135 1991 5-40 yrs.
Technology
Park 1  2465( Richmond 541 2,166 — 49¢ 541 2,664 3,20¢ 618 1991 5-40 yrs.
Dominion
Place —
Pitts
Parcel 2872( Richmond 1,08¢ — — — 1,08¢ — 1,08¢ — N/A
East Shore 2466( Richmond — 1,254 — (1,259 — — — — N/A N/A



East Shore
I

East Shore
11

East Shore
\Y

Grove Park
|

Grove Park
I}

Grove Park
Square

Highwoods

2467(

2468(

2839(

2469(

2470(

6031(

Distributior

Center
HDC Land
Site E —
Parcel 2
HDC Land
Site D —
Parcel 4
HDC Land
Site C —
Parcel 5
Highwoods
One
Highwoods
Two
Highwoods
Five
Sadler &
Cox
Land
Highwoods
Plaza
Highwoods
Commor
Innsbrook
Centre
Innslake
Center
Liberty
Mutual
Mercer
Plaza
Markel
Americar
North Park
North Shore

Common:

A

North Shor
Commor
B - Land

North Shore

Common:

C - Land

North Shor
Commor
D - Land

Hamilton
Beach

One
Shockoe
Plaza

Stony Point
|

Stony Poini
1

Stony Point
1]

Stony Point
F Land

Technology
Park 2

Vantage
Place A

Vantage
Place B

Vantage

2876(

2877(

2878(

2472(

2473(

2476(

2477(C

2479(

2480(

2481(

2856(

2482(

2483(

2484(

2485(

2486(

2487(

2488(

2824(

2489(

2491(

2493(

2494(

2843(

2495(

2496(

2498(

2499(

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

©)

2,956

618

1,80¢

1,721

942

1,84¢

785

80€

1,758

90¢

547

914

844

1,20¢

1,55¢

1,372

2,16¢

1,34¢

1,714

1,69¢

1,261

1,08¢

1,38¢

2,224

1,19C

2,771

264

6,662

2,220

2,685

5,699

8,613

5,170

4,948

4,937
4,342
6,768
4,730
4,819
12,350
8,667

8,659

10,447

4,344

19,324

11,445

10,949

8,131

1,058
811

931

(907)

364

(983)

(26)

(6,662)

(2,220

3,18¢

2,26¢
1,281

94%

1,22¢
42)
284
1,802
991
124
98t

701

2,44(

482

(3,885
1,58¢
1,92¢

2,221

1,44¢

713

1,28t

52¢

1,80

1,721

947

1,84¢

78t

80€

1,75¢

90¢

521

914

844

1,20¢

1,55¢

1,372

2,16:

1,34¢

1,714

1,69¢

1,261

1,08¢

1,38¢

2,22¢

1,19C

2,775

264

20z

232

5,699

10,881

6,457

5,893

6,165
4,300
7,052
6,532
5,810
12,474
9,652

9,360

12,887

4,827

15,439

13,029

12,872

10,352

1,167

1,013

1,139

1,44¢

6,581

1,28t

6,22

1,80

1,721

947

12,720

7,24:

6,69¢

1,75¢

7,074

4,821

7,96¢€

7,37¢

7,01¢

14,03(

11,02«

11,52¢

14,23

1,71«

1,69¢

1,261

5,91¢

15,43¢

14,41

15,09¢

11,54

2,775

1,431

1,21¢€

1,372

3,013

1,526

1,232

664
734
581
246
1,196
1,072
1,476

1,776

804

926

2,727

2,252

1,931

619

256

277

292

1999

1999

N/A

1997

N/A

N/A

1999

N/A

N/A

N/A

1996

1997

1998

N/A

2000

1999

1989

2001

1990

1984

1998

1989

2002

N/A

N/A

N/A

1986

1996

1990

1999

2002

N/A

1991

1987

1988

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
N/A

N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

N/A

N/A

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.



Place C

Vantage
Place D

Vantage
Pointe

Waterfront
Plaza

West Shore
|

West Shore
I}

West Shore
1l

Virginia
Mutual

2500(

2501(

2502(

2503(

2504(

2505(

2506(

2825(

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

Richmond

288

218

1,08¢

58&

358

545

961

1,301

940

873

4,354

2,347

1,431

2,181

3,601

6,034

228

755
788
83
144
1,57¢

38

F-48

28k

21€

1,08¢

58t

35¢

54t

961

1,301

1,163

1,092

5,109

3,130

1,514

2,325

5,176

6,072

1,39¢

1,31(C

6,19¢

3,71t

1,87

2,87(

6,137

7,37:

310

325

1,174

877

278

401

1,397

585

1987

1988

1990

1988

1995

1995

1997

1996

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
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Description

JDE

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to
Initial Cost Acquisition

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at
Close of Period

2002 Building & Building &
City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements

Land

Building &
Improvements

Total

Accumulated

Depreciation

Date of

Life on
Which
Depreciation

is

Construction Computed

South
Florida

The 1800
Eller
Drive
Building

Tampa, FL
Atrium
Bay View
Office
Centre
Bay Vista
Gardens
Bay Vista
Gardens
1l
Bay Vista
Office
Building
Bay Vista
Retail
Countryside
Place
Cypress
Common:
Cypress
Center |
Cypress
Center Il
Cypress IV
Land
Cypress
West
Brookwood
Day Care
Center
Feathersour
Corporate
Center Il
Firemans
Fund
Building
Horizon
Highwoods
Preserve
Highwoods
Preserve
1
Highwoods
Preserve
1L
Highwoods
Preserve
v
Highwoods
Preserve
\%
Highwoods
Preserve
VI
Highwoods
Plaza
Highwoods
Preserve
Land
Highwoods
Preserve
Energy
Plant
LakePointe
Lakeside

25080

25120

25210

25220

25230

25250

25260

25270

25330

25340

25350

28730

25360

25370

25400

25410

25460

25470

25480

25490

25500

25510

25520

25530

25540

28360
25640
25650

Soutt
Floride — 9,724 — 699

Tampa 1,63¢ 9,286 (287) 2,302

Tampa 1,304 5,964 — 613

Tampa 4417 4,777 — 74
Tampa 1,32¢ 6,981 134 500

Tampa 93t 4,480 — 584
Tampa 282 1,135 — 164
Tampa 842 3,731 — 1,036
Tampa 1,211 11,488 — 207
Tampa 3,171 12,635 — 135
Tampa 1,19C 7,690 — 83
Tampa 2,771 303 — —

Tampa 1,983 615 4,988 — 843
Tampa 61 347 — 28
Tampa 2,152 80C 7,282 — 657
Tampa 50C 4,107 — 170
Tampa 1) — 6,114 — 829
Tampa — 2,268 1,61¢ 23,43¢
Tampa 27€ 274 1,365
Tampa 1,38¢ 1,524 — 21,30C
Tampa 1,63¢ 16,355 — 8,702

Tampa 1,44( 21,189 — (195)

Tampa 63¢ — — —

Tampa 54E 4,650 — 1,939

Tampa 2,032 — — —

Tampa — 500 — —
Tampa 1) 2,00(¢ 20,376 — 7,717
Tampa 1) — 7,272 — 146

1,352

1,304

1,462

93t
288
8432
1,211
3,171
1,19C
2,771

61%
61
80C
50C
1,61¢
27€
1,38¢
1,63¢
1,44(

63¢

54E

2,032

2,00(¢

10,423

11,588

6,577

4,851

7,481

5,064
1,299
4,767
11,695
12,770
7,773
303

5,831

375

7,939

4,277

6,943

25,704

1,639

22,824

25,057

20,994

6,589

500
28,093
7,418

10,42%

12,94(

7,881

5,29¢

8,94:

5,99¢
1,582
5,61(
12,90¢
15,94:
8,96:
3,074

6,44¢

43€

8,73¢

4,777

6,94

27,32

1,91¢

24,20

26,69¢

22,43«

63¢

7,134

2,032

50C
30,09:
7,41¢

1,743
1,809

922

642
1,305

879
227
589
2,748
3,553
750
39

991
64
1,331
625
964
2,406
312
1,788

1,587

826

504

3,037
967

1983

1989

1982

1982

1997

1982

1987

1988

1985

1982

1983

N/A

1985

1986

1986

1982

1980

1999

2001

1999

1999

2001

N/A

1999

N/A

N/A
1999
1978

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.



LakePointe

1l 25660 Tampa 1) 2,10 31,390 — 1,136 2,10
Northside

Square

Office 25720 Tampa 601 3,601 — 278 601
Northside

Square

Office/Re 25730 Tampa 80C 2,808 — 124 80C
One Harbou

Place 2818C Tampa 3) 2,01t 25,252 — 866 2,01¢
Parkside 25740 Tampa ) — 9,193 — 405 —
Pavilion 2575C Tampa 1) — 16,022 — 700 —
Pavilion

Parking

Garage 25760 Tampa — 5,618 — — —
380 Park

Place 2577C Tampa 1,50¢ 6,782 — 1,346 1,50¢
REO

Building 25790 Tampa 79t 4,484 (795) (4,484) —
Registry | 25800 Tampa 744 4,216 — 646 744
Registry Il 25810 Tampa 90€ 5,147 — 532 90€
Registry

Square 25820 Tampa 344 1,951 — 186 344
Romac Tampa 1,25¢ 17,950 (1,25€) (17,950) —
Sabal

Business

Center| 25840 Tampa 37E 2,127 — 256 37t
Sabal

Business

Center Il 25850 Tampa 342 1,935 — 142 342
Sabal

Business

Center Il 25860 Tampa 29C 1,642 — 49 29C
Sabal

Business

Center IV 25870 Tampa 81¢ 4,638 — 207 81¢
Sabal

Business

CenterV 25880 Tampa 1,02¢ 5,813 — 273 1,02¢
Sabal

Business

Center VI 25890 Tampa 1,60¢ 9,116 — 102 1,60¢
Sabal

Business

Center

Wi 2590C Tampa 1,51¢ 8,605 — 81 1,51¢
Sabal Lake

Building 25910 Tampa 572 3,241 — 160 572
Sabal

Industrial

Park Lanc 25920 Tampa 31€ — — 31€
Sabal Park

Plaza 25930 Tampa 611 3,460 — 416 611
Sabal Tech

Center 25940 Tampa 54¢ 3,107 — 97 54¢
Summit

Office

Building 25950 Tampa 57¢ 2,749 — 28 57¢
Spectrum 2596C Tampa 1) 1,45(C 14,173 — 719 1,45(C
Sabal

Pavilion | 25970 Tampa 66C 8,633 304 2,934 964
Sabal

Pavilion

1l 2598C Tampa 51C — — 51C
USF&G 26130 Tampa 1,36¢€ 7,742 — 1,619 1,36¢€
Westshore

Square 2614C Tampa 2,624 1,13(C 5,155 — 386 1,13(C

46,330 648,87¢ 2,649,149 (22,719 301,005 626,15

32,526
3,879
2,932

26,118

9,598
16,722

5,618
8,128
4,862
5,679

2,137

2,383
2,077
1,691
4,845
6,086
9,218

8,686

3,401

3,876
3,204
2,777
14,892

11,567

9,361

5,541

34,62¢
4,48
3,73
28,13

9,59¢
16,72%

5,61¢
9,63¢
5,60¢
6,581

2,481

2,75¢
2,41¢
1,981
5,66¢
7,112
10,820
10,20¢
3,97¢

31¢
4,487
3,752
3,35¢
16,34
12,53
51C
10,727

6,671

2,950,154 3,576,31

4,391
590
433

1,903

1,252
2,327

449

553
908
1,037
362
459
422
285
812
1,003
1,459

1,373

637

889
506
353
1,990

1,412

2,204
769

461,972

(1) These assets are pledged as collateral for a $59@@Hfirst mortgage loan.
(2) These assets are pledged as collateral for an82,8@0 first mortgage loan.
(3) These assets are pledged as collateral for a $28@Dfirst mortgage loan.
(4) These assets are pledged as collateral for a $AUR@0 first mortgage loan.
(5) These assets are pledged as collateral for a 84,9@0 first mortgage loan.
(6) These assets are pledged as collateral for a $1,0@® first mortgage loan.
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1986

1986

1986

1985

1979
1982

1999

1984

1984

1988

1988

1990

1986

N/A

1987

1989

1988

1984

1998

N/A

1988

1976

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES INC.

NOTE TO SCHEDULE I
(In Thousands)

As of December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

A summary of activity for Real estate and accunadatepreciation is as follows

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Real Estate
Balance at beginning of ye 3,621,521 3,443,11° 3,768,23.
Additions
Acquisitions, Development and Improvme 210,78t 336,67¢ 403,01:
Cost of real estate sa (255,99) (158,27) (728,129
Balance at close of year ( 3,576,31. 3,621,521 3,443,11

Accumulated Depreciaitio

Balance at beginning of ye 377,20: 280,77 237,97¢
Depreciation expens 109,95¢ 104,78 103,43!
Real estate sol (25,187 (8,360 (60,647)

Balance at close of year ( 461,97: 377,20: 280,77

(&) Reconciliation of total cost to balance sheet capéit December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 (in Thals3an

2002 2001 2000
Total per schedule I 3,576,31. 3,621,52 3,443,11
Construction in progress exclusi
of land included in schedule | 6,847 108,27: 86,57¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 20,96¢ 19,39¢ 11,43
Property held for sal (133,01 (210,759 (274,880
Reclassification adjustment for discontinued opens — 85¢€ 2,20¢
Total real estate assets at ¢ 3,471,11. 3,539,28! 3,268,45.

(b) Reconciliation of total Accumulated Depreciatiorbdance sheet caption at December 31, 2002, 20@12000 (in Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Total per Schedule | 461,97: 377,20: 280,77
Accumulated Depreciatic- furniture, fixtures and equipme 9,20¢ 9,64¢ 5,317
Property held for sal (8,957 (12,83f) (14,209

Total accumulated depreciati 462,22¢ 374,01 271,88:




F-50
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 333-51671383-51759, 333-61913 and 333-
99499-01, and Form S-8 Nos. 333-38878, 333-12133;29759 and 333-55901) and related Prospectuddigbivoods Properties, Inc. and
in the Registration Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 383#% and 333-99499) and related Prospectus of Highe/Realty Limited Partnership of
our report dated February 14, 2003 with respetiteaconsolidated financial statement and schedutiglhwoods Properties, Inc. included in
the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endedédeber 31, 2002.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNGP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 19, 2003

Exhibit 99.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsgrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KOfor the period ended December
2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Romaldsibson, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly fets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations
the Company.

/s/ RoNALD P. G IBsON

Ronald P. Gibson
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 19, 2003

Exhibit 99.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsgrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KOfor the period ended December
2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Carndahiuzzo, Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9l Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations
the Company.

/s CARMAN J. L 1uzzo

Carman J. Liuzzo
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 19, 2003

End of Filing
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